VISA 2024/178099-14756-0-PC L'apposition du visa ne peut en aucun cas servir d'argument de publicité Luxembourg, le 2024-11-21 Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier

Alfakraft Luxembourg S.A. SICAV

Société d'investissement à capital variable (SICAV) -

An open-ended investment company with variable share capital (SICAV)

subject to part II of the law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective investment, as amended

Prospectus

November 2024

Table of contents

1.	INTRODUCTION	4
2.	DIRECTORY	6
3.	DEFINITIONS	7
4. 4.1 4.2 4.3 4.4 4.5 4.6	INVESTMENT POLICY AND RESTRICTIONS	17 17 18 18 19
5 . 5.1 5.2 5.3 5.4 5.5 5.6	GENERAL RISK FACTORS Market risk Liquidity risk Counterparty risk Operational risk Certain financial instruments and investment techniques Sustainability Risks	24 26 27 27 29 33
6. 6.1 6.2 6.3 6.4 6.5 6.6 6.7	MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION The Board of Directors The AIFM. The Depositary and Paying Agent. The Administrator The Auditor Conflicts of interest. Execution of transactions	35 35 38 41 42 42
7. 7.1 7.2 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.6 7.7 7.8 7.9 7.10 7.11	SHARES	44 46 47 49 51 53 54 55 56
8. 8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5	VALUATION AND NET ASSET CALCULATION. Calculation of the Net Asset Value. Valuation procedure Publication of the Net Asset Value Temporary suspension of the Net Asset Value calculation Correction of errors in the calculation of Net Asset Value and/or non-compliance w the applicable sub-fund investment policy.	61 61 67 67 ith
9. 9.1 9.2 9.3 9.4	FEES AND EXPENSES	70 70 70

9.5 9.6 9.7 9.8 9.9	Directors' fees and expenses Operating and Administrative Expenses Transaction costs Extraordinary costs and expenses Formation costs and expenses	71 72 72	
0.0			
10.	GENERAL INFORMATION		
10.1	Reports and financial statements		
10.2	Meetings of Shareholders		
10.3	Shareholders' rights		
10.4	Changes to this Prospectus		
10.5	Documents and information available	76	
10.6	Data protection	76	
10.7	Merger and reorganisation	80	
10.8	Liquidation		
11.	TAXATION	84	
11.1	General	84	
11.2	The Fund		
11.3	Shareholders	86	
11.4	VAT		
11.5	FATCA		
11.6	Common Reporting Standard		
APPENDIX A : SUPPLEMENT 1 – ALFAKRAFT LUXEMBOURG S.A. SICAV - NORDIC BRIDGE FUND			

1. INTRODUCTION

This Prospectus contains information about Alfakraft Luxembourg S.A. SICAV that a prospective Shareholder should consider before investing in the Fund and should be retained for future reference.

The Fund is a public limited company (*société anonyme*) incorporated under the laws of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as an investment company with variable share capital (*société d'investissement à capital variable*) and qualifies as an alternative investment fund (AIF) within the meaning of the AIFMD (as defined below). The Fund is subject to part II of the law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective investment, as amended or supplemented from time to time (the "**2010 Law**").

The Fund has been authorised by the *Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier* (CSSF) which is the Luxembourg supervisory authority of the financial market. However, such authorisation does not require the CSSF to approve or disapprove either the adequacy or accuracy of this Prospectus or the portfolio of assets held by the Fund. Any declaration to the contrary should be considered as unauthorised and illegal.

The Fund is a single legal entity incorporated as an umbrella fund comprised of separate Sub-Funds. Shares in the Fund are shares in a specific Sub-Fund. The Fund may issue Shares of different Share Classes in each Sub-Fund. Such Share Classes may each have specific characteristics. Certain Share Classes may be reserved to certain categories of Shareholders. Prospective Shareholders should refer to the relevant Supplement for further information on characteristics of Share Classes.

The Fund is registered with the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register under number B289504. The latest version of the Articles of Association was published on the *Recueil électronique des sociétés et associations* (RESA), the central electronic platform of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg on 19 September 2024.

Neither delivery of the Prospectus nor anything stated herein should be taken to imply that any information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date hereof. The Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any Shares in any jurisdiction in which such offer, solicitation or sale would be unlawful or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale.

The information contained in this Prospectus is supplemented by the financial statements and further information contained in the latest Annual Report of the Fund, copies of which may be requested free of charge at the registered office of the Fund.

No distributor, agent, salesman or other person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation other than those contained in the Prospectus and in the documents referred to herein in connection with the offer of Shares and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised.

The Board of Directors has taken all reasonable care to ensure that the facts stated herein are true and accurate in all material respects and that there are no material facts the omission of which would make misleading any statement herein, whether of fact or opinion. The Board of Directors accepts responsibility accordingly.

The distribution of the Prospectus and/or the offer and sale of the Shares in certain jurisdictions or to certain prospective Shareholders may be restricted or prohibited by law. No Shares may be acquired or held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons. In particular, the Board of Directors has decided that US Persons would be considered as Prohibited Persons.

The Fund must comply with applicable international and Luxembourg laws and regulations regarding the prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing. In particular, anti-money laundering measures in force in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg require the Fund or its agent to establish and verify the identity of subscribers for Shares (as well as the identity of any intended beneficial owners of the Shares if they are not the subscribers) and the origin of subscription proceeds and to monitor the relationship on an ongoing basis. Failure to provide information or documentation may result in delays in, or rejection of, any subscription or conversion application and/or delays in any redemption application.

An investment in the Shares is only suitable for prospective Shareholder who have sufficient knowledge, experience and/or access to professional advisers to make their own financial, legal, tax and accounting evaluation of the risks of an investment in the Shares and who have sufficient resources to be able to bear any losses that may result from an investment in the Shares. Prospective Shareholder should consider their own personal circumstances and seek additional advice from their financial adviser or other professional adviser as to possible tax financial, legal, tax and accounting which they might encounter under the laws of the countries of their citizenship, residence, or domicile and which might be relevant to the subscription, purchase, holding, redemption, conversion or disposal of the Shares of the Fund.

The Shares are reserved to Eligible Investors, as further described in section 7.3 (Eligible Investors) of this Prospectus. For further details please refer to the definitions "Eligible Investors" set out in section 7.3 (Eligible Investors) and in the Supplements of this Prospectus.

A Packaged Retail and Insurance-based Investment Products Key Information Document ("**PRIIPs KID**") in compliance with the relevant provisions of Regulation (EU) 2017/653, as amended, and Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2021/2268 will be published for each Share Class available to Retail Investors. PRIIPs KIDs are handed over to Professional and Retail Investors in good time prior to their subscription in the Fund and are (i) provided to the Retail Investor using a durable medium other than paper or (ii) available under <u>https://nordicbridgefund.se</u> and can be obtained in paper form free of charge upon request from the AIFM.

THE VALUE OF THE SHARES MAY FALL AS WELL AS RISE AND A PROSPECTIVE SHAREHOLDER MAY NOT GET BACK THE AMOUNT INITIALLY INVESTED. INVESTING IN THE FUND INVOLVES RISK INCLUDING THE POSSIBLE LOSS OF CAPITAL.

2. DIRECTORY

Registered office of the Fund

5, Allée Scheffer L-2520 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Board of Directors

Camilla Lindberg

Bengt Lindblad

Ragnar Ottosen

AIFM

Alfa Kraft Fonder AB Linnégatan 22 114 47, Stockholm Sweden

Board of Directors of the AIFM

Johan Lundberg

Bengt Lindblad

Jessica Sparrfeldt

Depositary, Administrator, Paying Agent

CACEIS Bank, Luxembourg Branch 5, Allée Scheffer L-2520 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Auditor

Deloitte Audit 20 Boulevard de Kockelscheuer L-1821 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

Legal adviser as to matters of Luxembourg law

Arendt & Medernach SA 41A, Avenue J.F. Kennedy L-2082 Luxembourg Grand Duchy of Luxembourg

3. DEFINITIONS¹

1915 Law the Luxembourg law of 10 August 1915 on commercial companies, as may be amended from time to time. 1993 Law the Luxembourg law of 5 April 1993 on the financial sector, as may be amended from time to time. 2004 Law the Luxembourg law of 12 November 2004 on the fight against money laundering and terrorist financing, as may be amended from time to time. 2010 Law the Luxembourg law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective investment, as may be amended from time to time. 2013 Law the Luxembourg law of 12 July 2013 on alternative investment fund managers, as may be amended from time to time. Administration the agreement entered into between the Fund, the AIFM and the Aareement Administrator governing the appointment of the Administrator, as may be amended or supplemented from time to time. Administrator the central administration, registrar and transfer agent appointed by the AIFM and the Fund in accordance with the provisions of the 2010 Law and the Administration Agreement, as identified in the Directory. AIF an alternative investment fund within the meaning of the 2013 Law and the AIFMD. AIFM the alternative investment fund manager of the Fund within the meaning of the 2013 Law and the AIFMD, being Alfa Kraft Fonder AB or any successor alternative investment fund manager appointed by the Fund. AIFM Laws and the 2013 Law, the AIFMD Level 2 Regulation, any further delegated regulations issued by the European Commission in connection with Regulations the AIFMD and any further Luxembourg transposing legislation in connection with the AIFMD and related delegated acts, as well as any applicable direction, policy, circular, guideline, rule or order (whether formal or informal) that is made or given by the CSSF or ESMA in connection herewith, as may be amended from time to time.

¹ Please note that Sub-Fund related definitions are set out in the relevant Supplement.

AIFMD	Directive 2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 8 June 2011 on Alternative Investment Fund Managers and amending Directives 2003/41/EC and 2009/65/EC and Regulations (EC) No 1060/2009 and (EU) No 1095/2010, as may be amended from time to time.
AIFMD Level 2 Regulation	Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 of 19 December 2012 supplementing Directive 2011/61/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council with regard to exemptions, general operating conditions, depositaries, leverage, transparency and supervision, as may be amended from time to time.
Annual Report	the report issued by the Fund as of the end of the latest financial year in accordance with the 2010 Law.
Articles of Association	the articles of association of the Fund, as may be amended from time to time.
Board of Directors	the board of directors of the Fund.
Brussels I (Recast)	Regulation (EU) No 1215/2015 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 12 December 2012 on jurisdiction and the recognition and enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters (recast).
Business Day	any day on which banks are open the whole day for non-automated business in Luxembourg and in such other countries or cities as may be specified for a Sub-Fund or Share Class in a Supplement.
Capitalisation Shares	Shares with respect to which the Fund does not intend to distribute dividends.
Conversion Day	the day or days on which Original Shares may be converted into New Shares, being a day which is a Redemption Day for the Original Shares and, if that day is not a Subscription Day for the New Shares, the day which is the immediately following Subscription Day for the New Shares, provided that the Cut-Off Time for a Conversion Day shall be the earlier of the Cut-Off Time for redemption of the Original Shares on that Redemption Day and the Cut-Off Time for subscription to the New Shares on that Subscription Day. For the avoidance of doubt, the Conversion Day may be a different day for the Original Shares and the New Shares.
Conversion Fee	a fee which the Fund may charge upon conversion of Shares and which is equal to the positive difference, if any, between the Subscription Fee applicable to the New Shares and the Subscription Fee paid on the Original Shares, or such lower amount as specified for each Share Class in the relevant Supplement, where applicable.

- Conversion Form the forms and other documents, as issued or accepted by the Fund from time to time, which the Fund requires the prospective Shareholder or the person acting on behalf of the prospective Shareholder to complete, sign, and return to the Fund or its agent, with the supporting documentation, in order to request the conversion of all or part of his Shares.
- CRS the Common Reporting Standard for Automatic Exchange of financial account information in tax matters, as set out in the CRS Law.
- CRS Law the amended Luxembourg Law dated 18 December 2015 on the CRS implementing Council Directive 2014/107/EU of 9 December 2014 as regards mandatory exchange of information in the field of taxation and setting forth to the OECD's multilateral competent authority agreement on automatic exchange of financial account information signed on 29 October 2014 in Berlin, with effect as of 1 January 2016.
- CSSF the *Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier*, the Luxembourg supervisory authority of the financial sector or its successor authority.
- Cut-Off Time for any Subscription Day, Redemption Day or Conversion Day, the day and time by which an application for subscription, redemption or conversion, as applicable, must in principle be received by the Fund in order for the application to be processed, if accepted, by reference to the Net Asset Value per Share calculated as of that Subscription Day, Redemption Day or Conversion Day, as applicable. The Cut-Off Time is specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement.
- Depositary the depositary appointed by the Fund in accordance with the provisions of the 2010 Law, the 2013 Law, the Articles of Association and the Depositary Agreement, as identified in the Directory.
- Depositary the agreement entered into between the Fund, the AIFM, and the Depositary governing the appointment of the Depositary, as may be amended or supplemented from time to time.
- Directive 2006/48/EC Directive 2006/48/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 14 June 2006 relating to the taking up and pursuit of the business of credit institutions (recast), as may be amended from time to time.
- Distribution Shares Shares with respect to which the Fund intends to distribute dividends and which confer on their holder the right to receive such dividends, if and when declared by the Fund.

- **Eligible Investor** a prospective Shareholder who satisfies all eligibility requirements for a specific Sub-Fund or Share Class, as specified for the Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement or in the general part of the Prospectus. ESMA the European Securities and Markets Authority. ESMA Guidelines on Guidelines of the European Securities and Market Authority on Performance Fees performance fees in UCITS and certain types of AIFs (ESMA 34-39-992). EU the European Union. EUR the lawful currency of the Member States of the European Union that adopt the single currency in accordance with the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended by the Treaty on European Union. FATCA the Foreign Account Tax Compliance provisions of the United States Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment (HIRE) Act on 18 March 2010, set out in sections 1471 to 1474 of the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, and any U.S. Treasury regulations issued thereunder, Internal Revenue Service rulings or other official guidance pertaining thereto. **FATCA** Law the amended Luxembourg law dated 24 July 2015 implementing the Model I Intergovernmental Agreement between the Government of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and the Government of the United States of America to Improve International Tax Compliance and with respect to the United States information reporting provisions commonly known as the Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act (FATCA). Fund Alfakraft Luxembourg S.A. SICAV. Initial Offer the first day or period on or during which Shares of a Share Class will be or were available for subscription. Initial Offer Price the price at which Shares may be subscribed for on or during the Initial Offer. Lugano Convention the Convention of Lugano of 30 October 2007 on jurisdiction and the enforcement of judgments in civil and commercial matters.
- Management the agreement entered into between the Fund and the AIFM governing the appointment of the AIFM, as may be amended or supplemented from time to time.

- Management Fee the fee payable by the Fund to the AIFM under the Management Agreement, as described in section 9.2 (Management Fee) of this Prospectus.
- MiFID Directive 2014/65/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 15 May 2014 on markets in financial instruments and amending Directive 2002/92/EC and Directive 2011/61/EU, as may be amended from time to time.
- Net Asset Value as the context indicates, the net asset value of the Fund, a Sub-Fund, or a Share Class determined in accordance with the provisions of this Prospectus.
- Net Asset Value per Share the Net Asset Value of a Share Class in a Sub-Fund divided by the total number of Shares of that Share Class which are in issue as of the Valuation Day for which the Net Asset Value per Share is calculated.
- New Shares Shares described in section 7.6 (Conversion of Shares) of this Prospectus.
- OECD the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development.
- Original Shares Shares described in section 7.6 (Conversion of Shares) of this Prospectus.
- Paying Agent the paying agent appointed by AIFM and the Fund, as identified in the Directory.
- Professional Investor a Shareholder who is considered to be a professional client or may, on request, be treated as a professional client within the meaning of Annex II to MiFID.
- Prohibited Person any person considered as a Prohibited Person in the opinion of the Board of Directors according to the criteria set out in the Articles of Association and section 7.10 (Prohibited Persons) of this Prospectus.
- Prospectus this prospectus including all Supplements, as may be amended from time to time.
- R.C.S. the Luxembourg Trade and Companies' Register (*Registre de Commerce et des Sociétés*).

- Redemption Day a Valuation Day on which Shares may be redeemed by the Fund at a Redemption Price determined by reference to the Net Asset Value per Share calculated as of that Valuation Day. Redemption Days are specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement. Certain jurisdictions do not permit redemptions to be processed on local holidays. Shareholders should refer to the local sales documents for their jurisdiction for further details.
- Redemption Fee a fee which the Fund may charge upon redemption of Shares, equal to a percentage of the Redemption Price or such other amount specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement, where applicable.
- Redemption Form the forms and other documents, as issued or accepted by the Fund from time to time, which the Fund requires the Shareholder or the person acting on behalf of the Shareholder complete, sign, and return to the Fund or its agent, with the supporting documentation, in order to request the redemption of all or part of his Shares.
- Redemption Price the price at which the Fund may redeem Shares on a Redemption Day, as determined for each Sub-Fund or Share Class on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Share as of that Redemption Day and in accordance with the provisions of this Prospectus.
- Redemption Settlement Period the period of time, as specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement, by the end of which the Fund will normally pay the Redemption Price (less any Redemption Fee) to redeeming Shareholders, subject to the further provisions of this Prospectus.
- Reference Currency as the context indicates, (i) in relation to the Fund, the SEK, or (ii) in relation to a Sub-Fund, the currency in which the assets and liabilities of the Sub-Fund are valued and reported, as specified in each Supplement, or (iii) in relation to a Share Class, the currency in which the Shares of that Share Class are denominated, as specified in each Supplement.
- Semi-Annual Report the report issued by the Fund as of the end of the first six month of each financial year in accordance with the 2010 Law.
- SFDR Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 November 2019 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector.
- SFTR Regulation (EU) 2015/2365 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 25 November 2015 on transparency of securities financing transactions and of reuse and amending Regulation (EU) No 648/2012, as may be amended from time to time.

Share Class a class of Shares of a Sub-Fund created by the Board of Directors, as described in section 7.1 (Shares, Sub-Funds and Share Classes) of this Prospectus. For the purposes of this Prospectus, each Sub-Fund shall be deemed to comprise at least one Share Class.

Shares shares of a Sub-Fund or Share Class issued by the Fund.

- Shareholder any holder of Shares.
- Sub-Fund a sub-fund of the Fund, as described in section 7.1 (Shares, Sub-Funds and Share Classes) of this Prospectus.
- Subscription Day a Valuation Day on which (prospective) Shareholders may subscribe for Shares at a Subscription Price determined by reference to the Net Asset Value per Share calculated as of that Valuation Day. Subscription Days are specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement. Certain jurisdictions do not permit redemptions to be processed on local holidays. (Prospective) Shareholders should refer to the local sales documents for their jurisdiction for further details.
- Subscription Fee a fee which the Fund may charge upon subscription for Shares, equal to a percentage of the Subscription Price or such other amount specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement, where applicable.
- Subscription Form the forms and other documents, as issued or accepted by the Fund from time to time, which the Fund requires the (prospective) Shareholder or the person acting on behalf of the (prospective) Shareholder to complete, sign, and return to the Fund or its agent, with the supporting documentation, in order to make an initial and/or additional application for subscription to Shares.
- Subscription Price the price at which a (prospective) Shareholder may subscribe for Shares on a Subscription Day, as determined for each Sub-Fund or Share Class on the basis of the Net Asset Value per Share as of that Subscription Day and in accordance with the provisions of this Prospectus, unless otherwise provided in the Supplement for each Sub-Fund.
- Subscription Settlement Period the period of time by the end of which the subscriber is required to pay the Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee) to the Fund. The Subscription Settlement Period is specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement.
- Supplement the supplement(s) to this Prospectus for each specific Sub-Fund, which form part of this Prospectus.
- Sustainability Factors is defined in section 5.6 of this Prospectus.

Sustainability Risk is defined in section 5.6 of this Prospectus.

TaxonomyRegulation (EU) 2020/852 of the European Parliament and CouncilRegulationRegulation of 18 June 2020 on the establishment of a framework to
facilitate sustainable investment and amending the SFDR.

UCI undertaking for collective investment.

- UCITS Directive Directive 2009/65/EC of the European Parliament and of the Council of 13 July 2009 on the coordination of laws, regulations and administrative provisions relating to undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (UCITS) (recast), as may be amended from time to time.
- US Person or United States Person (i) includes any "U.S. person", as defined in Rule 902 of Regulation S promulgated under the United States Securities Act of 1933 ("**Securities Act**"), and (ii) excludes any "Non-United States person", as defined in Rule 4.7 promulgated under the United States Commodity Exchange Act, that is not a "U.S. person" for purposes of Rule 902 of Regulation S. Regulation S currently provides that "U.S. person" means:
 - a. any natural person resident in the United States;
 - b. any partnership or corporation organized or incorporated under the laws of the United States;
 - c. any estate of which any executor or administrator is a U.S. person;
 - d. any trust of which any trustee is a U.S. person;
 - e. any agency or branch of a non-U.S. entity located in the United States;
 - f. any non-discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary for the benefit or account of a U.S. person;
 - g. any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held by a dealer or other fiduciary organized, incorporated, or (if an individual) resident in the United States; and
 - h. any partnership or corporation if (i) organized or incorporated under the laws of any non-U.S. jurisdiction and (ii) formed by a U.S. person principally for the purpose of investing in securities not registered under the Securities Act, unless it is organized or incorporated, and owned, by accredited investors (as defined in Rule 501(a) under the Securities Act) who are not natural persons, estates or trusts.

"U.S. person" does not include:

 any discretionary account or similar account (other than an estate or trust) held for the benefit or account of a non-U.S. person by a dealer or other professional fiduciary organized, incorporated or, if an individual, resident in the United States;

- any estate of which any professional fiduciary acting as executor or administrator is a U.S. person if (i) an executor or administrator of the estate who is not a U.S. person has sole or shared investment discretion with respect to the assets of the estate and (ii) the estate is governed by non-U.S. law;
- any trust of which any professional fiduciary acting as trustee is a U.S. person if a trustee who is not a U.S. person has sole or shared investment discretion with respect to the trust assets, and no beneficiary of the trust (and no settlor if the trust is revocable) is a U.S. person;
- an employee benefit plan established and administered in accordance with the law of a country other than the United States and customary practices and documentation of such country;
- any agency or branch of a U.S. person located outside the United States if (i) the agency or branch operates for valid business reasons and (ii) the agency or branch is engaged in the business of insurance or banking and is subject to substantive insurance or banking regulation, respectively, in the jurisdiction where located; or
- the International Monetary Fund, the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, the Inter-American Development Bank, the Asian Development Bank, the African Development Bank, the United Nations and their agencies, affiliates and pension plans, and any other similar international organizations, their agencies, affiliates and pension plans.

Rule 4.7 of the United States Commodity Exchange Act Regulations currently provides in relevant part that the following persons are considered "Non-United States persons":

- a. a natural person who is not a resident of the United States;
- b. a partnership, corporation or other entity, other than an entity organized principally for passive investment, organized under the laws of a foreign jurisdiction and which has its principal places of business in a foreign jurisdiction;
- c. an estate or trust, the income of which is not subject to United States income tax regardless of source;
- d. an entity organized principally for passive investment such as a pool, investment company or other similar entity; provided, that units of participation in the entity held by persons who do not qualify as Non-United States persons or otherwise as qualified eligible persons represent in the aggregate less than 10% of the beneficial interest in the entity, and that such entity was not formed principally for the purpose of facilitating investment by persons who do not qualify as Non-United States persons in a pool with respect

to which the operator is exempt from certain requirements of Part 4 of the United States Commodity Futures Trading Commission's regulations by virtue of its participants being Non-United States persons; and

e. a pension plan for the employees, officers or principals of an entity organized and with its principal place of business outside of the United States.

An investor who is considered a "non-U.S. Person" under Regulation S and a "Non-United States person" under Rule 4.7 may nevertheless be generally subject to income tax under U.S. federal income tax laws. Any such person should consult his or her tax adviser regarding an investment in the Fund, and investors will generally be asked to certify that they are not U.S. taxpayers.

"United States Persons" or "US Persons" shall be construed accordingly. For the purposes of further clarity, the term US Person shall not include any person whose application has been approved by the Board of Directors in its sole discretion.

Valuation Day a Business Day as of which the Net Asset Value per Share is calculated, as specified in the relevant Supplement.

4. INVESTMENT POLICY AND RESTRICTIONS

4.1 Investment policy

In light of the corporate objective of the Fund, which is the collective investment of any funds available to it in assets in order to spread the investment risks and to ensure for the Shareholders the benefit of the results of the management of their assets, the Board of Directors has determined the investment objective and investment policy of each of the Sub-Funds as described in the Supplements to this Prospectus. To this end, the Fund may invest its assets in a range of transferable securities, money market instruments, units in undertakings for collective investment, credit institution deposits, derivatives as well as any other authorised asset, denominated in various currencies and issued in various countries to the largest extent permitted by the 2010 Law.

Pursuit of the investment objective and investment policy of any Sub-Fund must be in compliance with the limits and restrictions set out in section 4.2 (Investment restrictions) below and the section "**Error! Reference source not found.**" applicable to each Sub-Fund in the relevant Supplement. In case of discrepancies, the rules and limits of the Supplements shall prevail.

4.2 Investment restrictions

- a) The investment restrictions will be set out in the Supplement based on the investment strategy. The investment restrictions will be in compliance with the 2010 Law, the CSSF circulars (e.g. in particular Circular IML 91/75 and CSSF Circular 02/80) and all applicable laws and regulations.
- b) Unless otherwise stated in the Supplements, investments in other UCIs are subject to the following provisions:
 - Up to twenty per cent (20%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund may be invested in the securities of the same UCI. However, in applying this limit each compartment of a multiple compartment UCI will be considered as a separate UCI, provided that no cross-liability exists between the compartments.
 - Up to one hundred per cent (100%) of the shares or units issued by a multiple compartment UCI may be held, provided that the total investment in the UCI does not exceed fifty per cent (50%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund.

These limits are not applicable to investments in open-ended regulated UCIs which apply a diversified investment policy.

- c) Unless otherwise stated in the Supplements, short selling may be carried out subject to the following rules:
 - The aggregate commitment in terms of short selling may not exceed fifty per cent (50%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund.
 - The counterparty risk per lender may not exceed twenty per cent (20%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund.
 - Up to ten percent (10%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund may be invested in short positions of unlisted securities, provided that such securities are liquid.

- Not more than ten per cent (10%) of the same type of securities issued by the same issuer may be sold short.
- Short positions on securities issued by the same body may not exceed ten per cent (10%) of the assets and/or the commitment on such securities may not exceed five per cent (5%) of the assets.
- d) Unless otherwise stated in the Supplements, long positions must meet the following criteria:
 - Up to ten per cent (10%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund may be invested in unlisted securities.
 - No more than ten per cent (10%) of the same type of securities issued by the same entity may be acquired.
 - Exposure to a single issuer may not exceed twenty per cent (20%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund.

These restrictions do not apply to investments in other UCIs and to securities issued or guaranteed by an OECD Member State or by its local authorities or by supranational bodies or organizations of an EU, regional or worldwide nature.

4.3 Borrowing policy

Unless otherwise stated in the Supplements, borrowings may be utilised for investment purposes on a permanent basis and as bridge financing and to fund expense disbursements when liquid funds are not readily available. Unless otherwise stated in the Supplements, borrowings may be carried out as follows:

- The lender shall only be first class credit institutions who are specialized in this type of transaction.
- Borrowings may not exceed twenty per cent (20%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund.
- The counterparty risk will not represent more than twenty per cent (20%) of the net assets of each Sub-Fund per lender.

The assets of a Sub-Fund may be charged as security for any such borrowings.

4.4 Financial derivative instruments

Each Sub-Fund may invest in financial derivative instruments either for hedging purposes, in particular for the purpose of hedging risks connected to the evolution of stock markets or for the purpose of hedging interest rates, or for a purpose other than hedging (such as generating additional capital or income or for reducing costs or risk), as further described for each Sub-Fund in the relevant Supplement.

The financial derivative instruments can include, in particular, options, forward, and futures contracts on financial instruments and options thereon as well as over-the-counter ("**OTC**") swap transactions on all types of financial instruments. The financial derivative instruments have to be dealt on an organised market or OTC with first rate professionals which specialise in these types of transactions. Under no circumstances shall these operations cause a Sub-Fund to diverge from its investment objectives as laid down in this Prospectus or result in

additional risk higher than its risk profile as described in the Sub-Fund specific text in the relevant Supplement.

The counterparties to financial derivative instruments will be selected among financial institutions subject to prudential supervision (such as credit institutions or investment firms) and specialised in the relevant type of transaction.

The AIFM uses a process for accurate and independent assessment of the value of financial derivatives in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

In order to limit the exposure of a Sub-Fund to the risk of default of the counterparty under financial derivatives, the Sub-Fund may receive cash or other assets as collateral, unless otherwise specified in section 4.6 (Collateral Policy).

Each Sub-Fund may incur costs and fees in connection with total return swaps or other financial derivative instruments with similar characteristics, upon entering into total return swaps and/or any increase or decrease of their notional amount. The amount of these fees may be fixed or variable. Information on costs and fees incurred by each Sub-Fund in this respect, as well as the identity of the recipients and any affiliation they may have with the Depositary or the AIFM, if applicable, may be available in the Annual Report and, to the extent relevant and practicable, in each Supplement.

4.5 Efficient portfolio management techniques

Where specified in its Supplement, a Sub-Fund may enter into securities financing transactions (as such terms are defined in the SFTR) and total return swaps. Securities financing transactions include in particular repurchase transactions, securities lending and borrowing, as well as buy-sell back or sell-buy back transactions.

The selection of counterparties to securities lending transactions, repurchase transactions or total return swaps will generally be financial institutions based in an OECD member state and have an investment grade credit rating, which the AIFM believes to be creditworthy. The credit analysis of the counterparties is tailored to the intended activity and may include, but not limited to, a review of the management, liquidity, profitability, corporate structure, regulatory framework in the relevant jurisdiction, capital adequacy, and asset quality. While there are no predetermined legal status or geographical criteria applied in the selection process. The selected counterparties will comply with the provisions of article 3 of the SFTR. Details of the selection criteria and a list of approved counterparties is available from the registered office of the AIFM.

All revenues arising from efficient portfolio management techniques (including securities lending transactions, repurchase transactions or total return swaps), net of direct and indirect operational costs and fees, will be returned to the Sub-Fund.

The risk exposure to a counterparty generated through efficient portfolio management techniques and OTC financial derivatives must be combined when calculating counterparty risk limits referred to section 4.2 (Investment restrictions) above.

4.5.1 Securities lending

Securities lending transactions consist in transactions whereby a lender transfers securities or instruments to a borrower, subject to a commitment that the borrower will return equivalent securities or instruments on a future date or when requested to do so by the lender, such transaction being considered as securities lending for the party transferring the securities or instruments and being considered as securities borrowing for the counterparty to which they are transferred.

In compliance with the relevant provisions of the SFTR and where specified in its Supplement, a Sub-Fund may enter into securities lending transactions as lender of securities or instruments. Securities lending transactions are, in particular, subject to the following conditions:

- (A) the counterparty must be subject to prudential supervision rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those prescribed by EU law;
- (B) a Sub-Fund may only lend securities or instruments to a borrower either directly, through a standardised system organised by a recognised clearing institution or through a lending system organised by a financial institution subject to prudential supervision rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those provided by EU law and specialised in this type of transaction; and
- (C) a Sub-Fund may only enter into securities lending transactions provided that it is entitled at any time, under the terms of the agreement, to request the return of the securities or instruments lent or to terminate the agreement.

4.5.2 Repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions

Repurchase agreements consist of transactions governed by an agreement whereby a party sells securities or instruments to a counterparty, subject to a commitment to repurchase them, or substituted securities or instruments of the same description, from the counterparty at a specified price on a future date specified, or to be specified, by the transferor. Such transactions are commonly referred to as repurchase agreements for the party selling the securities or instruments, and reverse repurchase agreements for the counterparty buying them.

Buy-sell back transactions consist of transactions, not being governed by a repurchase agreement or a reverse repurchase agreement as described above, whereby a party buys or sells securities or instruments to a counterparty, agreeing, respectively, to sell to or buy back from that counterparty securities or instruments of the same description at a specified price on a future date. Such transactions are commonly referred to as buy-sell back transactions for the party buying the securities or instruments, and sell-buy back transactions for the counterparty selling them.

In compliance with the relevant provisions of the SFTR and where specified in its Supplement, a Sub-Fund may enter into repurchase agreements and/or buy-sell back transactions as buyer or seller of securities or instruments. Such transactions are, in particular, subject to the following conditions:

- (A) the counterparty must be subject to prudential supervision rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those prescribed by EU law;
- (B) the transactions must be carried out with first class institutions;
- (C) the Sub-Fund must be able, at any time, to terminate the agreement or recall the full amount of cash in a reverse repurchase agreement or buy-sell back transaction (on either an accrued basis or a mark-to-market basis) or any securities or instruments subject to a repurchase agreement or sell-buy back transaction. Fixed-term transactions that do not exceed seven days should be considered as arrangements on terms that allow cash or assets to be recalled at any time;
- (D) if the Sub-Fund acts as the seller, it must maintain sufficient liquid assets to repurchase and/or buy-back the securities on maturity of the agreement; and
- (E) the securities acquired under a repurchase agreement and/or buy-sell back agreement may not be sold unless the Sub-Fund has other means of coverage at its disposal.

4.6 Collateral policy

This section sets out the policy adopted by the AIFM for the management of collateral received for the benefit of each Sub-Fund in the context of financial derivatives instruments as well as efficient portfolio management techniques (securities lending transactions, repurchase agreements, and buy-sell back transactions).

4.6.1 Eligible collateral

Collateral received for the benefit of a Sub-Fund may be used to reduce its counterparty risk exposure if it complies with the conditions set out in applicable laws and regulations. In particular, collateral received for the benefit of a Sub-Fund should comply with the following conditions:

- (A) collateral should be valued at least on a daily basis and assets that exhibit high price volatility should not be accepted as collateral unless suitably conservative haircuts are in place, as further specified below;
- (B) collateral should be issued by an entity that is independent from the counterparty and is expected not to display a high correlation with the performance of the counterparty;
- (C) collateral should be sufficiently diversified in terms of countries, markets and issuers;
- (D) where there is a title transfer, collateral received should be held by the Depositary or one of its sub-custodians to which the Depositary has delegated the custody of such collateral. For other types of collateral arrangement (e.g. a pledge), collateral can be held by a third party custodian which is subject to prudential supervision and which is unrelated to the provider of the collateral;
- (E) collateral should be capable of being fully enforced by the Fund at any time without reference to or approval from the counterparty.

4.6.2 Level of collateral

The level of collateral required for financial derivatives transactions and efficient portfolio management techniques will be determined as per the agreements in place with the individual counterparties, taking into account factors including the nature and characteristics of transactions, the creditworthiness and identity of counterparties and prevailing market conditions. At all times the counterparty exposure not covered by collateral will remain below the applicable counterparty risk limits set out in this Prospectus.

It is expected that the amount of collateral posted by a counterparty in favour of each Sub-Fund will be such that the net exposure of the relevant Sub-Fund to that counterparty arising from financial derivatives transactions and efficient portfolio management techniques is aimed to be zero percent (0%) of its Net Asset Value on each Valuation Day: each Sub-Fund is expected to be fully collateralised.

4.6.3 Haircut policy

Collateral will be valued, on a daily basis, using available market prices and taking into account appropriate discounts which will be determined for each asset class based on the haircut policy adopted by the AIFM. The policy takes into account a variety of factors, depending on the nature of the collateral received, such as the issuer's credit standing, the maturity, currency, price volatility of the assets and, where applicable, the outcome of liquidity stress tests carried out under normal and exceptional liquidity conditions.

In accordance with its haircut policy, the AIFM expects that the maximum valuation percentage specified in the table below will be used in the calculation of the value of collateral received by the Sub-Fund.

Category of collateral	Valuation percentage maximum figures
Cash in the Sub-Fund Currency	100%

4.6.4 Reinvestment of collateral

Cash collateral received for the benefit of a Sub-Fund can only be:

- (A) placed on deposit with a credit institution which has its registered office in a Member State or a credit institution located in a third-country which is subject to prudential rules considered by the CSSF as equivalent to those laid down in EU law;
- (B) invested in high-quality government bonds;
- (C) used for the purpose of reverse repurchase transactions provided the transactions are with credit institutions subject to prudential supervision and the Fund is able to recall at any time the full amount of cash on accrued basis; and/or

(D) invested in short-term money market funds as defined in the Guidelines on a Common Definition of European Money Market Funds issued by ESMA (CESR/10-049) as may be amended from time to time.

Re-invested cash collateral should be diversified in accordance with the diversification requirements applicable to non-cash collateral as set out above. Re-investment of cash collateral involves certain risks for the Sub-Fund, as described in section 5.5.1 (General Risk Factors) below.

4.6.5 Centrally cleared OTC derivatives

The Fund may enter into OTC derivatives cleared through a clearinghouse that serves as a central counterparty. Generally, centrally-cleared OTC derivatives may be cleared under the agency model or the principal-to-principal model. Under the principal-to-principal model there is usually one transaction between the Fund and its clearing broker and another back-to-back transaction between the clearing broker and the central counterparty, whereas under the agency model there is one transaction between the Fund and the central counterparty. For these trades, the Fund will post and/or receive collateral for the benefit of a Sub-Fund in the form of margin payments, as agreed with the clearing broker in accordance with the rules of the applicable clearinghouse, including rules on acceptable forms of collateral, collateral level, valuation and haircuts. The Fund will ensure that variation margin receivable from the clearing broker is consistent with its collateral policy. Central clearing is designed to reduce counterparty credit risk and increase liquidity compared to bilaterally-cleared OTC derivatives, but it does not eliminate those risks completely, as described in section 5.5.1 (OTC financial derivative instruments) below.

5. GENERAL RISK FACTORS

The performance of the Shares depends on the performance of the investments of the Sub-Fund, which may increase or decrease in value. The past performance of the Shares is not an assurance or guarantee of future performance. The value of the Shares at any time could be significantly lower than the initial investment and Shareholders may lose a portion or even the entire amount originally invested.

Investment objectives express an intended result only. Unless otherwise specified in a Supplement, the Shares do not include any element of capital protection and the Fund gives no assurance or guarantee to any Shareholders as to the performance of the Shares. Depending on market conditions and a variety of other factors outside the control of the Fund, investment objectives may become more difficult or even impossible to achieve. The Fund gives no assurance or guarantee to any Shareholders as to the likelihood of achieving the investment objective of a Sub-Fund.

An investment in the Shares is only suitable for (prospective) Shareholders who have sufficient knowledge, experience and/or access to professional advisors to make their own financial, legal, tax and accounting evaluation of the risks of an investment in the Shares and who have sufficient resources to be able to bear any losses that may result from an investment in the Shares. Shareholders should consider their own personal circumstances and seek additional advice from their financial adviser or other professional adviser as to possible financial, legal, tax and accounting consequences which they might encounter under the laws of the countries of their citizenship, residence, or domicile and which might be relevant to the subscription, purchase, holding, redemption, conversion or disposal of the Shares of the Fund.

Shareholders should also carefully consider all the information set out in this Prospectus and the Supplement of the Sub-Fund before making an investment decision with respect to Shares of any Sub-Fund or Share Class. The following sections are of general nature and describe certain risks that are generally relevant to an investment in Shares of any Sub-Fund or Share Class. Other risks may be described in the Supplement. This section and the Supplements do not purport to be a complete explanation of all risks involved in an investment in the Shares of any Sub-Fund or Share Class and other risks may also be or become relevant from time to time.

5.1 Market risk

Market risk is understood as the risk of loss for a Sub-Fund resulting from fluctuation in the market value of positions in its portfolio attributable to changes in market variables, such as general economic conditions, interest rates, foreign exchange rates, or the creditworthiness of the issuer of a financial instrument. This is a general risk that applies to all investments, meaning that the value of a particular investment may go down as well as up in response to changes in market variables. Although it is intended that each Sub-Fund will be diversified with a view to reducing market risk, the investments of a Sub-Fund will remain subject to fluctuations in market variables and the risks inherent in investing in financial markets.

5.1.1 Economic risk

The value of investments held by a Sub-Fund may decline in value due to factors affecting financial markets generally, such as real or perceived adverse economic conditions, changes in the general outlook for revenues or corporate earnings, changes in interest or currency rates,

or adverse Shareholder sentiment generally. The value of investments may also decline due to factors affecting a particular industry, area or sector, such as changes in production costs and competitive conditions. During a general downturn in the economy, multiple asset classes may decline in value simultaneously. Economic downturn can be difficult to predict. When the economy performs well, there can be no assurance that investments held by a Sub-Fund will benefit from the advance.

5.1.2 Interest rate risk

The performance of a Sub-Fund may be influenced by changes in the general level of interest rates. Generally, the value of fixed income instruments will change inversely with changes in interest rates: when interest rates rise, the value of fixed income instruments generally can be expected to fall and vice versa. Fixed income securities with longer-term maturities tend to be more sensitive to interest rate changes than shorter-term securities. In accordance with its investment objective and policy, a Sub-Fund may attempt to hedge or reduce interest rate risk, generally through the use of interest rate futures or other derivatives. However, it may not be possible or practical to hedge or reduce such risk at all times.

5.1.3 Foreign exchange risk

Each Sub-Fund investing in securities denominated in currencies other than its Reference Currency may be subject to foreign exchange risk. As the assets of each Sub-Fund are valued in its Reference Currency, changes in the value of the Reference Currency compared to other currencies will affect the value, in the Reference Currency, of any securities denominated in such other currencies. Foreign exchange exposure may increase the volatility of investments relative to investments denominated in the Reference Currency. In accordance with its investment objective and policy, a Sub-Fund may attempt to hedge or reduce foreign exchange risk, generally through the use of derivatives. However, it may not be possible or practical to hedge or reduce such risk at all times.

In addition, a Share Class that is denominated in a Reference Currency other than the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund exposes the Shareholder to the risk of fluctuations between the Reference Currency of the Share Class and that of the Sub-Fund. This exposure is in addition to foreign exchange risk, if any, incurred by the Sub-Fund with respect to investments denominated in other currencies than its Reference Currency, as described above.

5.1.4 Credit risk

Sub-Funds investing in fixed income instruments will be exposed to the creditworthiness of the issuers of the instruments and their ability to make principal and interest payments when due in accordance with the terms and conditions of the instruments. The creditworthiness or perceived creditworthiness of an issuer may affect the market value of fixed income instruments. Issuers with higher credit risk typically offer higher yields for this added risk, whereas issuers with lower credit risk typically offer lower yields. Generally, government debt is considered to be the safest in terms of credit risk, while corporate debt involves a higher credit risk. Related to that is the risk of downgrade by a rating agency. Rating agencies are private undertakings providing ratings for a variety of fixed income instruments based on the creditworthiness of their issuers. The agencies may change the rating of issuers or instruments from time to time due to financial, economic, political, or other factors, which, if the change represents a downgrade, can adversely impact the market value of the affected instruments.

5.1.5 Commodities risk

Where specified in the Supplements, certain Sub-Funds may invest in instruments providing exposure to the commodities market, including financial derivative instruments referencing commodities indices and financial instruments or funds linked to, or backed by the performance of, commodities. Investments in derivatives related to commodities can be highly volatile: market prices of commodities derivatives may fluctuate rapidly. The price of commodities derivatives may fluctuate based on numerous factors, including changes in supply and demand (whether actual or perceived, anticipated or unanticipated) and other trading considerations generally or in the relevant commodity, domestic and international political, monetary and economic events and policies, and other public or private policies, actions or inactions, natural events such as weather conditions, agricultural factors, diseases, or technological developments. The current or "spot" prices of commodities may also affect the prices of futures contracts in respect of the relevant commodity.

5.1.6 Volatility

The volatility of a financial instrument is a measure of the variations in the price of that instrument over time. A higher volatility means that the price of the instrument can change significantly over a short time period in either direction. Each Sub-Fund may make investments in instruments or markets that are likely to experience high levels of volatility. This may cause the Net Asset Value per Share to experience significant increases or decreases in value over short periods of time.

5.1.7 Short positions

Where specified in the Supplements, certain Sub-Funds may use financial derivative instruments such as swaps, futures and forwards in order to obtain a short exposure to certain securities or other assets. A synthetic short position replicates the economic effect of a transaction in which a fund sells a security or asset it does not own but has borrowed, in anticipation that the market price of that security or asset will decline. When a Sub-Fund initiates such a synthetic short position in a security or asset that it does not own, it enters into a derivative-based transaction with a counterparty or broker-dealer and closes that transaction on or before its expiry date through the receipt or payment of any gains or losses resulting from the transaction. If the price of the security or asset on which the synthetic short position is written increases between the time of the initiation of the synthetic short position and the time at which the position is closed, the Sub-fund will incur a loss; conversely, if the price declines, the Sub-Fund will realise a gain. Any gain will be decreased, and any loss increased by transactional costs and fees. Although a Sub-Fund's gain is limited to the price at which it opened the synthetic short position, its potential loss may be substantially higher. Stop loss policies are typically employed to limit losses. Each Sub-Fund is required to maintain sufficiently liquid assets to cover any obligations arising from its short positions at any time.

5.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity refers to the speed and ease with which investments can be sold or liquidated or a position closed. On the asset side, liquidity risk refers to the inability of a Sub-Fund to dispose of investments at a price equal or close to their estimated value within a reasonable period of time. On the liability side, liquidity risk refers to the inability of a Sub-Fund to raise sufficient cash to meet a redemption request due to its inability to dispose of investments. In certain circumstances, investments may become less liquid or illiquid due to a variety of factors

including adverse conditions affecting a particular issuer, counterparty, or the market generally, and legal, regulatory or contractual restrictions on the sale of certain instruments. In addition, a Sub-Fund may invest in financial instruments traded over-the-counter or OTC, which generally tend to be less liquid than instruments that are listed and traded on exchanges. Market quotations for less liquid or illiquid instruments may be more volatile than for liquid instruments and/or subject to larger spreads between bid and ask prices. Difficulties in disposing of investments may result in a loss for a Sub-Fund and/or compromise the ability of the Sub-Fund to meet a redemption request.

5.3 Counterparty risk

Counterparty risk refers to the risk of loss for a Sub-Fund resulting from the fact that the counterparty to a transaction entered into by the Sub-Fund may default on its contractual obligations. There can be no assurance that an issuer or counterparty will not be subject to credit or other difficulties leading to a default on its contractual obligations and the loss of all or part of the amounts due to the Sub-Fund. This risk may arise at any time the assets of a Sub-Fund are deposited, extended, committed, invested, or otherwise exposed through actual or implied contractual agreements. For instance, counterparty risk may arise when a Sub-Fund has deposited cash with a financial institution or invests into debt securities and other fixed income instruments counterparty risk may also arise when a Sub-Fund enters into OTC financial derivative instruments, or enters into securities lending transactions, repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions, as further described below.

5.4 Operational risk

Operational risk means the risk of loss for the Fund resulting from inadequate internal processes and failures in relation to people and systems of the Fund, the AIFM and/or its agents and service providers, or from external events, and includes legal and documentation risk and risk resulting from the trading, settlement and valuation procedures operated on behalf of the Fund.

5.4.1 Valuation

Where specified in the Supplements, certain Sub-Funds may hold investments for which market prices or quotations are not available or representative, or which are not quoted, listed or traded on an exchange or regulated market. In addition, in certain circumstances, investments may become less liquid or illiquid. Such investments will be valued at their probable realisation value estimated with care and in good faith by the AIFM using any valuation method in line with by the AIFM's valuation policy. Such investments are inherently difficult to value and are the subject of substantial uncertainty. There is no assurance that the estimates resulting from the valuation process will reflect the actual sales or liquidation prices of investments.

5.4.2 Laws and regulations

The Fund may be subject to a number of legal and regulatory risks, including contradictory interpretations or applications of laws, incomplete, unclear and changing laws, restrictions on general public access to regulations, practices and customs, ignorance or breaches of laws on the part of counterparties and other market participants, incomplete or incorrect transaction documents, lack of established or effective avenues for legal redress, inadequate Shareholder

protection, or lack of enforcement of existing laws. Difficulties in asserting, protecting and enforcing rights may have a material adverse effect on the Sub-Funds and their operations.

Certain transactions are entered into on the basis of complex legal documents. Such documents may be difficult to enforce or may be the subject of a dispute as to interpretation in certain circumstances. Whilst the rights and obligations of the parties to a legal document may be governed by Luxembourg law, in certain circumstances (for example insolvency proceedings) other legal systems may take priority which may affect the enforceability of existing transactions.

5.4.3 Tax

The tax consequences to the Sub-Fund and to shareholders, the ability of the Sub-Fund as a foreign investor to invest in the markets and to repatriate its assets including any income and profit earned on those assets and other operations of the Sub-Fund are based on existing regulations and are subject to change through legislative, judicial or administrative action in the various jurisdictions in which the Fund operates. There can be no guarantee that income tax legislation and laws or regulations governing the Fund's operations and investments will not be changed in a manner that may adversely affect the Fund.

Under the terms of the FATCA Law and CRS Law, the Fund is likely to be treated as a Luxembourg Reporting Financial Institution. As such, the Fund may require all Shareholders to provide documentary evidence of their tax residence and all other information deemed necessary to comply with the above mentioned regulations.

Should the Fund become subject to a withholding tax and/or penalties as a result of noncompliance under the FATCA Law and/or penalties as a result of non-compliance under the CRS Law, the value of the Shares held by all Shareholders may be materially affected.

Furthermore, the Fund may also be required to withhold tax on certain payments to its Shareholders which would not be compliant with FATCA (i.e. the so-called foreign passthru payments withholding tax obligation).

5.4.4 Segregation of Sub-Funds

The Fund is a single legal entity incorporated as an "umbrella fund" comprised of separate Sub-Funds. Under Luxembourg law, each Sub-Fund represents a segregated pool of assets and liabilities. By operation of the law, the rights and claims of creditors and counterparties of the Fund arising in respect of the creation, operation or liquidation of a Sub-Fund will be limited to the assets allocated to that Sub-Fund. However, while these provisions are binding in a Luxembourg court, these provisions have not been tested in other jurisdictions, and a creditor or counterparty might seek to attach or seize assets of a Sub-Fund in satisfaction of an obligation owed in relation to another Sub-Fund in a jurisdiction which would not recognise the principle of segregation of liability between Sub-Funds. Moreover, under Luxembourg law, there is no legal segregation of assets and liabilities between Share Classes of the same Sub-Fund. In the event that, for any reason, assets allocated to a Share Class become insufficient to pay for the liabilities allocated to that Share Class, the assets allocated to other Share Classes of the Sub-Fund will be used to pay for those liabilities. As a result, the Net Asset Value of the other Share Classes may also be reduced.

5.5 Certain financial instruments and investment techniques

5.5.1 OTC financial derivative instruments

In general, there is less government regulation and supervision of transactions in OTC markets than of transactions entered into on organised exchanges. OTC derivatives are executed directly with the counterparty rather than through a recognised exchange and clearing house. Counterparties to OTC derivatives are not afforded the same protections as may apply to those trading on recognised exchanges, such as the performance guarantee of a clearing house.

The principal risk when engaging in OTC derivatives (such as non-exchange traded options, forwards, swaps or contracts for difference) is the risk of default by a counterparty who has become insolvent or is otherwise unable or refuses to honour its obligations as required by the terms of the instrument. OTC derivatives may expose a Sub-Fund to the risk that the counterparty will not settle a transaction in accordance with its terms, or will delay the settlement of the transaction, because of a dispute over the terms of the contract (whether or not *bona fide*) or because of the insolvency, bankruptcy or other credit or liquidity problems of the counterparty. Counterparty risk is generally mitigated by the transfer or pledge of collateral in favour of the Sub-Fund. The value of the collateral may fluctuate, however, and it may be difficult to sell, so there are no assurances that the value of collateral held will be sufficient to cover the amount owed to a Fund.

Where specified in the Supplements, certain Sub-Funds may enter into OTC derivatives cleared through a clearinghouse that serves as a central counterparty. Central clearing is designed to reduce counterparty risk and increase liquidity compared to bilaterally-cleared OTC derivatives, but it does not eliminate those risks completely. The central counterparty will require margin from the clearing broker which will in turn require margin from the Sub-Fund. There is a risk of loss by a Sub-Fund of its initial and variation margin deposits in the event of default of the clearing broker with which the Sub-Fund has an open position or if margin is not identified and correctly report to the particular Sub-Fund, in particular where margin is held in an omnibus account maintained by the clearing broker with the central counterparty. In the event that the clearing broker becomes insolvent, the Sub-Fund may not be able to transfer or "port" its positions to another clearing broker.

EU Regulation 648/2012 on OTC derivatives, central counterparties and trade repositories (also known as the European Market Infrastructure Regulation or EMIR) requires certain eligible OTC derivatives to be submitted for clearing to regulated central clearing counterparties and the reporting of certain details to trade repositories. In addition, EMIR imposes requirements for appropriate procedures and arrangements to measure, monitor and mitigate operational and counterparty risk in respect of OTC derivatives which are not subject to mandatory clearing. Ultimately, these requirements are likely to include the exchange and segregation of collateral by the parties, including by the Fund. While some of the obligations under EMIR have come into force, a number of the requirements are subject to phase-in periods and certain key issues have not been finalised by the date of this Prospectus. It is as yet unclear how the OTC derivatives market will adapt to the new regulatory regime. Accordingly, it is difficult to predict the full impact of EMIR on the Fund, which may include an increase in the overall costs of entering into and maintaining OTC derivatives.

Shareholders should be aware that the regulatory changes arising from EMIR and other applicable laws requiring central clearing of OTC derivatives may in due course adversely

affect the ability of the Sub-Funds to adhere to their respective investment policies and achieve their investment objective.

Investments in OTC derivatives may be subject to the risk of differing valuations arising out of different permitted valuation methods. Although the Fund has implemented appropriate valuation procedures to determine and verify the value of OTC derivatives, certain transactions are complex, and valuation may only be provided by a limited number of market participants who may also be acting as the counterparty to the transactions. Inaccurate valuation can result in inaccurate recognition of gains or losses and counterparty exposure.

Unlike exchange-traded derivatives, which are standardised with respect to their terms and conditions, OTC derivatives are generally established through negotiation with the other party to the instrument. While this type of arrangement allows greater flexibility to tailor the instrument to the needs of the parties, OTC derivatives may involve greater legal risk than exchange-traded instruments, as there may be a risk of loss if the agreement is deemed not to be legally enforceable or not documented correctly. There also may be a legal or documentation risk that the parties may disagree as to the proper interpretation of the terms of the agreement. However, these risks are generally mitigated, to a certain extent, by the use of industry-standard agreements such as those published by the International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA).

5.5.2 Securities lending, repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions

Securities lending transactions, repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions involve certain risks and there can be no assurance that the objective sought to be obtained from the use of such techniques will be achieved.

The principal risk when engaging in securities lending transactions, repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions is the risk of default by a counterparty who has become insolvent or is otherwise unable or refuses to honour its obligations to return securities or cash to the Sub-Fund as required by the terms of the transaction. Counterparty risk is generally mitigated by the transfer or pledge of collateral in favour of the Sub-Fund. However, there are certain risks associated with collateral management, including difficulties in selling collateral and/or losses incurred upon realization of collateral, as described below.

Securities lending transactions, repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions also entail liquidity risks due, *inter alia*, to locking cash or securities positions in transactions of excessive size or duration relative to the liquidity profile of the Sub-Fund or delays in recovering cash or securities paid to the counterparty. These circumstances may delay or restrict the ability of the Fund to meet redemption requests. The Sub-Fund may also incur operational risks such as, *inter alia*, non-settlement or delay in settlement of instructions, failure or delays in satisfying delivery obligations under sales of securities, and legal risks related to the documentation used in respect of such transactions.

5.5.3 Total return swaps

Total return swaps involve certain risks and there can be no assurance that the objective sought to be obtained from the use of such techniques will be achieved. A total return swap is an OTC derivative contract in which the seller of the total return transfers the entire economic output, including interest and fee income, gains and losses from price changes and credit losses of the reference debt to a total return recipient. In return, the total return recipient will

make an advance payment or regular payments against the overall return seller, where the instalments may be fixed or variable. Therefore, a total return swap typically comprises a combination of market risk, interest rate risk and counterpart risk. As a result of periodic settlement of the outstanding amounts and / or periodic margins within the framework of the respective contractual agreement, under unusual market conditions it may be that a counterparty does not have sufficient funds to pay the amounts due. In addition, each total return swap is a tailor-made transaction, including its reference position, duration and contractual conditions, including the frequency and prerequisite of the settlement. This absence of standardization may adversely affect the price or conditions under which a total rate swap is liquidated or closed.

As a result, each overall rate swap contains a certain degree of liquidity risk. Ultimately, an overall rate swap like any OTC derivative is a bilateral agreement with a counterparty that may not be able to meet its obligations under the global rate swap for any reason. Each contracting party of the overall rate of return is therefore exposed to counterparty risk and, where the contract covers the use of collateral, also exposed to the risk of the management of such collateral.

5.5.4 Collateral management

Counterparty risk arising from investments in OTC financial derivative instruments and securities lending transactions, repurchase agreements and buy-sell back transactions is generally mitigated by the transfer or pledge of collateral in favour of the Sub-Fund. However, transactions may not be fully collateralised. Fees and returns due to the Sub-Fund may not be collateralised. If a counterparty defaults, the Sub-Fund may need to sell non-cash collateral received at prevailing market prices. In such a case the Sub-Fund could realise a loss due, *inter alia*, to inaccurate pricing or monitoring of the collateral or illiquidity of the market on which the collateral is traded. Difficulties in selling collateral may delay or restrict the ability of the Sub-Fund to meet redemption requests.

A Sub-Fund may also incur a loss in reinvesting cash collateral received, where permitted. Such a loss may arise due to a decline in the value of the investments made. A decline in the value of such investments would reduce the amount of collateral available to be returned by the Sub-Fund to the counterparty as required by the terms of the transaction. The Sub-Fund would be required to cover the difference in value between the collateral originally received and the amount available to be returned to the counterparty, thereby resulting in a loss to the Sub-Fund.

5.5.5 Contracts for difference ("CFD")

When these transactions are used in order to hedge risk, they imply that the Fund bears a counterparty risk in respect of the protection seller. This risk is, however, mitigated by the fact that the Fund will only enter into CFD transactions with highly rated financial institutions.

CFDs used for a purpose other than hedging, such as for efficient portfolio management purposes, may present a risk of liquidity if the position must be liquidated before its maturity for any reason. The Fund will mitigate this risk by limiting in an appropriate manner the use of this type of transaction.

The legal risk inherent to documentation is mitigated by the adoption of ISDA and CSA standard contracts.

Finally, the valuation of CFDs may give rise to difficulties which traditionally occur in connection with the valuation of OTC contracts.

5.5.6 Asset Backed Securities

Some Sub-Funds may invest in asset backed securities ("**ABS**"), which are debt securities based on a pool of assets or collateralised by the cash flows from a specific pool of underlying assets. The investment in ABS cannot represent more than 20% of the relevant Sub-Fund's net assets, unless otherwise specifically indicated in the investment policy of a specific Sub-Fund.

The market value of a portfolio of ABS generally will fluctuate with, among other things, the financial condition of the obligors or issuers of the portfolio and the underlying assets, general economic conditions, the condition of certain financial markets, political events, developments or trends in any particular industry and changes in prevailing interest rates.

ABS are often subject to extension and prepayment risks which may have substantial impact on the timing of their cashflows. As a result, no assurance can be made as to the exact timing of cashflows from the portfolio of securities. This uncertainty may affect the returns, liquidity and price volatility of the Sub-Fund.

In addition, to the extent that they are not guaranteed, each type of ABS entails specific credit risks depending on the type of assets involved and the legal structure used.

5.5.7 Financial Derivative Instruments and Hedging Strategies

Investments of a Sub-Fund may be composed of securities with varying degrees of volatility and may comprise financial derivative instruments. Since financial derivative instruments may be geared instruments, their use may result in greater fluctuations of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund concerned.

A Sub-Fund may use financial derivative instruments for efficient portfolio management or to attempt to hedge or reduce the overall risk of its investments or, if disclosed in relation to any Sub-Fund, may be used as part of the principal investment policies. A Sub-Fund's ability to use these strategies may be limited by market conditions, regulatory limits and tax considerations. Use of these strategies involves special risks, including:

- 1. dependence on the AIFM's ability to predict movements in the price of securities being hedged and movements in interest rates;
- imperfect correlation between the movements in securities or currency on which a derivatives contract is based and movements in the securities or currencies in the relevant Sub-Fund;
- 3. the absence of a liquid market for any particular instrument at any particular time;

- 4. the degree of leverage inherent in futures trading (i.e. the loan margin deposits normally required in future trading means that futures trading may be highly leveraged). Accordingly, a relatively small price movement in a futures contract may result in an immediate and substantial loss to a Fund;
- 5. possible impediments to efficient portfolio management or the ability to meet repurchase requests or other short term obligations because a percentage of a Fund's assets will be segregated to cover its obligations.

Upon request by any Shareholder, information relating to the risk management methods employed for any Sub-Fund, including the quantitative limits that are applied and any recent developments in risk and yield characteristics of the main categories of investments, may be provided to such Shareholder.

5.6 Sustainability Risks

"Sustainability Risk" means an environmental, social or governance event or condition that, if it occurs, could cause an actual or a potential material negative impact on the value of the investments made by a Sub-Fund. Such risk is principally linked to climate-related events resulting from climate change (i.e., Physical Risks) or to the society's response to climate change (i.e., Transition Risks), which may result in unanticipated losses that could affect a Sub-Fund's investments and financial condition. Social events (e.g., inequality, inclusiveness, labour relations, investment in human capital, accident prevention, changing customer behaviour, etc.) or governance shortcomings (e.g., recurrent significant breach of international agreements, bribery issues, products quality and safety, selling practices, etc.) may also translate into Sustainability Risks.

Pursuant to the SFDR, a Sub-Fund is required to disclose the manner in which Sustainability Risks are integrated into the investment decision and the results of the assessment of the likely impacts of Sustainability Risks on the returns of such Sub-Fund.

A Sub-Fund is exposed to Sustainability Risks. Such Sustainability Risks are integrated into the investment decision making and risk monitoring to the extent that they represent a potential or actual material risks and/or opportunities to maximising the long-term risk-adjusted returns.

The impacts following the occurrence of a Sustainability Risk may be numerous and vary depending on the specific risk, region and asset class. In general, where a sustainability risk occurs in respect of an asset, there will be a negative impact on, or entire loss of, its value.

Such assessment of the likely impact must therefore be conducted at portfolio level, further detail and specific information is given in each relevant Supplement.

The investments underlying this financial product do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities as per the Taxonomy Regulation.

The AIFM does not consider the adverse impacts of its investment decisions on Sustainability Factors (*i.e.*, environmental, social and employee matters, respect for human rights, anticorruption and anti-bribery matters) as there is no sufficient data available in satisfactory quality to allow the AIFM to adequately assess the potential adverse impact of its investment decisions on Sustainability Factors.

6. MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

6.1 The Board of Directors

The members of the Board of Directors will be elected by the general meeting of shareholders subject to the approval of the CSSF. The Board of Directors is vested with the broadest powers to act on behalf of the Fund and to take any actions necessary or useful to fulfil the Fund's corporate purpose, subject to the powers expressly assigned by law or the Articles of Association to the general meeting of shareholders.

The Board of Directors is responsible for conducting the overall management and business affairs of the Fund in accordance with the Articles of Association. In particular, the Board of Directors is responsible for defining the investment objective and policy of the Sub-Funds and their risk profile, subject to the principle of risk diversification, and for the overall supervision of the management and administration of the Fund, including the selection and supervision of the AIFM and the general monitoring of the performance and operations of the Fund.

For the current composition of the Board of Directors, please refer to the Directory.

6.2 The AIFM

The Fund has appointed Alfa Kraft Fonder AB as its alternative investment fund manager (the "**AIFM**") in accordance with the provisions of the 2013 Law, the 2010 Law and pursuant to the Management Agreement.

The AIFM is a public limited liability company (*Aktiebolag*) incorporated under the Swedish *Aktiebolagslag* (SFS 2005:551). The AIFM is authorised and regulated by the Swedish Financial Supervisory Authority (*Finansinspektionen*). Its main business activity is to fulfil the functions of AIFM for the Fund and other funds as required under the AIFMD and to provide investment management expertise.

The relationship between the Fund and the AIFM is subject to the terms of the Management Agreement. Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the AIFM is responsible for the portfolio and risk management of the Fund as well as the marketing of the Shares, subject to the overall supervision of the Board of Directors. This includes in particular the monitoring of the investment policy, investment strategies and performance, as well as risk management, liquidity management, management of conflicts of interest and supervision of delegates. The AIFM has authority to act on behalf of the Fund within its function.

In order to cover its professional liability risk resulting from the activities it may carry out, the AIFM holds sufficient additional own funds which are appropriate to cover potential liability risks arising from professional negligence.

The AIFM has a remuneration policy in place which seeks to ensure that the interests of the AIFM and the Shareholders of the Fund are aligned. Such remuneration policy imposes remuneration rules on staff and senior management within the AIFM whose activities have an impact on the risk profile of the Fund. The AIFM shall seek to ensure that such remuneration policies and practices will be consistent with sound and effective risk management and with the AIFMD and ESMA's remuneration guidelines. The AIFM shall also seek to ensure that such remuneration policies and practices shall not encourage risk taking which is inconsistent with the risk profile and constitutional documents of the Fund.

The AIFM shall seek to ensure that the remuneration policy will, at all times, be consistent with the business strategy, objectives, values and interests of the Fund and the Shareholders and that the remuneration policy will include measures that seek to ensure that all relevant conflicts of interest can be managed appropriately at all times.

For the purpose of a more efficient conduct of its business, the AIFM may delegate to third parties the power to carry out some of its functions on its behalf, subject to limitations and requirements, including the existence of objective reasons, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. The delegated functions shall remain under the supervision and responsibility of the AIFM, and the delegation shall not prevent the AIFM from acting, or the Fund from being managed, in the best interests of the Shareholders. The delegation to third parties is subject to the prior approval of the Finansinspektionen.

In conducting its activities, the AIFM shall act honestly and fairly, with due skill, care and diligence, in the best interests of the Fund, its Shareholders, and the integrity of the market.

The Management Agreement has no fixed duration, and each party may, in principle, terminate the agreement on not less than ninety (90) calendar days' prior written notice. The Management Agreement may also be terminated on shorter notice in certain circumstances, for instance where one party commits a material breach of its obligations. The Management Agreement contains provisions exempting the AIFM from liability and indemnifying the AIFM in certain circumstances. However, the liability of the AIFM towards the Fund will not be affected by any delegation of functions by the AIFM.

6.2.1 Risk management function

The AIFM employs an appropriate risk management system consisting of mainly two elements: (i) an organisational element in which the permanent risk management function plays a central role, and (ii) a procedural element documented in the risk management policy, which sets out measures and procedures employed to measure and manage risks, the safeguards for independent performance of the risk management function, the techniques used to manage risks and the details of the allocation of responsibilities within the AIFM for risk management and operating procedures.

The central task of the risk management function of the AIFM is the implementation of effective risk management procedures in order to identify, measure, manage, and monitor on an ongoing basis all risks to which the or each Sub-Fund is or may be exposed.

In addition, the risk management function of the AIFM shall ensure that the risk profile of each Sub-Fund as disclosed in this Prospectus is consistent with the risk limits as defined by the AIFM in compliance with the risk profile as approved by the Board of Directors

Furthermore, the risk management function shall update the board of directors of the AIFM on a regular basis about (i) the consistency between and compliance with the risk limits set and the risk profile of the Fund and of each Sub-Fund, and (ii) the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management process, indicating in particular whether appropriate remedial measures have or will be taken in the event of actual or anticipated deficiencies. The risk management function is responsible for regularly outlining to senior management the current level of risk incurred by the Fund and by each Sub-Fund and any actual or foreseeable breaches of any risk limits set so as to ensure that prompt and appropriate action can be taken.

The risk management function conducts on a regular basis (i) stress tests and scenario analyses to address risks arising from potential changes in market conditions that might

adversely impact the Sub-Funds, and (ii) back-tests in order to review the validity of risk measurement arrangements.

The business unit of the AIFM responsible for the risk management function is functionally and hierarchically separated from the business units performing operating services, including the business unit responsible for the portfolio management.

6.2.2 Leverage monitoring

Furthermore, the risk management function of the AIFM is responsible for regularly monitoring the leverage exposure for each Sub-Fund.

Under the AIFM Laws and Regulations, "leverage" is defined as being any method by which the AIFM increases the exposure of a Sub-Fund whether through borrowing of cash or securities, leverage embedded in derivative positions or by any other means. The leverage creates risks for the Sub-Fund. A leverage (as defined by the AIFMD) of 100% means a leverage-free portfolio.

The AIFM Laws and Regulations use two distinct definitions of leverage, both of which are calculated on a regular basis by the AIFM:

- a) Under the "gross method" (as defined by the AIFM Laws and Regulations), the leverage is calculated as the ratio between the Sub-Fund's investment exposure (calculated by adding the absolute values of all portfolio positions, including the sum of notionals of the derivative instruments used but excluding cash and cash equivalents) and the Net Asset Value; and
- b) Alternatively, the "commitment method" (as defined by the AIFM Laws and Regulations) takes into account netting and hedging arrangements and is defined as the ratio between the Sub-Fund's net investment exposure (not excluding cash and cash equivalents) and the Net Asset Value.

For a description of the leverage and the authorised maximum of leverage used in each Sub-Fund, please refer to the relevant Supplement. The actual level of leverage used will be disclosed in the Annual Report.

6.2.3 Liquidity management

The AIFM employs an appropriate liquidity management system and has adopted procedures which enable it to monitor the liquidity risk of the Fund and to ensure that the liquidity profile of the investments of the Fund complies with its underlying obligations and that the Fund will be in a position to satisfy redemption request of Shareholders in accordance with the provisions of this Prospectus and the Articles of Association. The liquidity management system ensures that the Fund maintains a level of liquidity appropriate to its underlying obligations based on an assessment of the relative liquidity of the Fund's assets in the market, taking account of the time required for liquidation and the price or value at which those assets can be liquidated and their sensitivity to other market risks or factors.

The AIFM monitors the liquidity profile of the portfolio of assets having regard to the profile of the Shareholder base of the Fund, the relative size of investments and the redemption terms to which these investments are subject and actual and potential redemption requests of Shareholders both in normal and in exceptional circumstances. The AIFM implements and

maintains appropriate liquidity measurement arrangements and procedures to assess the quantitative and qualitative risks of positions and intended investments which have or may have a material impact on the liquidity profile of the portfolio of the Fund's assets to enable their effects on the overall liquidity profile to be appropriately measured and considered. The AIFM also puts into effect the tools and arrangements necessary to manage the liquidity of the Fund. The AIFM will ensure the coherence of the investment strategy, the liquidity profile and the redemption policy.

The AIFM proceeds, on a regular basis, with stress tests simulating normal and exceptional circumstances in order to evaluate and measure the liquidity risk of the Fund.

6.2.4 Periodical information to Shareholders regarding risk liquidity management

The AIFM will periodically (and on at least an annual basis) make available to Shareholders the following information, which shall be available by contacting the AIFM at its registered office:

- a) the current risk profile of each Sub-Fund and the risk management systems employed by the AIFM to manage those risks, including (i) measures to assess the sensitivity of the Fund portfolio to the most relevant risks to which the Fund is or could be exposed;
 (ii) risk limits set by the AIFM that have been or are likely to be exceeded and where these risk limits have been exceeded, a description of the circumstances and the remedial measures taken; (iii) any change to the risk management systems employed by the AIFM and the anticipated impact of the change on the Fund and the Shareholders;
- b) information on any changes to the AIFM's liquidity management systems and procedures for the Fund; and
- c) the percentage of each Sub-Fund's assets which are subject to special arrangements arising from their illiquid nature.

6.3 The Depositary and Paying Agent

The Fund has appointed CACEIS Bank, Luxembourg Branch, as its depositary with responsibility for the:

- (a) safekeeping of the assets,
- (b) oversight duties,
- (c) cash flow monitoring, and
- (d) principal paying agent functions

pursuant to the AIFMD, the 2013 Law and the Depositary Agreement dated 10 October 2024 entered into between the Fund, the AIFM and the Depositary.

The Depositary has its place of business at 5, Allée Scheffer, L-2520 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg and is registered with the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register under number B 209.310. It is a branch of CACEIS BANK, a public limited liability company (société anonyme) incorporated under the laws of France and registered under company number R.C.S. 692 024 722 with the Paris trade and companies register, with its registered office at 1-3, place Valhubert, 75013 Paris, France, an authorised credit institution supervised

by the European Central Bank and the Autorité de contrôle prudentiel et de resolution. CACEIS BANK is further authorised to exercise through its Luxembourg branch banking and central administration activities in Luxembourg.

(a) Safekeeping of the assets

The Depositary is responsible in accordance with the applicable Luxembourg laws and regulations, in particular the AIFM Laws and Regulations and the Depositary Agreement for the safekeeping of the financial instruments that can be held in custody and for the record keeping and verification of ownership of the other assets of the Fund.

Discharge of liability

The Depositary may in certain circumstances and in accordance with article 19 (13) of the 2013 Law, discharge itself of liability. In the event where certain financial instruments are required by a foreign local law or regulation to be held in custody by a local entity, and no local entity satisfies the delegation requirements in accordance with article 19 (11) d) (ii) of the 2013 Law, the Depositary may nonetheless discharge itself of liability provided that specific conditions in accordance with article 19 (14) of the 2013 Law and the Depositary Agreement are met.

(b) Oversight

The Depositary will, in accordance with the 2013 Law, the AIFMD and the Depositary Agreement:

- ensure that the sale, issue, repurchase, redemption and cancellation of Shares are carried out in accordance with the 2013 Law, the 2010 Law, the Prospectus and with the Articles of Association;
- ensure that the Net Asset Value is calculated in accordance with the 2013 Law, the 2010 Law, the Prospectus and with the Articles of Association and the procedures laid down in article 19 of AIFMD;
- carry out the instructions of the Fund and/or AIFM acting on behalf of the Fund, unless they conflict with the 2013 Law, the 2010 Law, the Prospectus or with the Articles of Association;
- ensure that in transactions involving the Fund's assets any consideration is remitted to the Fund within the usual time limits; and
- ensure that the income of the Fund is applied in accordance with the 2013
 Law, the 2010 Law, the Prospectus and with the Articles of Association.

(c) Cash flow monitoring

The Depositary is required under the 2013 Law, the AIFMD and the Depositary Agreement to perform certain cash flow monitoring duties as follows:

(i) reconcile all cash flow movements and perform such a reconciliation on a daily basis;

- (ii) identify cash flows, which are in its reasonable opinion, significant, and in particular those which could be inconsistent with the Fund's operations. The Depositary will perform its review using the previous Business Day end-of-day records;
- (iii) ensure that all bank accounts in the Fund's structure are in name of the Fund or in the name of its manager the AIFM on behalf of the Fund;
- (iv) ensure that the relevant banks are EU credit institutions or equivalent;
- (v) ensure that the monies paid by the Shareholders have been received and booked in cash accounts and booked in either cash accounts or third party accounts as defined in the Depositary Agreement.

The Depositary will also ensure that cash flows are properly monitored in accordance with the 2010 Law and the Depositary Agreement.

(d) Paying Agent

The Depositary will also act as Paying Agent for the Fund pursuant to the Depositary Agreement. The Paying Agent is responsible for receiving payments for subscriptions of Shares and depositing such payments in the Fund's bank accounts opened with the Depositary and distributing income and dividends to the Shareholders. The Paying Agent shall make payment of proceeds from the repurchase of Interest from time to time.

Depositary's conflicts of interest

From time to time conflicts of interest may arise between the Depositary and the delegates, for example where an appointed delegate is an affiliated group company which receives remuneration for another custodial service it provides to the Fund. On an ongoing basis, the Depositary analyses, based on applicable laws and regulations any potential conflicts of interest that may arise while carrying out its functions. Any identified potential conflict of interest is managed in accordance with the Depositary's conflicts of interest policy which is subject to applicable laws and regulation for a credit institution according to and under the terms of the 1993 Law on the financial sector, as amended from time to time.

Further, potential conflicts of interest may arise from the provision by the Depositary and/or its affiliates of other services to the Fund, the AIFM and/or other parties. For example, the Depositary and/or its affiliates may act as the depositary, custodian and/or administrator of other funds. It is therefore possible that the Depositary (or any of its affiliates) may in the course of its business have conflicts or potential conflicts of interest with those of the Fund, the AIFM and/or other funds for which the Depositary (or any of its affiliates) act.

The Depositary has implemented and maintains a management of conflicts of interest policy, aiming namely at:

identifying and analysing potential situations of conflicts of interest;

- recording, managing and monitoring the conflicts of interest situations;
- implementing a functional and hierarchical segregation making sure that operations are carried out at arm's length from the Depositary business;
- implementing preventive measures to decline any activity giving rise to the conflict of interest such as:
 - the Depositary and any third party to whom the custodian functions have been delegated do not accept any investment management mandates;
 - the Depositary does not accept any delegation of the compliance and risk management functions;
 - the Depositary has a strong escalation process in place to ensure that regulatory breaches are notified to compliance which reports material breaches to senior management and the board of directors of the Depositary;
 - a dedicated permanent internal audit department provides independent, objective risk assessment and evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls and governance processes.

The Depositary confirms that based on the above no potential situation of conflicts of interest could be identified.

An up to date information on conflicts of interest policy referred to above may be obtained, upon request, from the Depositary or via the following website link:

https://www.caceis.com/fileadmin/documents/pdf/Who-We-Are/Compliance/2022/Summaryconflicts-of-interest-2022.pdf

Termination

The Depositary Agreement may be terminated at any time by either the AIFM acting on behalf of the Fund or the Depositary upon ninety (90) days' prior written notice addressed to the other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Depositary Agreement may also be terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Depositary Agreement.

The Depositary will have to be replaced within two (2) months from the termination of the Depositary Agreement with a new depositary bank and paying agent that will assume the responsibilities, duties and obligations of the Depositary. The Depositary shall, in the event of termination of the Depositary Agreement, deliver or cause to be delivered to the succeeding depositary bank and paying agent, in bearer form or duly endorsed form for transfer, at the expense of the Fund, all securities and cash of the Fund with or held by the Depositary and all certified copies and other documents related thereto in the Depositary's possession which are valid and in force at the date of termination.

6.4 The Administrator

The Fund and the AIFM have jointly appointed CACEIS Bank, Luxembourg Branch as administrative, registrar and transfer agent and as domiciliary agent of the Fund (the Administrator) pursuant to the Administration Agreement.

CACEIS Bank, Luxembourg Branch is registered with the R.C.S. under B 209310, having its registered office at 5, Allée Scheffer, L-2520 Luxembourg. The Administrator is authorised and regulated by the CSSF in Luxembourg under the 1993 Law.

The relationship between the Fund, the AIFM and the Administrator is subject to the terms of the Administration Agreement. Under the terms of the Administration Agreement, the Administrator will carry out all general administrative duties related to the administration of the Fund required by Luxembourg law, calculate the Net Asset Value per Share, maintain the accounting records of the Fund, as well as process all subscriptions, redemptions, conversions, and transfers of Shares, and register these transactions in the register of Shareholders. In addition, as registrar and transfer agent of the Fund, the Administrator is also in charge of collecting the required information and performing verifications on Shareholders to comply with applicable anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism rules and regulations.

The Administrator is not responsible for any investment decisions of the Fund or the effect of such investment decisions on the performance of the Fund. For the avoidance of doubt, the Administrator has not been appointed by the AIFM as the "external valuer" (within the meaning of the AIFMD) for the assets of the Fund.

The Administration Agreement has no fixed duration and each party may, in principle, terminate the agreement on not less than ninety (90) calendar days' prior written notice. The Administration Agreement may also be terminated on shorter notice in certain circumstances, for instance where one party commits a material breach of its obligations. The Administration Agreement may be terminated by the AIFM with immediate effect if this is deemed by the AIFM to be in the interest of the Shareholders. The Administration Agreement contains provisions exempting the Administrator from liability and indemnifying the Administrator in certain circumstances. However, the liability of the Administrator towards the AIFM and the Fund will not be affected by any delegation of functions by the Administrator.

The AIFM and the Fund reserve the right to change the administration arrangements described above by agreement with the Administration Agent and/or to appoint another service provider in Luxembourg to carry out the functions of administration agent. Shareholders will be notified in due course.

6.5 The Auditor

The Fund has appointed Deloitte Audit as its independent auditor (*réviseur d'entreprises agréé*) within the meaning of the 2010 Law. The Auditor is elected by the general meeting of Shareholders. The Auditor will inspect the accounting information contained in the Annual Report and fulfil other duties prescribed by the 2010 Law.

6.6 Conflicts of interest

The Board of Directors, the AIFM, the Depositary, the Administrator and the other service providers of the Fund, and/or their respective affiliates, members, employees or any person connected with them may be subject to various conflicts of interest in their relationships with the Fund.

As further described in the Articles of Association, any director of the Fund who has, directly or indirectly, an interest in a transaction submitted to the approval of the Board of Directors which conflicts with the Fund's interest, must inform the Board of Directors. The director may

not take part in the discussions on and may not vote on the transaction. Where, by reason of a conflicting interest, the number of directors required in order to validly deliberate is not met, the board of directors may submit the decision on this specific item to the general meeting of shareholders.

The AIFM has adopted and implemented a conflicts of interest policy and has made appropriate organisational and administrative arrangements to identify and manage conflicts of interest so as to minimise the risk of the Fund's interests being prejudiced, and if they cannot be avoided, ensure that the Fund is treated fairly.

6.7 Execution of transactions

The AIFM has adopted a "best execution" policy with the objective of obtaining the best possible result for the Fund when executing decisions to deal on behalf of the Fund or placing orders to deal on behalf of the Fund with other entities for execution. Further information on the best execution policy may be obtained from the AIFM upon request.

7. SHARES

7.1 Shares, Sub-Funds and Share Classes

7.1.1 Shares

The share capital of the Fund is represented by fully paid up Shares of no par value. The share capital of the Fund is at all times equal to the Net Asset Value of the Fund, which is the total Net Asset Value of all Sub-Funds expressed in the Reference Currency of the Fund. The share capital of the Fund must at all times be at least equal to the minimum required by the 2010 Law, which is currently one million two hundred and fifty thousand euro (EUR 1,250,000.-). Such minimum capital must be reached within a period of six (6) months after the date on which the Company has been authorised as an investment company with variable share capital under the 2010 Law.

The Shares will be issued in registered form only and without certificates. Written confirmation of registration will be issued upon request and at the expense of the requesting shareholder. The registration of a shareholder in the register of shareholders of the Fund evidences the shareholder's ownership right towards the Fund.

The Fund will recognise only one single shareholder per Share. In case a Share is owned by several persons, they must appoint a single representative who will represent them towards the Fund. The Fund has the right to suspend the exercise of all rights attached to that Share until such representative has been appointed.

The Shares carry no preferential or pre-emptive rights: the Fund is authorised without limitation to issue an unlimited number of fully paid up Shares on any Valuation Day without reserving to existing Shareholders a preferential or pre-emptive right to subscribe for the Shares to be issued.

Each Share entitles the shareholder to one (1) vote at all general meetings of shareholders of the Fund and at all meetings of the Sub-Fund or Share Class concerned.

Fractions of Shares will be issued up to three (3) decimal places. Such fractional Shares will be entitled to participate on a *pro rata* basis in the net assets attributable to the Sub-Fund or Share Class to which they belong in accordance with their terms, as set out in this Prospectus. Fractions of Shares do not confer any voting rights on their holders. However, if the sum of the fractional Shares held by the same shareholder in the same Share Class represents one or more entire Shares, such shareholder will benefit from the corresponding voting right attached to the number of entire Shares.

Shares are each entitled to participate in the net assets allocated to the relevant Sub-Fund or Share Class in accordance with their terms, as set out in the Supplements. Shares will be issued on each Subscription Day immediately after the time of valuation and entitled to participate in the net assets of the Sub-Fund or Share Class as of that point, as described in more detail in section 7.4 (Subscription for Shares) below. Shares will be redeemed on each Redemption Day at the time of valuation and entitled to participate in the net assets of the Sub-Fund or Share Shares will be redeemed on each Redemption Day at the time of valuation and entitled to participate in the net assets of the Sub-Fund or Share Class until and including that point, as described in more detail in section 7.5 (Redemption of Shares) below.

Shares redeemed will be cancelled.

7.1.2 Sub-Funds

The Fund is a single legal entity incorporated as an umbrella fund comprised of separate Sub-Funds. Each Share issued by the Fund is a share in a specific Sub-Fund. Each Sub-Fund has a specific investment objective and policy as further described in its Supplement. A separate portfolio of assets is maintained for each Sub-Fund and invested for its exclusive benefit in accordance with its investment objective and policy.

With regard to third parties, in particular towards the Fund's creditors, each Sub-Fund shall be exclusively responsible for all liabilities attributable to it. As a consequence, the assets of each Sub-Fund may only be used to meet the debts, liabilities and obligations attributable to that Sub-Fund. In the event that, for any reason, the liabilities arising in respect of the creation, operation and liquidation of a Sub-Fund exceed the assets allocated to it, creditors will have no recourse against the assets of any other Sub-Fund to satisfy such deficit. Assets and liabilities are allocated to each Sub-Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association, as set out in section 8.2 (Valuation procedure) below.

Each Sub-Fund may be established for an unlimited or limited duration as specified in its Supplement. In the latter case, upon expiry of the term, the Fund may extend the duration of the Sub-Fund once or several times. Shareholders will be notified at each extension. At the expiry of the duration of a Sub-Fund, the Fund will redeem all the Shares in that Sub-Fund. The relevant Supplement will indicate the duration of each Sub-Fund and the conditions for its extension, where applicable.

Additional Sub-Funds may be established from time to time without the consent of Shareholders in other Sub-Funds. A new Supplement will be added to this Prospectus for each new Sub-Fund established.

7.1.3 Share Classes

The Sub-Funds may offer several Share Classes, as set out in the Supplements. Each Share Class within a Sub-Fund may have different features such as the fee structure, minimum subscription or holding amounts, currency, different hedging techniques or distribution policy or other distinctive features, or be offered or reserved to different types of Shareholders. Shareholders will be able to choose the Share Class with the features most suitable to their individual circumstances.

Each Share Class may be created for an unlimited or limited duration, as specified in the relevant Supplement. In the latter case, upon expiry of the term, the Fund may extend the duration of the Share Class once or several times. Shareholders will be notified at each extension. At the expiry of the duration of a Share Class, the Fund will redeem all the Shares in that Share Class. The relevant Supplement will indicate the duration of each Share Class and its extension, where applicable.

Additional Share Classes may be established in any Sub-Fund from time to time without the approval of Shareholders. New Share Classes will be added to the relevant Supplement. Such new Share Classes may be issued on terms and conditions that differ from the existing Share Classes. The list and details of the Share Classes established within each Sub-Fund, if any, are set out in the Supplements.

7.1.4 Change to Sub-Funds and Share Classes

The rights and restrictions attached to Shares may be modified from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association. Any changes to the Articles of Association will require a resolution of the general meeting of shareholders, as further described in section 10.2 (Meetings of Shareholders) below.

Subject to the above, the Board of Directors may change the characteristics of any existing Sub-Fund, including its objective and policy, or any existing Share Class, without the consent of Shareholders. This Prospectus will be updated as appropriate, subject to the prior approval of the CSSF. In accordance with applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders in the Sub-Fund or Share Class will be informed about the changes and, where required and depending on the materiality of the changes and the approval of the CSSF, will be given at least one month prior notice of any proposed material changes in order to arrange for the redemption of their Shares free of charge should they disagree.

7.2 Dividend distribution policy

Each Sub-Fund may offer distributing Shares and non-distributing Shares. The Supplement shall indicate whether Shares confer the right to dividend distributions (Distribution Shares) or do not confer this right (Capitalisation Shares). Distribution Shares and Capitalisation Shares issued within the same Sub-Fund will be represented by different Share Classes.

Capitalisation Shares capitalise their entire earnings whereas Distribution Shares pay dividends. Whenever dividends are distributed to holders of Distribution Shares, their Net Asset Value per Share will be reduced by an amount equal to the amount of the dividend per Share distributed, whereas the Net Asset Value per Share of Capitalisation Shares will remain unaffected by the distribution made to holders of Distribution Shares.

The Fund shall determine how the earnings of Distribution Shares shall be distributed and may declare distributions from time to time, at such time and in relation to such periods as the Fund shall determine, in the form of cash or Shares, in accordance with the dividend distribution policy adopted for such Distribution Shares as described in the relevant Supplement. The dividend distribution policy may vary between Distribution Shares within the same or different Sub-Funds. Where the dividend rate is in excess of the investment income of the Share Class, dividends will be paid out of the Share Class capital as well as from investment income and realised and unrealised capital gains. Dividend distributions are not guaranteed with respect to any Share Class. In any event, no distribution may be made if, as a result, the total Net Asset Value of the Fund would fall below the minimum share capital required by the 2010 Law which is currently one million two hundred and fifty thousand euro (EUR 1,250,000.-).

No interest shall be paid on dividend distributions declared by the Fund which have not been claimed. Dividends not claimed within five years of their declaration date will be deposited at the *Caisse de Consignation* in Luxembourg in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

7.3 Eligible Investors

Each Sub-Fund and/or each Share Class may have different or additional requirements as to the eligibility of its Shareholders. Certain Sub-Funds or Shares Classes may be reserved to specified categories of Shareholders such as institutional investors or Shareholders who are

residents of or domiciled in specific jurisdictions. Eligibility requirements for each Sub-Fund or Shares Class are set out in the Supplements.

Shares may only be acquired or held by Shareholders who satisfy all eligibility requirements for a specific Sub-Fund or Share Class, if any, as specified for the Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement (an "**Eligible Investor**").

The Board of Directors has decided that any Shareholder not qualifying as an Eligible Investor will be considered as a Prohibited Person, in addition to those persons described in section 7.10 (Prohibited Persons) below. The Fund may decline to issue any Shares and to accept any transfer of Shares, where it appears that such issue or transfer would or might result in Shares being acquired or held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons. The Fund may compulsorily redeem all Shares held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons in accordance with the procedure set out in this Prospectus (see section 7.10 (Prohibited Persons) below).

The distributors appointed by the AIFM will be in charge of the verification that each Shareholder satisfies all eligibility requirements for a specific Sub-Fund or Share Class to qualify as an Eligible Investor.

7.4 Subscription for Shares

The Board of Directors is authorized to decide about (i) the frequency and (ii) the terms and conditions pursuant to which Shares in each Sub-Fund will be issued. Unless set out otherwise in the relevant Supplement, Shares of a Sub-Fund will be issued on a continuous basis and not in the context of closings and drawdowns.

In the context of Shares to be issued on a continuous basis, applications for subscriptions can be submitted for each Subscription Day provided that a complete application is submitted by the Cut-Off Time for that Subscription Day. Applications will be processed, if accepted, at the Subscription Price applicable to that Subscription Day. The Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee) must be settled by the end of the Subscription Settlement Period. The subscription procedure is further described below. Shares will be issued on the Subscription Day and entitled to participate in the Net Asset Value of the Share Class from their issue. The Subscription Day, Cut-Off Time, and Subscription Settlement Period for each Sub-Fund or Share Class are specified in the relevant Supplement.

7.4.1 Subscription application

In the context of Shares to be issued on a continuous basis, Shares in any new Sub-Fund or Share Class may be available for subscription during an Initial Offer and will be issued on the first Subscription Day following the Initial Offer at the Initial Offer Price. Information on the Initial Offer and the Initial Offer Price of any new Sub-Fund or Share Class will be set out in the relevant Supplement, where applicable, and available from the Administrator upon request. The Fund may reschedule the Initial Offer and/or amend the Initial Offer Price.

Shares will be available for subscription on each Subscription Day at a Subscription Price equal to the Net Asset Value per Share for that Subscription Day. The Net Asset Value per Share for the Subscription Day at which an application will be processed is unknown to the Shareholders when they place their subscription applications.

A Subscription Fee may be charged on subscriptions for Shares, as set out in section 9.1 (Subscription Fee and Redemption Fee) below, which will be added to the Subscription Price. The Subscription Fee is equal to a percentage of the Subscription Price, or such other amount specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement, where applicable.

Shareholders wishing to subscribe for Shares of a Sub-Fund or Share Class will be requested to complete a Subscription Form in which they commit to subscribe and pay for the Shares. The liability of each Shareholder in respect of the Shares subscribed will be limited to the Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee). The Subscription Form must be submitted to the Administrator following the instructions on such form. The Subscription Form is available from the Administrator on request.

The Fund will only process subscription applications that it considers clear and complete. Applications will be considered complete only if the Fund has received all information and supporting documentation it deems necessary to process the application. The Fund may delay the acceptance of unclear or incomplete applications until reception of all necessary information and supporting documentation in a form satisfactory to the Fund. Unclear or incomplete applications may lead to delays in their execution. The Fund will not accept liability for any loss suffered by applicants as a result of unclear or incomplete applications. No interest will be paid to Shareholders on subscription proceeds received by the Fund prior to receiving clear and complete applications.

Applications must be submitted to the Administrator by the Cut-Off Time for the Subscription Day, as specified in the relevant Supplement, in order for such applications to be processed, if accepted, at the Subscription Price applicable to that Subscription Day. Different Cut-Off Times may apply for applications submitted by Shareholders in different time zones, provided that the applicable Cut-Off Time must always be earlier than the time when the applicable Net Asset Value is calculated. Shareholders should refer to the local sales documents for their jurisdiction to find out which Cut-Off Time is applicable to them.

Applications received after the Cut-Off Time will be treated as deemed applications received by the Cut-Off Time for the next Subscription Day. However, the Fund may accept subscription applications received after the Cut-Off Time subject to certain conditions, as set out in section 7.9 (Late trading, market timing and other prohibited practices) below.

The Fund reserves the right to accept or refuse any application in whole or in part at its discretion. Without limitation, the Fund will refuse an application for subscription where the Fund determines that the Shares would or might be held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons. In such event, subscription proceeds received by the Fund will be returned to the applicant as soon as practicable, at the risks and costs of the applicant, without interest.

The issue of Shares of a Sub-Fund or Share Class shall be suspended whenever the determination of the Net Asset Value per Share of such Sub-Fund or Share Class is suspended by the Fund, as described in section 8.4 (Temporary suspension of the Net Asset Value calculation) below.

7.4.2 Settlement of subscription

The Subscription Price may be increased by taxes and stamp duties to be paid in the countries where the Shares are offered.

The Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee) must be paid in the Reference Currency of the Share Class.

Cleared funds equal to the full amount of the Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee) must be received by the Fund by the end of the Subscription Settlement Period specified in the relevant Supplement. However, the AIFM may, in its absolute discretion, grant investors the possibility of paying the Subscription Price within three (3) Business Days following the applicable Valuation Day. Settlement details are available in the Subscription Form.

If the payment of the Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee) has not been received by the end of the Subscription Settlement Period, any pending application for Shares may be rejected or, if the application had previously been accepted by the Fund, any allocation of Shares made on the basis of the application may be cancelled by a compulsory redemption of the Shares at the applicable Redemption Price (less any Redemption Fee). The Administrator will inform the applicant that the application has been rejected or the subscription cancelled, as applicable, and the money received after the end of the Subscription Settlement Period, if any, will be returned to the applicant at its risks and costs, without interest.

The Fund reserves the right to require indemnification from the applicant against any losses, costs or expenses arising as a result of any failure to settle the Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee) by the end of the Subscription Settlement Period. The Fund may pay such losses, costs or expenses out of the proceeds of any compulsory redemption described above and/or redeem all or part of the Shareholder's other Shares, if any, in order to pay for such losses, costs or expenses.

7.4.3 Subscription in kind

The Fund may agree to issue Shares as consideration for a "contribution in kind" of assets with an aggregate value equal to the Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee), provided that such assets comply with the investment objective and policy of the Sub-Fund and any restrictions and conditions imposed by applicable laws and regulations. In accepting or rejecting such a contribution at any given time, the Fund shall take into account the interest of other Shareholders of the Sub-Fund and the principle of fair treatment. Any contribution in kind will be valued independently in a special report issued by the Auditor or any other independent auditor (*réviseur d'entreprises agréé*) agreed by the Fund. The Fund and the contributing Shareholder will agree on specific settlement procedures. Any costs incurred in connection with a contribution in kind, including the costs of issuing a valuation report, shall be borne by the contributing Shareholder or by such other third party as agreed by the Fund.

7.5 Redemption of Shares

Unless set out otherwise in the Supplements, applications for redemptions can be submitted by Shareholders for each Redemption Day provided that a complete application is submitted by the Cut-Off Time for that Redemption Day. Applications will be processed, if accepted, at the Redemption Price applicable to that Redemption Day. The Redemption Price (less any Redemption Fee) will normally be paid by the end of the Redemption Settlement Period. The redemption procedure is further described below. Shares will be redeemed on the Redemption Day and entitled to participate in the net assets of the Sub-Fund or Share Class until their redemption. The Redemption Day, Cut-Off Time, and Redemption Settlement Period for each Sub-Fund or Share Class are specified in the relevant Supplement.

7.5.1 Redemption application

Unless set out otherwise in the Supplements, Shareholders may apply for redemption of all or any of their Shares on each Redemption Day at a Redemption Price equal to the Net Asset Value per Share for that Redemption Day. The Net Asset Value per Share for the Redemption Day at which an application will be processed is unknown to the Shareholders when they place their redemption applications.

The Fund may charge a Redemption Fee on redemptions of Shares, as set out in section 9.1 (Subscription Fee and Redemption Fee) below, which will be deducted from the payment of the Redemption Price. The Redemption Fee is equal to a maximum percentage of the Redemption Price or such other amount as specified for each Sub-Fund or Share Class in the relevant Supplement, where applicable.

Shareholders wishing to redeem their Shares in part or in whole must submit a Redemption Form. The Redemption Form must be submitted to the Administrator following the instructions on such form. The Redemption Form is available from the Administrator on request.

The Fund will only process redemption applications that it considers clear and complete. Applications will be considered complete only if the Fund has received all information and supporting documentation it deems necessary to process the application. Unclear or incomplete applications may lead to delays in their execution. The Fund will not accept liability for any loss suffered by applicants as a result of unclear or incomplete applications.

Applications must be submitted to the Administrator by the Cut-Off Time for the Redemption Day, as specified in the relevant Supplement, in order for such applications to be processed, if accepted, at the Redemption Price applicable to that Redemption Day. Different Cut-Off Times may apply for applications submitted by Shareholders in different time zones, provided that the applicable Cut-Off Time must always be earlier than the time when the applicable Net Asset Value is calculated. Shareholders should refer to the local sales documents for their jurisdiction to find out which Cut-Off Time is applicable to them.

Applications received after the Cut-Off Time will be treated as deemed applications received by the Cut-Off Time for the next Redemption Day. However, the Fund may accept redemption applications received after the Cut-Off Time subject to certain conditions, as set out in section 7.9 (Late trading, market timing and other prohibited practices) below.

The redemption of Shares of a Sub-Fund or Share Class shall be suspended whenever the determination of the Net Asset Value per Share of such Sub-Fund or Share Class is suspended by the Fund, as described in section 8.4 (Temporary suspension of the Net Asset Value calculation) below. The redemption of Shares of a Sub-Fund or Share Class may also be suspended in other exceptional cases where the circumstances and the best interest of the Shareholders so require.

7.5.2 Settlement of redemption

Redemption proceeds equal to the full amount of the Redemption Price (less any Redemption Fee) will normally be paid by the end of the Redemption Settlement Period specified in the relevant Supplement. Different settlement procedures may apply in certain jurisdictions in which Shares are distributed due to constraints under local laws and regulations. Shareholders should refer to the local sales documents for their jurisdiction or contact their local paying agent

for further information. The Fund will not accept responsibility for any delays or charges incurred at any receiving bank or clearing system.

Payment of redemption proceeds will be made by wire transfer on the bank account of the redeeming Shareholder and at its risks and costs. Redemption proceeds will be paid in the Reference Currency of the Share Class.

The Fund reserves the right to postpone the payment of redemption proceeds after the end of the normal Redemption Settlement Period when there is insufficient liquidity or in other exceptional circumstances. If redemption proceeds cannot be paid by the end of the Redemption Settlement Period, the payment will be made as soon as reasonably practicable thereafter. The Fund may also delay the settlement of redemptions until reception of all information and supporting documentation deemed necessary to process the application, as described above. In any event, no redemption Price (plus any Subscription Fee) due but not yet paid for the Shares to be redeemed has been received by the Fund. No interest will be paid to Shareholders on redemption proceeds paid after the end of the Redemption Settlement Period.

7.5.3 Redemption in kind

Unless set out otherwise in the Supplements, the Fund may, in order to facilitate the settlement of substantial redemption applications or in other exceptional circumstances, propose to a Shareholder a "redemption in kind" whereby the Shareholder receives a portfolio of assets of the Sub-Fund of equivalent value to the Redemption Price (less any Redemption Fee). In such circumstances the Shareholder must specifically consent to the redemption in kind and may always request a cash redemption payment instead. In proposing or accepting a request for redemption in kind at any given time, the Fund shall take into account the interest of other Shareholders of the Sub-Fund and the principle of fair treatment. Where the Shareholder accepts a redemption in kind, he will receive a selection of assets of the Sub-Fund. Any redemption in kind will be valued independently in a special report issued by the Auditor or any other independent auditor (*réviseur d'entreprises agréé*) agreed by the Fund. The Fund and the redeeming Shareholder will agree on specific settlement procedures. Any costs incurred in connection with a redemption in kind, including the costs of issuing a valuation report, shall be borne by the redeeming Shareholder or by such other third party as agreed by the Fund.

7.6 Conversion of Shares

Unless set out otherwise in the Supplements, applications for conversions of Shares of any Share Class (called the Original Shares) into Shares of another Share Class of the same or another Sub-Fund (called the New Shares) can be submitted for each Conversion Day provided that a complete application is submitted by the Cut-Off Time for that Conversion Day. The number of New Shares issued upon a conversion will be based on the respective Net Asset Values per Share of the Original Shares and the New Shares for the Conversion Day (which, for the avoidance of doubt, may be a different day for the Original Shares and the New Shares). The Original Shares will be redeemed and the New Shares will be issued on the Conversion Day. However, due to the specific tax provisions applicable in Italy, different arrangements may apply for Italian tax-resident Shareholders. The conversion procedure is further described below.

7.6.1 Conversion application

Unless set out otherwise in the Supplements, Shareholders may apply for conversion of Original Shares into New Shares on each Conversion Day. However, the right to convert the Original Shares is subject to compliance with any Shareholder eligibility requirements applicable to the New Shares. In addition, conversion applications are subject to the provisions on the minimum initial or additional subscription amounts applicable to the New Shares and the minimum holding amount applicable to the Original Shares.

The number of New Shares issued upon a conversion will be based upon the respective Net Asset Values of the Original Shares and the New Shares for the Conversion Day. These Net Asset Values are unknown to the Shareholders when they place their conversion application.

The Fund may charge a Conversion Fee on conversions of Shares, as set out in section 9.1 (Subscription Fee and Redemption Fee) below and specified in the Supplements. For the avoidance of doubt, no Subscription Fee or Redemption Fee will apply on conversions in addition to the Conversion Fee, if any.

Shareholders wishing to convert their Shares must submit a Conversion Form. The Conversion Form must be submitted to the Administrator following the instructions on such form. The Conversion Form is available from the Administrator on request.

The Fund will only process conversion applications that it considers clear and complete. Applications will be considered complete only if the Fund has received all information and supporting documentation it deems necessary to process the application. The Fund may delay the acceptance of unclear or incomplete applications until reception of all necessary information and supporting documentation in a form satisfactory to the Fund. Unclear or incomplete applications. The Fund will not accept liability for any loss suffered by applicants as a result of unclear or incomplete applications.

Applications must be submitted to the Administrator by the Cut-Off Time for the Conversion Day, as specified in the Supplements, in order for such applications to be processed, if accepted, at a conversation rate based on the respective Net Asset Values of the Original Shares and the New Shares on the Conversion Day. Different Cut-Off Times may apply for applications submitted by Shareholders in different time zones, provided that the applicable Cut-Off Time must always be earlier than the time when the applicable Net Asset Value is calculated. Shareholders should refer to the local sales documents for their jurisdiction to find out which Cut-Off Time is applicable to them. Applications received after the Cut-Off Time will be treated as deemed applications received by the Cut-Off Time for the next Conversion Day. However, the Fund may accept conversion applications received after the Cut-Off Time subject to certain conditions, as set out in section 7.9 (Late trading, market timing and other prohibited practices) below.

The Fund reserves the right to reject any application for conversion of Shares into New Shares, in whole or in part, including, without limitation, where the Fund decides to close the Sub-Fund or Share Class to new subscriptions or new Shareholders. In any event, no conversion application will be processed unless and until cleared funds equal to the full amount of the Subscription Price (plus any Subscription Fee) for the Original Shares has been received by the Fund.

The conversion of Shares shall be suspended whenever the determination of the Net Asset Value per Share of the Original Shares or the New Shares is suspended by the Fund in accordance with section 8.4 (Temporary suspension of the Net Asset Value calculation) below, or when the redemption of Original Shares or the subscription for New Shares is suspended in accordance with the Articles of Association and this Prospectus.

7.6.2 Conversion rate

The rate at which the Original Shares are converted into New Shares is determined on the basis of the following formula:

$A = (B \times C \times D) / E$

where:

- A is the number of New Shares to be allocated;
- B is the number of Original Shares to be converted into New Shares;
- C is the Net Asset Value per Share of the Original Shares for the Conversion Day;
- D is the exchange rate, as determined by the Fund, between the Reference Currency of the Original Shares and that of the New Shares. Where the Reference Currencies are the same, D equals one (1); and
- E is the Net Asset Value per Share of the New Shares for the Conversion Day.

A Conversion Fee may be applied, if and to the extent set out in the Supplement. The Conversion Fee is equal to the positive difference, if any, between the Subscription Fee applicable to the New Shares and the Subscription Fee paid on the Original Shares, or such lower amount as specified for each Share Class in the Supplement, where applicable.

7.7 Transfer of Shares

7.7.1 Conditions and limitations on transfer of Shares

Shares are freely transferable subject to the restrictions set out in the Articles of Association and this Prospectus. In particular, the Fund will deny giving effect to any transfer of Shares if it determines that such transfer would result in the Shares being held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons.

Subject to the above, the transfer of Shares will normally be given effect by the Fund by way of declaration of transfer recorded in the register of shareholders of the Fund following the delivery to the Administrator of an instrument of transfer duly completed and executed by the transferor and the transferee, in a form accepted by the Fund.

The Fund will only give effect to Share transfers that it considers clear and complete. The Administrator may require from the transferor and/or the transferee all of the information and supporting documentation it deems necessary to give effect to the transfer. Shareholders are advised to contact the Administrator prior to requesting a transfer to ensure that they have all

the correct documentation for the transaction. The Fund may delay the acceptance of unclear or incomplete transfer orders until reception of all necessary information and supporting documentation in a form satisfactory to the Fund. Unclear or incomplete transfer orders may lead to delays in their execution. The Fund will not accept liability for any loss suffered by transferors and/or transferees as a result of unclear or incomplete transfer orders.

7.8 Special considerations

7.8.1 Minimum subscription and holding amounts

The subscription for Shares may be subject to a minimum initial subscription amount and/or additional subscription amount, as specified for each Share Class in the relevant Supplement. The Fund may reject any application for subscription for or conversion into Shares of a Share Class which does not meet the applicable minimum initial subscription amount or additional subscription amount for that Share Class, if any.

In addition, the holding of Shares may be subject to a minimum holding amount, as specified for each Share Class in the relevant Supplement. The Fund may treat any application for redemption or conversion of part of a holding of Shares in a Share Class as a deemed application for redemption or conversion of the entire holding of the redeeming Shareholder in that Share Class if, as a result of such application, the Net Asset Value of the Shares retained by the Shareholder in that Share Class would fall below the applicable minimum holding amount. Alternatively, the Fund may grant a grace period to the Shareholder so as to allow him to increase his holding to at least the minimum holding amount.

The Fund may further deny giving effect to any transfer of Shares if, as a result of such transfer, the Net Asset Value of the Shares retained by the transferor in a Share Class would fall below the minimum holding amount for that Share Class, or if the Net Asset Value of the Shares acquired by the transferee in a Share Class would be less than the minimum initial or additional subscription amounts, as applicable. In such cases, the Fund will notify the transferor that it will not give effect to the transfer of the Shares.

Alternatively, the Fund has the discretion, from time to time, to waive any applicable minimum initial subscription amount, minimum additional subscription amount and/or minimum holding amount provided that Shareholders are treated fairly.

7.8.2 Minimum or maximum level of assets under management

The Fund may decide to cancel the launch of a Sub-Fund or Share Class before the end of the Initial Offer where that Sub-Fund or Share Class has not reached the minimum or expected level of assets under management for such Sub-Fund or Share Class to be operated in an economically efficient manner. In such event, applications for subscription will be refused and subscription proceeds previously received by the Fund will be returned to the applicant.

Where applications for redemptions or conversions out of a Sub-Fund or Share Class on a particular Redemption Day or Conversion Day represent the total number of Shares in issue in that Sub-Fund or Share Class, or the remaining number of Shares in issue after such redemptions or conversions would represent a total Net Asset Value below the minimum level of assets under management required for such Sub-Fund or Share Class to be operated in an efficient manner, the Fund may decide to terminate and liquidate the Sub-Fund or Share Class

in accordance with the procedure set out in section 10.8 (Liquidation) below. In such a case, all remaining Shares of the Sub-Fund or Share Class will be redeemed.

The Fund may also decide to close a Sub-Fund or Share Class to new subscriptions or new Shareholders where that Sub-Fund or Share Class has reached its maximum or expected level of assets under management. In such event, applications for subscription will be refused, in whole or in part, and subscription proceeds previously received by the Fund will be returned to the applicant.

7.8.3 Suspension of issue, redemption or conversion of Shares

The issue, redemption or conversion of Shares in a Share Class shall be suspended whenever the determination of the Net Asset Value per Share of such Share Class is suspended by the Fund in accordance with section 8.4 (Temporary suspension of the Net Asset Value calculation) below and in other circumstances specified in the Articles of Association and this Prospectus.

Suspended subscriptions, redemptions and conversions will be treated as deemed applications for subscriptions, redemptions or conversions in respect of the first Subscription Day, Redemption Day or Conversion Day following the end of the suspension period unless the Shareholders have withdrawn their applications for subscription, redemption or conversion by written notification received by the Fund before the end of the suspension period.

7.8.4 Deferral of redemption or conversion of Shares

Unless specified differently in a Supplement, if on any given Redemption Day or Conversion Day, applications for redemption or conversion of Shares out of a Sub-Fund or Share Class represent in aggregate more than ten percent (10%) of the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund or Share Class, the Fund may decide that part (on a *pro rata* basis) or all of such requests for redemption or conversion will be deferred to the next or subsequent Redemption Days or Conversion Days until the application is processed in full. On a next or subsequent Redemption Day or Conversion Day, deferred redemption or conversion requests will be met in priority to requests submitted in respect of such Redemption Day or Conversion Day.

The Fund also reserves the right to postpone the payment of redemption proceeds after the end of the normal Redemption Settlement Period in accordance with the provisions set out in section 7.5 (Redemption of Shares) above.

As an alternative to deferring applications for redemptions, the Fund may propose to an Shareholder, who accepts, to settle a redemption application, in whole or in part, by a distribution in kind of certain assets of the Sub-Fund or Share Class in lieu of cash, subject to the conditions set out in section 7.5 (Redemption of Shares) above.

7.9 Late trading, market timing and other prohibited practices

The Fund does not permit late trading practices as such practices may adversely affect the interests of Shareholders. In general, late trading is to be understood as the acceptance of a subscription, redemption or conversion order for Shares after the Cut-Off Time for a Subscription Day, Redemption Day or Conversion Day and the execution of such order at a price based on the Net Asset Value applicable to such same day. However, as mentioned

above, the Fund may accept subscription, conversion or redemption applications received after the Cut-Off Time, in circumstances where the subscription, redemption or conversion applications are dealt with on an unknown Net Asset Value basis, provided that it is in the interest of the Sub-Fund and that Shareholders are fairly treated. In particular, the Fund may waive the Cut-Off Time where an intermediary submits the application to the Administrator after the Cut-Off Time provided that such application has been received by the intermediary from the Shareholder in advance of the Cut-Off Time.

Subscriptions and conversions of Shares should be made for investment purposes only. The Fund does not permit market timing or other excessive trading practices. Market timing is to be understood as an arbitrage method by which a Shareholder systematically subscribes and redeems or converts Shares of the same Sub-Fund or Share Class within a short time period, by taking advantage of time differences and/or imperfections or deficiencies in the method of determination of the Net Asset Value. Excessive, short-term (market timing) trading practices may disrupt portfolio management strategies and harm fund performance. To minimise harm to the Fund and other Shareholders, the Fund has the right to reject any subscription or conversion order, or levy in addition to any Subscription Fee, Redemption Fee or Conversion Fee which may be charged according to the Supplements, a fee of up to two percent (2%) of the value of the order for the benefit of the Sub-Fund or Share Class, from any Shareholder who is engaging or is suspected of engaging in excessive trading, or has a history of excessive trading, or if an Shareholder's trading, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, has been or may be disruptive to the Fund. In making this judgment, the Board of Directors may consider trading done in multiple accounts under common ownership or control.

The Fund also has the power to compulsorily redeem all Shares held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, a Shareholder who is or has been engaged in, or is suspected of being engaged in, late trading, market timing or other excessive trading, in accordance with the procedure set out in this Prospectus. The Board of Directors considers such persons as Prohibited Persons.

The Fund will not be held liable for any loss resulting from rejected orders or compulsory redemptions.

7.10 Prohibited Persons

The Articles of Association give powers to the Board of Directors to restrict or prevent the legal or beneficial ownership of Shares or prohibit certain practices such as late trading and market timing by any person (individual, corporation, partnership or other entity), if in the opinion of the Board of Directors such ownership or practices may (i) result in a breach of any provisions of the Articles of Association, the Prospectus or the laws or regulations of any jurisdiction, or (ii) require the Fund or the AIFM to be registered under any laws or regulations whether as an investment fund or otherwise, or cause the Fund to be required to comply with any registration requirements in respect of any of its Shares, whether in the United States of America or in any other jurisdiction, or (iii) may cause the Fund, the AIFM or the Shareholders any legal, regulatory, taxation, administrative or financial disadvantages which they would not have otherwise incurred (a Prohibited Person).

The Board of Directors has decided that US Persons will be considered as Prohibited Persons. By signing a Subscription Form, an applicant will certify, represent, warrant and agree that he is not a US Person or that the Shares applied for are not being acquired directly or indirectly by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, a US Person. An applicant will further certify, represent, warrant and agree that the applicant will notify the Fund in the event that either the applicant becomes a US Person or holds the Shares on behalf of, or for the account or benefit of, a US Person. If an applicant's status changes and it becomes a US Person, it must notify the relevant party as mentioned above within thirty (30) days.

The Board of Directors has also decided that any person not qualifying as an Eligible Investor will be considered as a Prohibited Person.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors has decided that any person who is or has been engaged in, or is suspected of being engaged in, late trading, market timing or other excessive trading, directly or indirectly, as described in section 7.9 (Late trading, market timing and other prohibited practices) above, will be considered as a Prohibited Person.

The Fund may decline to issue any Shares and to accept any transfer of Shares, where it appears that such issue or transfer would or might result in Shares being acquired or held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons. The Fund may require at any time any Shareholder or prospective Shareholder to provide the Fund with any representations, warranties, or information, together with supporting documentation, which the Fund may consider necessary for the purpose of determining whether the issue or transfer would result in Shares being held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, a Prohibited Person.

The Fund may compulsorily redeem all Shares held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons or Shareholders who are found to be in breach of, or have failed to provide, the abovementioned representations, warranties or information in a timely manner. In such cases, the Fund will notify the Shareholder of the reasons which justify the compulsory redemption of Shares, the number of Shares to be redeemed and the indicative Redemption Day on which the compulsory redemption will occur. The Redemption Price shall be determined in accordance with section 7.5 (Redemption of Shares) above.

The Fund may also grant a grace period to the Shareholder for remedying the situation causing the compulsory redemption, for instance by transferring the Shares to one or more Shareholders who are not Prohibited Persons and do not act on behalf or for the account or benefit of, Prohibited Persons, and/or propose to convert the Shares held by any Shareholder who fails to satisfy the Shareholder eligibility requirements for a Shares Class into Shares of another Share Class available for such Shareholder.

The Fund reserves the right to require the Shareholder to indemnify the Fund against any losses, costs or expenses arising as a result of any Shares being held by, on behalf or for the account or benefit of, a Prohibited Person or Shareholders who are found to be in breach of, or have failed to provide, the abovementioned representations, warranties or information in a timely manner. The Fund may pay such losses, costs or expenses out of the proceeds of any compulsory redemption described above and/or redeem all or part of the Shareholder's other Shares, if any, in order to pay for such losses, costs or expenses.

7.11 Prevention of money laundering and terrorist financing

The Fund must comply with applicable international and Luxembourg laws and regulations regarding anti-money laundering and counter terrorism financing ("**AML/CFT**") comprising, but not limited to the 2004 Law, the Grand-Ducal Regulation of 1st February 2010 providing details on certain provisions of the 2004 Law, as amended, the CSSF Regulation 12-02 of 14

December 2012 on the fight against money laundering and terrorist financing, as amended (the ""CSSF Regulation 12-02") and further implementing regulations and CSSF circulars in the field of AML/CFT, adopted from time to time (collectively referred to as the "AML/CFT Regulations"). In particular, AML/CFT Regulations in force in Luxembourg require the Fund, on a risk sensitive basis, to establish and verify the identity of the subscribers for Shares (and of any person purporting to act on behalf of or for such subscriber is so authorised as well as the identity of any intended beneficial owners of the Shares if they are not the subscribers) on the basis of documents, data or information obtained from a reliable and independent source and, amongst others, to gather information on the origin of subscription proceeds and to monitor the business relationship on an ongoing basis.

In this context, the Fund, and, as the case may be the Administrator, as delegate of the Fund on AML/CFT, are required to establish AML/CFT controls and may require subscribers for Shares to provide all information and supporting documentation deemed necessary to establish and verify the identity of a subscriber (as well as of any of the above-mentioned persons) as well as the nature and the intended purpose of the business relationship. In addition, the Administrator, as delegate of the Fund on AML/CFT, may require any other information and documentation that the Fund may require in order to comply with the AML/CFT Regulations.

In case of delay or failure by an applicant to provide information or documentation deemed necessary for the Fund to comply with the AML/CFT Regulations, the application for subscription (or, if applicable, for redemption or conversion) may be delayed or rejected. Neither the Fund nor the Administrator, as delegate of the Fund, shall accept any liability for any interest, costs or compensation for delays or failure to process deals as a result of the applicant providing no or incomplete documentation. Similarly, when Shares are issued, they cannot be redeemed or converted until full details of registration and AML/CFT documents of the shareholder have been completed.

Subscribers for Shares will be required to provide to the Fund and/or the Administrator at least the information and supporting documentation set out in the Subscription Form, depending on their legal form (individual, corporate or other category of subscriber), noting that the information and documents set out therein may not in all cases be regarded as exhaustive and thus can be changed from time to time, including inter alia in case of any legal and regulatory changes related to AML/CFT or changes of the business practices of the Fund.

In any case, the Fund and/or its delegate have the right to request additional information until being reasonably satisfied that it understands the identity and economic purpose of the subscriber and in order to being able to comply with the AML/CFT Regulations. Furthermore, any investor is required to notify the Fund and/ or the Administrator of any change of its information as set out in the Subscription Form and, as the case may be, prior to the occurrence of any change in the identity of any beneficial owner of Shares. In addition, the 2004 Law requires the Fund to conduct an ongoing monitoring of the business relationship with existing investors which includes, inter alia, the obligation to verify and, where appropriate, to update, within an appropriate timeframe, the documents, data or information gathered while fulfilling the customer due diligence obligations. In this context, Shareholders may be requested to provide at any time additional or updated information together with supporting identification documents pursuant to ongoing client due diligence requirements under the AML/CFT Regulations. Each Shareholder has therefore the obligation to provide the Fund with updated personal information and documents relating to its/his/her own person and its/his/her respective beneficial owners.

Depending on the circumstances of each application, a simplified AML/CFT due diligence might be applicable in situations where the Fund has assessed, in compliance with the provisions of the 2004 Law, that the risk of money laundering or terrorist financing is low. In such case the AML/CFT due diligence measures may be adjusted in timing, amount or type of information to be received.

Agreements may be entered into with intermediaries pursuant to which these agree to act as or appoint intermediaries subscribing for Shares in their own name through their facilities (e.g. distribution- and/or nominee agreements) but on behalf of their own underlying investors (and thus the intermediary-investor being directly registered in the Fund's shareholder register). As a result, in particular, the due diligence with regard to such intermediary generally takes place at two levels, including inter alia:

(i) A risk-based customer due diligence on the intermediary (by using reliable, independent source documents, data or information) as well as on its beneficial owners, such that notably the Fund is satisfied that it knows who the beneficial owner(s) of the intermediary are.

(ii) In addition, the Fund or its delegate will perform enhanced due diligence measures with respect to such intermediary in accordance with article 3 of the CSSF Regulation 12-02 as well as article 3-2 (3) of the 2004 Law.

In addition to the due diligence measures on investors, pursuant to article 34(2) of CSSF Regulation 12-02, the Fund is also required to apply precautionary measures regarding the assets of the Fund. The Fund should assess, using its risk-based approach, the extent to which the offering of its products and services presents potential vulnerabilities to placement, layering or integration of criminal proceeds into the financial system.

Pursuant to the law of 19 December 2020 on the implementation of restrictive measures in financial matters, the application of international financial sanctions must be enforced by any Luxembourg natural or legal person, as well as any other natural or legal person operating in or from the Luxembourg territory. As a result, prior to investing in assets, the Fund must, as a minimum, screen the name of such assets or of the issuer against the target financial sanctions lists.

The prospective Shareholder understands and acknowledges that the Fund, is subject to the obligation to collect, hold accurate and up-to-date and make available certain information on its beneficial owners (as defined in the 2004 Law) and relevant supporting evidence in the register of beneficial owner (RBE) in Luxembourg pursuant to the law of 13 January 2019 on the register of beneficial owners (the "**RBO Law**"). Such information includes, as further specified in the RBO Law, among others, first and last name, nationality, country of residence, personal or professional address, national identification number and information on the nature and the scope of the beneficial ownership interest held by each beneficial owner in the Fund. The prospective Shareholder understands and acknowledges that the Fund is further required, among others, (i) to make such information available upon request to certain Luxembourg national authorities (including the CSSF, the *Commissariat aux Assurances*, the *Cellule de Renseignement Financier*, Luxembourg tax and other national authorities as defined in the RBO Law) and upon motivated request of other professionals of the financial sector subject to the AML/CFT Regulations, and (ii) to register such information and supporting evidence in the

register of beneficial owners (the **"RBO**") which will be accessible to third parties with a legitimate interest, including (i) national authorities or (ii) professionals subject to the 2004 Law in order to ensure AML/CFT compliance.

Under the RBO Law, criminal sanctions may be imposed on the Fund in case of its failure to comply with the obligations to collect and make available the required information, but also on any beneficial owner(s) that fail to make all relevant necessary information available to the Fund. Any shareholder that fails to comply with the Fund's information or documentation requests may be held liable for penalties imposed on the Fund as a result of such Shareholder's failure to provide the information or subject to disclosure of the information by the Fund to the Luxembourg national authorities and the Fund may, in its sole discretion, redeem the Shares of such Shareholders.

8. VALUATION AND NET ASSET CALCULATION

The AIFM is responsible for ensuring that proper and independent valuation of the assets of the Fund and the calculation and publication of the Net Asset Value can be performed. In accordance with article 17 of the 2013 Law, the valuation task is functionally independent from the portfolio management and the remuneration policy and other measures ensure that conflicts of interest are mitigated and that undue influence upon the employees is prevented.

The Net Asset Value of each Sub-Fund and Share Class is determined by performing a valuation of the assets and liabilities of the Fund and allocating them to the Sub-Funds and Share Classes, in order to calculate the Net Asset Value per Share of each Share Class of each Sub-Fund. The method for the valuation of the assets and liabilities, the allocation to the Sub-Funds and Share Classes, and the calculation of the Net Asset Value is set out in the AIFM's valuation policy, the Articles of Association, and is also described in this section of the Prospectus.

8.1 Calculation of the Net Asset Value

The Net Asset Value per Share shall be determined by the Administrator as of each Valuation Day (as specified for each Sub-Fund in the relevant Supplement) under the responsibility of the AIFM. It shall be calculated by dividing the Net Asset Value of the Share Class of a Sub-Fund by the total number of Shares of such Share Class in issue as of that Valuation Day. The Net Asset Value per Share shall be expressed in the Reference Currency of the Share Class and may be rounded up or down to two (2) decimal places.

The Net Asset Value of a Share Class is equal to the value of the assets allocated to such Share Class within a Sub-Fund less the value of the liabilities allocated to such Share Class, both being calculated as of each Valuation Day according to the valuation procedure described below.

The Net Asset Value of a Sub-Fund is equal to the value of the assets allocated to such Sub-Fund less the value of the liabilities allocated to such Sub-Fund, both calculated as of each Valuation Day in the Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund according to the valuation procedure described below.

The Net Asset Value of the Fund will at all times be equal to the sum of the Net Asset Values of all Sub-Funds expressed in the Reference Currency of the Fund. The Net Asset Value of the Fund must at all times be at least equal to the minimum share capital required by the 2010 Law which is currently one million two hundred and fifty thousand euro (EUR 1,250,000.-), except during the first six (6) months after the approval of the Fund by the CSSF.

8.2 Valuation procedure

8.2.1 General

The assets and liabilities of the Fund will be valued in accordance with the AIFM's valuation policy and the provisions outlined below.

The AIFM may apply, in good faith and in accordance with generally accepted valuation principles and procedures, other valuation principles or alternative methods of valuation that it

considers appropriate in order to determine the probable realisation value of any asset if applying the rules described below appears inappropriate or impracticable.

The AIFM may adjust the value of any asset if the AIFM determines that such adjustment is required to reflect its fair value taking into account its denomination, maturity, liquidity, applicable or anticipated interest rates or dividend distributions or any other relevant considerations.

If, after the time of determination of the Net Asset Value but before publication of the Net Asset Value for a Valuation Day, there has been a material change affecting the exchanges or markets on which a substantial portion of the investments of a Sub-Fund are quoted, listed or traded, the AIFM may cancel the first valuation and carry out a second valuation in order to safeguard the interest of Shareholders. In such a case, the Net Asset Value used for processing subscription, redemption and conversion applications for that Valuation Day will be based on the second calculation.

For the purpose of calculating the Net Asset Value in accordance with the valuation principles set out below, the AIFM has authorised the Administrator to rely in whole or in part upon valuations provided by available pricing sources for the relevant asset, including data vendors and pricing agencies (such as Bloomberg or Reuters), fund administrators, brokers, dealers and valuation specialists, provided that such pricing sources are considered reliable and appropriate and provided that there is no manifest error or negligence in such valuations. In the event that valuations are not available or valuations may not correctly be assessed using such pricing sources, the Administrator will rely upon valuation methods and determinations provided by the AIFM.

In the absence of fraud, bad faith, gross negligence or manifest error, any decision taken in accordance with the Articles of Association and the Prospectus by the AIFM, the Board of Directors or any agent appointed by them in connection with the valuation of the Fund's assets and the calculation of the Net Asset Value of the Fund, a Sub-Fund or a Share Class, the Net Asset Value per Share will be final and binding on the Fund and on all Shareholders, and neither the Board of Directors, nor the AIFM, nor any agent appointed by them shall accept any individual liability or responsibility for any determination made or other action taken or omitted by them in this connection.

The AIFM will be liable to the Fund for any losses suffered as a result of the AIFM's gross negligence or intentional failure to perform its valuation obligations.

8.2.2 Assets of the Fund

Subject to the rules on the allocation to Sub-Funds and Share Classes below, the assets of the Fund shall include the following:

- 1) all cash on hand or on deposit, including any outstanding accrued interest;
- 2) all bills and any types of notes or accounts receivable, including outstanding proceeds of any disposal of financial instruments;

- 3) all securities and financial instruments, including shares, bonds, notes, certificates of deposit, debenture stocks, options or subscription rights, warrants, money market instruments and all other investments belonging to the Fund;
- 4) all dividends and distributions payable to the Fund either in cash or in the form of stocks and shares (which will normally be recorded in the Fund's books as of the ex-dividend date, provided that the Fund may adjust the value of the security accordingly);
- 5) all outstanding accrued interest on any interest-bearing instruments belonging to the Fund, unless this interest is included in the principal amount of such instruments;
- 6) the formation expenses of the Fund or a Sub-Fund, to the extent that such expenses have not already been written off; and
- 7) all other assets of any kind and nature including expenses paid in advance.

8.2.3 Liabilities of the Fund

Subject to the rules on the allocation to Sub-Funds and Share Classes below, the liabilities of the Fund shall include the following:

- 1) all loans, bills or accounts payable, accrued interest on loans (including accrued fees for commitment for such loans);
- all known liabilities, whether or not already due, including all contractual obligations that have reached their term, involving payments made either in cash or in the form of assets, including the amount of any dividends declared by the Fund but not yet paid;
- 3) a provision for any tax accrued to the Valuation Day and any other provisions authorised or approved by the Fund; and
- 4) all other liabilities of the Fund of any kind recorded in accordance with applicable accounting rules, except liabilities represented by Shares. In determining the amount of such liabilities, the Fund will take into account all expenses, fees, costs and charges payable by the Fund as set out in section 9 (Fees and Expenses) below.

Adequate provisions shall be made for unpaid administrative and other expenses of a regular or recurring nature based on an estimated amount accrued for the applicable period. Any off-balance sheet liabilities shall duly be taken into account in accordance with fair and prudent criteria.

The fees and expenses incurred in connection with the formation of the Fund will be borne by the Fund and may be amortised over a period of up to five (5) years. The formation expenses of each new Sub-Fund will be borne by such Sub-Fund and may be amortised over a period of up to five (5) years. New Sub-Funds created after the incorporation and launch of the Fund will participate in the non-amortised costs of establishment of the Fund.

8.2.4 Valuation principles

In accordance with the Articles of Association and the AIFM's valuation policy, the valuation of the assets of the Fund will be conducted as follows:

- 1) The value of any cash on hand or on deposit, bills or notes payable, accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, cash dividends, and interest accrued but not yet received shall be equal to the entire nominal or face amount thereof, unless the same is unlikely to be paid or received in full, in which case the value thereof shall be determined after making such discount as the AIFM may consider appropriate in such case to reflect the true value thereof.
- 2) Transferable securities and money market instruments which are quoted, listed or traded on an exchange or regulated market will be valued, unless otherwise provided under paragraphs 3) and 6) below, at the last available market price or quotation, prior to the time of valuation, on the exchange or regulated market where the securities or instruments are primarily quoted, listed or traded. Where securities or instruments are quoted, listed or more than one exchange or regulated market, the AIFM will determine on which exchange or regulated market the securities or instruments are primarily quoted, listed or traded and the market prices or quotations on such exchange or regulated market will be used for the purpose of their valuation. Transferable securities and money market instruments for which market prices or quotations are not available or representative, or which are not quoted, listed or traded on an exchange or regulated market, will be valued at their probable realisation value estimated with care and in good faith by the AIFM using any valuation method approved by the AIFM.
- 3) Notwithstanding paragraph 2) above, where permitted under applicable laws and regulations, money market instruments may be valued using an amortisation method whereby instruments are valued at their acquisition cost as adjusted for amortisation of premium or accrual of discount on a constant basis until maturity, regardless of the impact of fluctuating interest rates on the market value of the instruments. The amortisation method will only be used if it is not expected to result in a material discrepancy between the market value of the instruments and their value calculated according to the amortisation method.
- 4) Financial derivative instruments which are quoted, listed or traded on an exchange or regulated market will be valued at the last available closing or settlement price or quotation, prior to the time of valuation, on the exchange or regulated market where the instruments are primarily quoted, listed or traded. Where instruments are quoted, listed or traded on more than one exchange or regulated market, the AIFM will determine on which exchange or regulated market the instruments are primarily quoted, listed or traded and the closing or settlement prices or quotations on such exchange or regulated market will be used for the purpose of their valuation. Financial derivative instruments for which closing or settlement prices or quotations are not available or representative will be valued at their probable realisation value estimated with care and in good faith by the AIFM using any valuation method approved by the AIFM.
- 5) Financial derivative instruments which are traded "over-the-counter" (OTC) will be valued daily at their fair market value, on the basis of valuations provided by the counterparty which will be approved or verified on a regular basis independently from the counterparty. Alternatively, OTC financial derivative instruments may be valued on

the basis of independent pricing services or valuation models approved by the AIFM which follow international best practice and valuation principles. Any such valuation will be reconciled to the counterparty valuation on a regular basis independently from the counterparty, and significant differences will be promptly investigated and explained.

- 6) Notwithstanding paragraph 2) above, shares or units in target investment funds will be valued at their latest available official net asset value, as reported or provided by or on behalf of the investment fund or at their latest available unofficial or estimated net asset value if more recent than the latest available official net asset value, provided that the AIFM is satisfied of the reliability of such unofficial net asset value. The Net Asset Value calculated on the basis of unofficial net asset values of the target investment fund may differ from the Net Asset Value which would have been calculated, on the same Valuation Day, on the basis of the official net asset value of the target investment fund. Alternatively, shares or units in target investment funds which are quoted, listed or traded on an exchange or regulated market may be valued in accordance with the provisions of paragraph 2) above.
- 7) The value of any other asset not specifically referenced above will be the probable realisation value estimated with care and in good faith by the AIFM using any valuation method approved by the AIFM.

8.2.5 Allocation of assets and liabilities to Sub-Funds and Share Classes

Assets and liabilities of the Fund will be allocated to each Sub-Fund and Share Class in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association, as set out below, and the relevant Supplement of the Sub-Fund.

- 1) The proceeds from the issue of Shares of a Sub-Fund or Share Class, all assets in which such proceeds are invested or reinvested and all income, earnings, profits or assets attributable to or deriving from such investments, as well as all increase or decrease in the value thereof, will be allocated to that Sub-Fund or Share Class and recorded in its books. The assets allocated to each Share Class of the same Sub-Fund will be invested together in accordance with the investment objective, policy, and strategy of that Sub-Fund, subject to the specific features and terms of issue of each Share Class of that Sub-Fund, as specified in its Supplement (see section 7.1 (Shares, Sub-Funds and Share Classes) above)
- 2) All liabilities of the Fund attributable to the assets allocated to a Sub-Fund or Share Class or incurred in connection with the creation, operation or liquidation of a Sub-Fund or Share Class will be charged to that Sub-Fund or Share Class and, together with any increase or decrease in the value thereof, will be allocated to that Sub-Fund or Share Class and recorded in its books. In particular and without limitation, the costs and any benefit of any Share Class specific feature will be allocated solely to the Share Class to which the specific feature relates.
- 3) Any assets or liabilities not attributable to a particular Sub-Fund or Share Class may be allocated by the Board of Directors in good faith and in a manner which is fair to Shareholders generally and will normally be allocated to all Sub-Funds or Share Classes *pro rata* to their Net Asset Value.

Subject to the above, the Board of Directors may at any time vary the allocation of assets and liabilities previously allocated to a Sub-Fund or Share Class.

8.2.6 Additional rules for assets and liabilities of the Fund

In calculating the Net Asset Value of each Sub-Fund or Share Class the following principles will apply.

- 1) Each Share agreed to be issued by the Fund on each Subscription Day will be deemed to be in issue and existing immediately after the time of valuation on the Subscription Day. From such time and until the Subscription Price is received by the Fund, the assets of the Sub-Fund or Share Class concerned will be deemed to include a claim of that Sub-Fund or Share Class for the amount of any cash or other property to be received in respect of the issue of such Shares. The Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund or Share Class will be increased by such amount immediately after the time of valuation on the Subscription Day.
- 2) Each Share agreed to be redeemed by the Fund on each Redemption Day will be deemed to be in issue and existing until and including the time of valuation on the Redemption Day. Immediately after the time of valuation and until the Redemption Price is paid by the Fund, the liabilities of the Sub-Fund or Share Class concerned will be deemed to include a debt of that Sub-Fund or Share Class for the amount of any cash or other property to be paid in respect of the redemption of such Shares. The Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund or Share Class will be decreased by such amount immediately after the time of valuation on the Redemption Day.
- 3) Following a declaration of dividends for Distribution Shares on a Valuation Day determined by the Fund to be the distribution accounting date, the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund or Share Class will be decreased by such amount as of the time of valuation on that Valuation Day.
- 4) Where assets have been agreed to be purchased or sold but such purchase or sale has not been completed at the time of valuation on a given Valuation Day, such assets will be included in or excluded from the assets of the Fund, and the gross purchase price payable or net sale price receivable will be excluded from or included in the assets of the Fund, as if such purchase or sale had been duly completed at the time of valuation on that Valuation Day, unless the Fund has reason to believe that such purchase or sale will not be completed in accordance with its terms. If the exact value or nature of such assets or price is not known at the time of valuation on the Valuation Day, its value will be estimated by the AIFM in accordance with the valuation principles described above.
- 5) The value of any asset or liability denominated or expressed in a currency other than the Reference Currency of the Fund, Sub-Fund or Share Class will be converted, as applicable, into the Reference Currency of the Fund, Sub-Fund or Share Class at the prevailing foreign exchange rate at the time of valuation on the Valuation Day concerned which the AIFM considers appropriate.

8.3 Publication of the Net Asset Value

The Net Asset Value per Share of each Share Class within each Sub-Fund will be available from the Administrator during normal business hours and is published on https://nordicbridgefund.se.

8.4 Temporary suspension of the Net Asset Value calculation

The Board of Directors, upon consultation with the AIFM, may temporarily suspend the calculation and publication of the Net Asset Value per Share of any Share Class in any Sub-Fund and/or where applicable, the issue, redemption and conversion of Shares of any Share Class in any Sub-Fund in the following cases:

- when any exchange or regulated market that supplies the price of the assets of a Sub-Fund is closed, otherwise than on ordinary holidays, or in the event that transactions on such exchange or market are suspended, subject to restrictions, or impossible to execute in volumes allowing the determination of fair prices;
- 2) when the information or calculation sources normally used to determine the value of the assets of a Sub-Fund are unavailable;
- during any period when any breakdown or malfunction occurs in the means of communication network or IT media normally employed in determining the price or value of the assets of a Sub-Fund, or which is required to calculate the Net Asset Value per Share;
- when exchange, capital transfer or other restrictions prevent the execution of transactions of a Sub-Fund or prevent the execution of transactions at normal rates of exchange and conditions for such transactions;
- 5) when exchange, capital transfer or other restrictions prevent the repatriation of assets of a Sub-Fund for the purpose of making payments on the redemption of Shares or prevent the execution of such repatriation at normal rates of exchange and conditions for such repatriation;
- 6) when the legal, political, economic, military or monetary environment, or an event of force majeure, prevent the Fund from being able to manage the assets of a Sub-Fund in a normal manner and/or prevent the determination of their value in a reasonable manner;
- 7) when there is a suspension of the net asset value calculation or of the issue, redemption or conversion rights by the investment fund(s) in which a Sub-Fund is invested;
- 8) following the suspension of the net asset value calculation and/or the issue, redemption and conversion at the level of a master fund in which a Sub-Fund invests as a feeder fund;
- 9) when, for any other reason, out of the control of the AIFM and the Board of Directors, the prices or values of the assets of a Sub-Fund cannot be promptly or accurately

ascertained or when it is otherwise impossible to dispose of the assets of the Sub-Fund in the usual way and/or without materially prejudicing the interests of Shareholders;

- 10) in the event of a notice to shareholders of the Fund convening an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders for the purpose of dissolving and liquidating the Fund or informing them about the termination and liquidation of a Sub-Fund or Share Class, and more generally, during the process of liquidation of the Fund, a Sub-Fund or Share Class;
- 11) during the process of establishing exchange ratios in the context of a merger, a contribution of assets, an asset or share split or any other restructuring transaction;
- 12) during any period when the dealing of the Shares of a Sub-Fund or Share Class on any relevant stock exchange where such Shares are listed is suspended or restricted or closed; and
- 13) in exceptional circumstances, whenever the Board of Directors considers it necessary in order to avoid irreversible negative effects on the Fund, a Sub-Fund or Share Class, in compliance with the principle of fair treatment of Shareholders in their best interests.

In the event of exceptional circumstances which could adversely affect the interest of Shareholders or where significant requests for subscription, redemption or conversion of Shares are received for a Sub-Fund or Share Class, the Board of Directors reserves the right to determine the Net Asset Value per Share for that Sub-Fund or Share Class only after the Fund has completed the necessary investments or divestments in securities or other assets for the Sub-Fund or Share Class concerned.

The issue, redemption and conversion of Shares in the any Share Class will also be suspended during any such period when the Net Asset Value of such Share Class is not calculated and published.

Any decision to suspend the calculation and publication of the Net Asset Value per Share and/or where applicable, the issue, redemption and conversion of Shares of a Share Class, will be published and/or communicated to Shareholders as required by applicable laws and regulations.

The suspension of the calculation of the Net Asset Value and/or, where applicable, of the subscription, redemption and/or conversion of Shares in any Sub-Fund or Share Class will have no effect on the calculation of the Net Asset Value and/or, where applicable, of the subscription, redemption and/or conversion of Shares in any other Sub-Fund or Share Class.

Suspended subscription, redemption, and conversion applications will be treated as deemed applications for subscriptions, redemptions or conversions in respect of the first Subscription Day, Redemption Day or Conversion Day following the end of the suspension period unless the Shareholders have withdrawn their applications for subscription, redemption or conversion by written notification received by the Administrator before the end of the suspension period.

8.5 Correction of errors in the calculation of Net Asset Value and/or non-compliance with the applicable sub-fund investment policy

In the event of an error in the calculation of Net Asset Value and/or in the event of a noncompliance with the applicable sub-fund investment policy, the AIFM shall apply the CSSF Circular 02/77 on protection of investors in case of net asset value calculation error and correction of the consequences resulting from non-compliance with the investment rules applicable to undertakings for collective investment and will follow the procedures listed in this circular to correct such error and/or non-compliance. The tolerance threshold will amount to 1.00% of the Net Asset Value.

9. FEES AND EXPENSES

9.1 Subscription Fee and Redemption Fee

Subscriptions for Shares may be subject to a Subscription Fee and redemptions of Shares may be subject to a Redemption Fee both calculated as specified in the Supplements, where applicable. Conversions of Shares may be subject to a Conversion Fee calculated as specified in the Supplements, where applicable. For the avoidance of doubt, no Subscription Fee or Redemption Fee will apply on conversions in addition to the Conversion Fee, if any.

Where applicable, an identical Subscription Fee, Redemption Fee, or Conversion Fee will apply, respectively, to all subscriptions, redemptions and conversions of Shares in each Share Class processed on the same Subscription Day, Redemption Day or Conversion Day.

The Subscription Fee, Redemption Fee and Conversion Fee will be paid to the AIFM. The AIFM may in its discretion waive all or part of the Subscription Fee, Redemption Fee or Conversion Fee.

Banks and other financial intermediaries appointed by or acting on behalf of the Shareholders, where applicable, may charge administration and/or other fees or commissions to the Shareholders pursuant to arrangements between those banks or other financial intermediaries and the Shareholders. The Fund has no control over such arrangements.

9.2 Management Fee

The AIFM will be entitled to an annual fee equal to a percentage of the Net Asset Value of each Sub-Fund or Share Class and paid out of the assets of the Fund and allocated to each Sub-Fund and Share Class (as described in section 8.2 (Valuation procedure) above). The Management Fee will accrue on each Valuation Day and will be payable monthly in arrears at the rate specified in the relevant Supplement for each Sub-Fund or Share Class. The AIFM will also be entitled to reimbursement of reasonable out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred in carrying out its duties.

The Management Fee covers investment management and marketing services provided by the AIFM or its delegates. If the AIFM has appointed distributors to market the Shares, any fees payable to such distributors shall be paid by the AIFM out of its own fees.

9.3 Performance Fee

According to the Supplement of the relevant Sub-Fund, performance fees (the "**Performance Fees**") may be due to the AIFM according to the criteria represented in the relevant Supplement and in compliance with ESMA Guidelines on Performance Fees.

Where no Shares are in issue for a Share Class on a given day, the Subscription Price applied on that day will be considered as the initial price for that Share Class; where changes occur in the Prospectus in relation to the calculation method of Performance Fees applicable for a Share Class, accrued Performance Fees will be crystallised and paid to the AIFM, and the Net Asset Value, or the Net Asset Value per Share as applicable, calculated on the last Valuation Day in which the old calculation method is applied, will be considered as the initial reference value for the computation of Performance Fees with the new calculation method.

9.4 Fees of the Depositary and the Administrator

The Fund will pay to the Depositary and to the Administrator annual fees which will vary up to a maximum of 0.5% of the net asset value at Fund level subject to a minimum fee per Sub-Fund of EUR 46,540 and a minimum fee of EUR 36,000 at Fund level. These fees are payable on a monthly basis and do not include any transaction related fees and costs of sub-custodians or similar agents.

The fees of the Depositary and the Administrator will be allocated to the relevant Sub-Funds and Share Classes as described in section 8.2.5 (Allocation of assets and liabilities to Sub-Funds and Share Classes). The Depositary and the Administrator will also be entitled to reimbursement of reasonable out-of-pocket expenses properly incurred in carrying out their duties.

Further fees may be payable to the Depositary and the Administrator in consideration of ancillary services rendered to the Fund and relating to the core services of the Depositary and the Administrator.

9.5 Directors' fees and expenses

The members of the Board of Directors are entitled to receive a fee in consideration for their function. The Fund will also reimburse the members of the Board of Directors for appropriate insurance coverage and expenses and other costs incurred by the members of the Board of Directors in the performance of their duties, including reasonable out-of-pocket expenses, traveling costs incurred to attend meetings of the Board of Directors, and any costs of legal proceedings unless such costs are caused by intentional or grossly negligent conduct by the member of the Board of Directors in question.

9.6 Operating and Administrative Expenses

The Fund bears all ordinary costs and expenses incurred in the operation and administration of the Fund or any Sub-Fund or Share Class ("**Operating and Administrative Expenses**") including but not limited to costs and expenses incurred in connection with:

- preparing, producing, printing, depositing, publishing and/or distributing any documents relating to the Fund, a Sub-Fund or Share Class that are required by applicable laws and regulations (such as the Articles of Association, this Prospectus, financial reports and notices to Shareholders) or any other documents and materials made available to Shareholders (such as explanatory memoranda, statements, reports, factsheets and similar documents);
- 2) organising and holding general meetings of shareholders and preparing, printing, publishing and/or distributing notices and other communications to shareholders;
- 3) professional advisory services (such legal, tax, accounting, compliance, auditing and other advisory services) taken by the Fund or the AIFM on behalf of the Fund;
- 4) investment services taken and/or data obtained by the Fund or the AIFM on behalf of the Fund (including fees and expenses incurred in obtaining investment research,

systems and other services or data utilised for portfolio and risk management purposes);

- 5) the authorisation of the Fund, the Sub-Funds and Share Classes, regulatory compliance obligations and reporting requirements of the Fund (such as administrative fees, filing fees, insurance costs and other types of fees and expenses incurred in the course of regulatory compliance), and all types of insurance obtained on behalf of the Fund and/or the members of the Board of Directors;
- 6) initial and ongoing obligations relating to the registration and/or listing of the Fund, a Sub-Fund or Share Class and the distribution of Shares in Luxembourg and abroad (such as fees charged by and expenses payable to financial regulators, distributors, correspondent banks, representatives, listing agents, paying agents, fund platforms, and other agents and/or service providers appointed in this context, as well as advisory, legal, and translation costs);
- 7) the determination and publication of tax factors for the EU/EEA Member States and/or any other countries where distribution licences and/or private placements exist, according to the actual expenditure incurred at market rates;
- 8) memberships or services provided by international organisations or industry bodies such as the Association of the Luxembourg Fund Industry (ALFI);
- 9) taxes, charges and duties payable to governments and local authorities (including the Luxembourg annual subscription tax (*taxe d'abonnement*) and any other taxes payable on assets, income or expenses) and any value added tax (VAT) or similar tax associated with any fees and expenses paid by the Fund; and
- 10) the reorganisation or liquidation of the Fund, a Sub-Fund or Share Class.

9.7 Transaction costs

Each Sub-Fund bears the costs and expenses arising from buying and selling portfolio assets and entering into other transactions in securities or other financial instruments, such as brokerage fees and commissions and all other fees, expenses, commissions, charges, premiums and interest paid to banks, brokers, execution agents, securities lending agents and/or incurred in participating in any securities lending, repurchase and buy-sell back programs, collateral management fees and associated costs and charges, exchange fees, taxes, levies and stamp duties chargeable in connection with transactions in securities or other financial, and any other transaction-related expenses.

9.8 Extraordinary costs and expenses

In order to safeguard the interests of the Fund and its Shareholders, the Fund or any Sub-Fund may bear any extraordinary costs and expenses including, without limitation, costs and expenses related to litigation and regulatory investigations (including penalties, fines, damages and indemnifications) and the full amount of any tax, levy, duty or similar charge imposed on the Fund or Sub-Fund that would not be considered as ordinary Operating and Administrative Expenses.

9.9 Formation costs and expenses

The costs and expenses incurred in connection with the formation of the Fund are estimated to an amount of two million seven hundred fifty thousand Swedish Krona (SEK 2,750,000.-). Such costs and expenses will be borne by the Fund and may be amortised over a period of up to five (5) years from the date of incorporation of the Fund. The formation costs and expenses of each new Sub-Fund will be borne by such Sub-Fund and may be amortised over a period of up to five (5) years. New Sub-Funds created after the incorporation and launch of the Fund will participate in the non-amortised formation costs and expenses of the Fund.

10. GENERAL INFORMATION

10.1 Reports and financial statements

The financial statements of the Fund will be prepared in accordance with Luxembourg GAAP and will contain any material changes to the information listed in article 21 of the 2013 Law during the financial year to which the financial statement refers.

The financial year of the Fund will begin on 1 January of each year and end on 31 December of the same year. Each year, the Fund will issue an Annual Report as of the end of the previous financial year comprising, *inter alia*, the audited financial statements of the Fund and each Sub-Fund and a report of the Board of Directors on the activities of the Fund. The first financial year will end on 31 December 2025 and the first Annual Report will be issued as of 31 December 2025. The Annual Reports shall be made available to Shareholders within six (6) months following the end of the reporting period. Shareholders may obtain, upon request, a copy of the latest Annual Report from the AIFM free of charge.

Each year, the Fund will also issue a Semi-Annual Report covering the first six (6) months of each financial year in accordance with the 2010 Law. The Semi-Annual Report shall be made available to the Shareholders within three (3) months following the end of the reporting period. The first Semi-Annual Report will cover the period ending on 30 June 2025 and will be made available to the Shareholders prior to 30 September 2025.

The Reference Currency of the Fund is Swedish Krona. The Annual Report will comprise consolidated accounts of the Fund expressed in Swedish Krona as well as individual information on each Sub-Fund expressed in the Reference Currency of such Sub-Fund.

10.2 Meetings of Shareholders

The annual general meeting of shareholders shall be held, within four (4) months of the end of each financial year in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg at the registered office of the Company or at such other place in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as may be specified in the convening notice of such meeting.

Other general meetings of Shareholders may be held at such place and time as indicated in the convening notice in order to decide on any other matters relating to the Fund. General meetings of Shareholders of any Sub-Fund or any Share Class within a Sub-Fund may be held at such time and place as indicated in the convening notice in order to decide on any matters which relate exclusively to such Sub-Fund or Share Class.

Notices of all general meetings may be made through announcements filed with the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register and be published at least fifteen (15) days before the meeting in *the Recueil électronique des sociétés et associations (RESA)* and in a Luxembourg newspaper and sent to all registered Shareholders by ordinary mail (*lettre missive*). Alternatively, convening notices may be sent to registered Shareholders by registered mail at least eight (8) calendar days prior to the meeting or if the addressees have individually accepted to receive the convening notices by another means of communication ensuring access to the information, by such means of communication. Notices will include the agenda and will specify the time and place of the meeting, the conditions of admission, and the quorum and voting requirements.

The requirements as to attendance, quorum, and majorities at all general meetings will be those laid down in the Articles of Association and in the 1915 Law. All Shareholders may attend general meetings in person or by appointing another person as his proxy in writing or by facsimile, electronic mail or any other similar means of communication accepted by the Fund. A single person may represent several or even all Shareholders of the Fund, a Sub-Fund or Share Class. Each Share entitles the Shareholder to one (1) vote at all general meetings of Shareholders of the Fund, and at all meetings of the Sub-Fund or Share Class concerned to the extent that such Share is a Share of such Sub-Fund or Share Class.

Shareholders holding together at least ten percent (10%) of the share capital or the voting rights may submit questions in writing to the board of directors relating to transactions in connection with the management of the Fund as well as companies controlled by the Fund, with respect to the latter.

The Board of Directors may suspend the voting rights of any Shareholder in breach of his obligations as described in this Prospectus, the Subscription Form or the Articles of Association.

10.3 Shareholders' rights

Upon the issue of the Shares, the person whose name appears on the register of Shares will become a Shareholder of the Fund in relation to the relevant Sub-Fund and Share Class. The Fund draws the Shareholders' attention to the fact that where a Shareholder invests in the Fund through an intermediary acting in his own name but on behalf of the Shareholder, it may not always be possible for the Shareholder to exercise certain Shareholder rights, such as the right to participate in general meetings of Shareholders, directly against the Fund. Shareholders are advised to seek advice in relation to their rights.

The Articles of Association are governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws currently into force in Luxembourg.

The Subscription Form is expressed to be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws currently into force in Luxembourg, and contains a choice of international competence of the courts of the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg.

There are no legal instruments in Luxembourg required for the recognition and enforcement of judgments rendered by a Luxembourg court. If a foreign, i.e. non-Luxembourg court, on the basis of mandatory domestic provisions, renders a judgment against the Fund, the rules of the Brussels I (Recast) (regarding judgments from EU Member States) or the rules of the Lugano Convention or of the private international law of Luxembourg (regarding judgments from non-EU Member States) concerning the recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments apply. Shareholders are advised to seek advice, on a case-by-case basis, on the available rules concerning the recognition and enforcements.

Absent a direct contractual relationship between the Shareholders and the service providers mentioned in section 6 (Management and Administration) above, the Shareholders will generally have no direct rights against service providers and there are only limited circumstances in which a Shareholder can potentially bring a claim against a service provider. Instead, the proper claimant in an action in respect of which a wrongdoing is alleged to have been committed against the Fund by a service provider is, *prima facie*, the Fund itself.

10.4 Changes to this Prospectus

The Board of Directors, in close cooperation with the AIFM, may from time to time amend this Prospectus to reflect various changes it deems necessary and in the best interest of the Fund, such as implementing changes to laws and regulations, changes to a Sub-Fund's objective and policy or changes to fees and costs charged to a Sub-Fund or Share Class. Any amendment of this Prospectus will require approval by the CSSF prior to taking effect. In accordance with applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders in the Sub-Fund or Share Class will be informed about the changes and, where required, and depending on the materiality of the changes and the approval of the CSSF, will be given at least one month prior notice of any proposed material changes in order for them to request the redemption of their Shares free of charge should they disagree.

10.5 Documents and information available

Shareholders may obtain, upon request during business hours on any full bank business day in Luxembourg, a copy of this Prospectus as well as of the latest Annual Report and the Articles of Association from the Fund or AIFM free of charge. Upon request, a Shareholder shall be sent those documents.

The information listed in article 23 of the AIFMD will be made available free of charge at the registered office of the AIFM.

The AIFM has a "best execution" policy with the objective of obtaining the best possible result for the Fund when executing decisions to deal on behalf of the Fund or placing orders to deal on behalf of the Fund with other entities for execution. Further information on the best execution policy may be obtained from the AIFM upon request.

The AIFM has a strategy for determining when and how voting rights attached to ownership of a Sub-Fund's investments are to be exercised for the exclusive benefit of the Sub-Fund. A summary of this strategy as well as the details of the actions taken on the basis of this strategy in relation to each Sub-Fund may be obtained from the AIFM upon request.

Copies of the following documents are available for inspection during usual business hours on any Business Day at the registered office of the Fund: (i) the Management Agreement, (ii) the Depositary Agreement and (iii) the Administration Agreement.

10.6 Data protection

In accordance with the provisions of any applicable Luxembourg data protection law (including but not limited to the law of 1st August 2018 on the organization of the National Commission for Data Protection and the general regime on data protection, as may be amended or replaced) and the EU Regulation n°2016/679 of 27 April 2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the free movement of such data (the "**GDPR Law**") (the "**Data Protection Law**"), the Fund, acting as data controller (the "**Data Controller**"), collects, stores and processes, by electronic or other means, the data supplied by the Shareholders and/or the prospective Shareholders or, if the Shareholder and/or the prospective Shareholder is a legal person, by any natural person related to the Shareholder and/or the prospective Shareholder such as its contact person(s), employee(s), trustee(s), agent(s), representative(s) and/or beneficial owner(s) (all the natural persons above, the "**Data**

Subjects") for the purpose of fulfilling the services required by the Shareholders and complying with its legal and regulatory obligations.

The data processed include in particular (i) for individual investors: the Data Subject's name, contact details (including postal or email address), banking details, invested amount and holdings in the Fund; ii) for corporate investors: the name and address (including postal and/or e-mail address) of the natural person related to the Investors; and (iii) any personal data the processing of which is required in order to comply with regulatory requirements, including tax law and foreign laws (all the personal data mentioned above, collectively, the "**Personal Data**").

The Data Subjects may at their discretion refuse to communicate Personal Data to the Data Controller. In this case, however, the Fund may reject a request for Shares.

Investors who are legal persons undertake and guarantee to process Personal Data and to supply such Personal Data to the Fund in compliance with the Data Protection Law, including, where appropriate, informing the Data Subjects of the contents of the present section, in accordance with Articles 12 to 14 of the GDPR.

Personal Data supplied by Data Subjects are processed in order to enter into and execute the subscription in the Fund (i.e. to perform any pre-contractual measures as well as the contract entered into by the Data Subjects), for the legitimate interests of the Data Controller and to comply with the legal obligations imposed on the Data Controller. Personal Data supplied by Data Subjects is processed, in particular, for the purposes of (i) subscribing in the Fund, (ii) processing subscriptions, redemptions and conversions of Shares and payments of dividends to Shareholders, (iii) maintaining the register of Shareholders, (iv) account administration, (v) client relationship management, (vi) performing controls on excessive trading and market timing practices, (vii) tax identification as may be required under Luxembourg or foreign laws and regulations (including laws and regulations relating to FATCA or CRS) and (viii) complying with applicable anti-money laundering rules. In addition, Personal Data may be processed for the purposes of marketing purposes by writing to the Data Subject to the use of its Personal Data for marketing purposes by writing to the Data Controller.

The "legitimate interests" referred to above are:

- the processing purposes described in point (v) of the above paragraph of this data protection section;
- the provision of proof, in the event of a dispute, of a transaction or any commercial communication; as well as in connection with any proposed purchase, merger or acquisition of any part of the Fund's business; and
- exercising the business of the Fund in accordance with reasonable market standards.

In accordance with the provisions of the Data Protection Law, the Personal Data may also be processed by the Data Controller's data recipients (the "**Recipients**") which, in the context of the above mentioned purposes, refer to the AIFM, the Depositary, Administrator and Paying Agent, the Auditor and the Legal adviser as to matters of Luxembourg Law.

The Recipients may, under their own responsibility, disclose the Personal Data to their agents and/or delegates (the "**Sub-Recipients**"), which shall process the Personal Data for the sole purposes of assisting the Recipients in providing their services to the Data Controller and/or assisting the Recipients in fulfilling their own legal obligations.

The Recipients and Sub-Recipients may be located either inside or outside the European Economic Area (the "EEA"). Where the Recipients are located outside the EEA in a country which does not ensure an adequate level of protection for Personal Data, the Data Controller will enter into legally binding transfer agreements with the relevant Recipients in the form of the EU Commission's approved model clauses. Where the Sub-Recipients are located outside the EEA in a country which does not ensure an adequate level of protection for Personal Data. the Recipients shall also enter into legally binding transfer agreements with the relevant Sub-Recipients in the form of the EU Commission's approved model clauses. In this respect, the Data Subjects have a right to request copies of the relevant document for enabling the Personal Data transfer(s) towards such countries by writing to the Data Controller. The Recipients (when processing the Personal Data upon instructions of the Data Controller) and Sub-Recipients (when processing the Personal Data upon instructions of the Recipients) may, as the case may be, process the Personal Data as data processors (when processing the Personal Data upon instructions of the Data Controller), or as distinct data controllers (when processing the Personal Data for their own purposes, namely fulfilling their own legal obligations). The Data Controller may also transfer Personal Data to third parties such as governmental or regulatory agencies including tax authorities, in or outside the European Union, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. In particular, such Personal Data may be disclosed to the Luxembourg tax authorities, which in turn may, acting as data controller, disclose the same to foreign tax authorities.

In accordance with the conditions laid down by the Data Protection Law, the Data Subjects acknowledge their right to:

- access their Personal Data (i.e. the right to obtain from the Data Controller confirmation as to whether or not Data Subject's Personal Data are being processed, to be provided with certain information about the Data Controller's processing of their Personal Data, to access to that data, and to obtain a copy of the Personal Data undergoing processing (subject to exceptions));
- rectify their Personal Data where it is inaccurate or incomplete (i.e. the right to require from the Data Controller that inaccurate or incomplete Personal Data be updated or corrected accordingly);
- object to the processing of their Personal Data (i.e. the right to object, on grounds relating to the Data Subject's particular situation, to processing of Personal Data which is based on the performance of a task carried out in the public interest or the legitimate interests of the Data Controller. The Data Controller shall stop such processing unless it can either demonstrate compelling legitimate grounds for the processing that override the Data Subject's interests, rights and freedoms or that it needs to process the data for the establishment, exercise or defence of legal claims);
- restrict the use of their Personal Data (i.e. the right to obtain that, under certain circumstances, the processing of the Data Subject's Personal Data should be restricted to storage of such data unless their consent has been obtained);
- ask for erasure of their Personal Data (i.e. the right to require that Personal Data be erased in certain circumstances, including where it is no longer necessary for the Data Controller to process this data in relation to the purposes for which it was collected or processed);
- ask for Personal Data portability (i.e. the right to have the data transferred to the Data Subjects or another controller in a structured, commonly used and machine-readable format, where this is technically feasible).

The Data Subjects may exercise their above rights by writing to the Data Controller at the following address: 5, Allée Scheffer, L-2520 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg.

The Data Subjects also acknowledge the existence of their right to lodge a complaint with the Luxembourg commission for data protection (the "**CNPD**") at the following address: 15, Boulevard du Jazz, L-4370 Belvaux, Grand Duchy of Luxembourg; or with any competent data protection supervisory authority in their EU Member State of residence.

Personal Data shall not be retained for a period longer than necessary for the purpose of the data processing, subject to any limitation periods imposed by law.

10.6.1 Transfer of personal and confidential data

As indicated under section 6.4 the Fund has appointed CACEIS Bank, Luxembourg Branch (CACEIS) to provide central administration services (including transfer agency services).

In order to provide those services, CACEIS must enter into outsourcing arrangements with third party service providers in- or outside the CACEIS group (the "**Sub-contractors**"). As part of those outsourcing arrangement, CACEIS may be required to disclose and transfer personal and confidential information and documents about the Shareholders and individuals related to the Shareholders (the "**Related Individuals**") (the "**Data transfer**") (such as identification data – including the Shareholder's and/or the Related Individual's name, address, national identifiers, date and country of birth, etc. – account information, contractual and other documentation and transaction information) (the "**Confidential Information**") to the Sub-contractors. In accordance with Luxembourg law, CACEIS is due to provide a certain level of information about those outsourcing arrangements to the Fund, which, in turn, must be provided by the Fund to the Shareholders.

A description of the purposes of the said outsourcing arrangements, the Confidential Information that may be transferred to Sub-contractors thereunder, as well as the country where those Sub-contractors are located is therefore set out in the below table.

Type of Confidential Information transmitted to the Sub-contractors	Country where the Sub-contractors are established	Nature of the outsourced activities
Confidential Information (as defined above)	Belgium Canada Hong Kong India Ireland Jersey Luxembourg Malaysia Poland Singapore United Kingdom United States of America	 Transfer agent/ shareholders services (incl. global reconciliation) Treasury and market services IT infrastructure (hosting services, including cloud services) IT system management / operation Services IT services (incl. development and maintenance services) Reporting Investor services activities

Confidential Information may be transferred to Sub-contractors established in countries where professional secrecy or confidentiality obligations are not equivalent to the Luxembourg professional secrecy obligations applicable to CACEIS. In any event, CACEIS is legally bound to, and has committed to the Fund that it will enter into outsourcing arrangements with Sub-contractors which are either subject to professional secrecy obligations by application of law or which will be contractually bound to comply with strict confidentiality rules. CACEIS further committed to the Fund that it will take reasonable technical and organisational measures to ensure the confidentiality of the Confidential Information subject to the Data Transfer and to protect Confidential Information against unauthorised processing. Confidential Information will therefore only be accessible to a limited number of persons within the relevant Sub-contractor, on "a need to know" basis and following the principle of the "least privilege". Unless otherwise authorised/required by law, or in order to comply with requests from national or foreign regulatory authorities or law enforcement authorities, the relevant Confidential Information will not be transferred to entities other than the Sub-contractors.

10.7 Merger and reorganisation

10.7.1 Merger of the Fund, Sub-Funds or Share Classes

The Board of Directors may decide to merge, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, the Fund, a Sub-Fund or Share Class (the "**Merging Entity**") with (i) another Sub-Fund or class of shares of the Fund, or (ii) another Luxembourg undertaking organised under the law of 13 February 2007 on specialised investment funds or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or (iii) another Luxembourg undertaking organised under the law of 23 July 2016 on reserved alternative investment funds or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or (iv) another Luxembourg undertaking for collective investment organised under the law of 17 December 2010 concerning undertakings for collective investment, as amended, or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or (v) another foreign undertaking for collective investment or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or class of shares thereof (the "**Receiving Entity**") in the event that, for any reason, the Board of Directors determines that:

- (i) the Net Asset Value of the merging Sub-Fund or Share Class has decreased to, or has not reached, the minimum level for that Sub-Fund or Share Class to be managed and/or administered in an efficient manner,
- (ii) changes in the legal, economic or political environment would justify such merger, or
- (iii) a product rationalisation would justify such merger,

by transferring the assets and liabilities from the Merging Entity to the Receiving Entity, or by allocating the assets of the Merging Entity to the assets of the Receiving Entity, or by any other method of merger, amalgamation or reorganisation, as may be applicable, and, following a split or consolidation, if necessary, and the payment to Shareholders of the amount corresponding to any fractional entitlement, by re-designating the shares of the Merging Entity, or by any other method of reorganisation or exchange of shares, as may be applicable.

Shareholders of the Merging Entity will be informed of the merger by way of a notice sent prior to the merger one month before it becomes effective in accordance with the Articles of

Association and the applicable laws and regulations. The notice will indicate the reasons for and the procedures of the merger, as well as information on the Receiving Entity. The notice will also indicate that Shareholders of the Merging Entity have the right to request the redemption of their shares free of charge (but taking into account actual realisation prices of investments, realisation expenses and liquidation costs) at least one month prior to the effective date of the merger. Exceptions may apply if the Receiving Entity is a Share Class of the Fund. Such a merger does not require the prior consent of the Shareholders except where the Company is the Merging Entity which, thus, ceases to exist as a result of the merger. In the latter case, the general meeting of Shareholders of the Fund must decide on the merger and its effective date. Such general meeting will decide subject to the quorum and majority requirements applicable in case of an amendment of the Articles of Association.

The Board of Directors may decide to proceed, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, with the absorption by the Fund or one or several Sub-Funds or classes of shares of (i) another Luxembourg undertaking organised under the 2010 Law or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or (ii) another Luxembourg undertaking organised under the law of 13 February 2007 on specialised investment funds or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or (iii) another Luxembourg under the law of 23 July 2016 on reserved alternative investment funds or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or (iv) another Luxembourg undertaking for collective investment, as amended, or sub-fund or class of shares thereof, or (v) another foreign undertaking for collective investment or sub-fund or class of shares thereof.

Notwithstanding the powers conferred on the Board of Directors by the preceding paragraphs, Shareholders of the Merging Entity may decide on such merger by resolution taken by the general meeting of Shareholders of the Sub-Fund or Share Class concerned. The convening notice to the general meeting of Shareholders of the Sub-Fund or Share Class will indicate the reasons for and the procedures of the proposed merger, as well as information on the receiving Entity.

10.7.2 Absorption of another fund or sub-fund or share class

The Board of Directors may decide to proceed, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations, with the absorption, including by way of merger or by acceptance of a contribution in kind, by the Fund or one or several Sub-Funds or Share Classes of (i) another Luxembourg SIF or sub-fund or share class thereof, or (ii) another Luxembourg UCI organised under the 2010 Law or sub-fund or share class thereof, or (iii) another foreign UCI or sub-fund or share class thereof (the "**Absorbed Entity**").

Notwithstanding the powers conferred on the Board of Directors by the preceding paragraph, the Shareholders of the Fund or any Sub-Fund or Share Class, as applicable, may also decide on any of the absorptions described above as well as on the effective date thereof by resolution taken by the general meeting of Shareholders of the Fund or Sub-Fund or Share Class. The convening notice will explain the reasons for and the process of the proposed absorption.

10.7.3 Reorganisation of Sub-Funds or Share Classes

Under the same conditions and procedure as for a merger of Sub-Funds or Share Classes into another Sub-Fund or Share Class of the Fund, the Board of Directors may decide to reorganise

a Sub-Fund or Share Class by means of a division into two or more Sub-Funds or Share Classes.

10.8 Liquidation

10.8.1 Termination and liquidation of Sub-Funds or Share Classes

The Board of Directors may decide to compulsorily redeem all the Shares of any Sub-Fund or Share Class and thereby terminate and liquidate any Sub-Fund or Share Class in the event that, for any reason, the Board of Directors determines that:

- the Net Asset Value of a Sub-Fund or Share Class has decreased to, or has not reached, the minimum level for that Sub-Fund or Share Class to be operated in an efficient manner;
- (ii) changes in the legal, economic or political environment would justify such liquidation; or
- (iii) a product rationalisation would justify such liquidation.

Shareholders will be informed of the decision to terminate a Sub-Fund or Share Class by way of a notice. The notice will explain the reasons for and the process of the termination and liquidation.

Notwithstanding the powers conferred on the Board of Directors by the preceding paragraph, the Shareholders of any Sub-Fund or Share Class, as applicable, may also decide on such termination by resolution taken by the general meeting of Shareholders of the Sub-Fund or Share Class and have the Fund redeem compulsorily all the Shares of the Sub-Fund or Share Class at the Net Asset Value per Share for the applicable Valuation Day. The convening notice will explain the reasons for and the process of the proposed termination and liquidation.

Sub-Funds or Share Classes with a defined term will be automatically terminated and liquidated upon the occurrence of their term, as set out in the relevant Supplement where applicable, unless terminated earlier in accordance with the provisions of this section.

Actual realisation prices of investments, realisation expenses and liquidation costs will be taken into account in calculating the Net Asset Value applicable to the compulsory redemption. Shareholders in the Sub-Fund or Share Class concerned will generally be authorised to continue requesting the redemption or conversion of their Shares prior to the effective date of the compulsory redemption, unless the Board of Directors determines that it would not be in the best interest of Shareholders in that Sub-Fund or Share Class or could jeopardise the fair treatment of Shareholders.

All Shares redeemed will generally be cancelled. Redemption proceeds which have not been claimed by Shareholders upon the compulsory redemption will be deposited in escrow at the *Caisse de Consignation* in Luxembourg in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. Proceeds not claimed within the statutory period will be forfeited in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The termination and liquidation of a Sub-Fund or Share Class will have no influence on the existence of any other Sub-Fund or Share Class. The decision to terminate and liquidate the last Sub-Fund existing in the Fund will result in the dissolution and liquidation of the Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association.

10.8.2 Dissolution and liquidation of the Fund

The Fund is incorporated for an unlimited period. It may be dissolved at any time with or without cause by a resolution of the general meeting of Shareholders adopted in compliance with applicable laws.

The compulsory dissolution of the Fund may be ordered by Luxembourg competent courts in circumstances provided by the 2010 Law and the 1915 Law.

As soon as a decision to dissolve the Fund will be taken, the issue, redemption or conversion of Shares in all Sub-Funds is prohibited. The liquidation will be carried out in accordance with the provisions of the 2010 Law and 1915 Law. Liquidation proceeds which have not been claimed by Shareholders at the time of the closure of the liquidation will be deposited in escrow at the *Caisse de Consignation* in Luxembourg. Proceeds not claimed within the statutory period will be forfeited in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

11. TAXATION

11.1 General

The following summary is based on the law and practice applicable in the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg as at the date of this Prospectus and is subject to changes in law (or interpretation) later introduced, whether or not on a retroactive basis. It does not purport to be a complete analysis of all possible tax situations that may be relevant to an investment decision. It is included herein solely for preliminary information purposes. It is not intended to be, nor should it be construed to be, legal or tax advice. It is a description of the essential material Luxembourg tax consequences with respect to the Shares and may not include tax considerations that arise from rules of general application or that are generally assumed to be known to Shareholders. Shareholders should inform themselves of, and when appropriate, consult their professional advisors with regard to the possible tax consequences of subscription for buying, holding, exchanging, redeeming or otherwise disposing of Shares under the laws of their country of citizenship, residence, domicile or incorporation.

Shareholders should also note that a reference to Luxembourg income tax generally encompasses corporate income tax (*impôt sur le revenu des collectivités*), municipal business tax (*impôt commercial communal*), a solidarity surcharge (*contribution au fonds pour l'emploi*) and personal income tax (*impôt sur le revenu des personnes physiques*). Corporate Shareholders may further be subject to net wealth tax (*impôt sur la fortune*) as well as other duties, levies or taxes. Corporate income tax, municipal business tax and the solidarity surcharge invariably apply to most corporate taxpayers resident in Luxembourg for tax purposes. Individual taxpayers are generally subject to personal income tax and to the solidarity surcharge. Under certain circumstances, where an individual taxpayer acts in the course of the management of a professional or business undertaking, municipal business tax may also apply.

11.2 The Fund

Under current Luxembourg law and practice, the Fund is not liable to any Luxembourg income or net wealth tax nor are distribution, redemption or payment made by the Fund to its Shareholders under the Shares and distribution of liquidation proceeds subject to any Luxembourg withholding tax.

Subscription tax

Each Sub-Fund is liable in Luxembourg to a subscription tax (*taxe d'abonnement*) of 0.05% *per annum* on its net assets, such tax being payable quarterly and calculated on the net assets of each Sub-Fund valued at the end of the relevant calendar quarter.

A reduced tax rate of 0.01% *per annum* will be applicable to:

- undertakings whose sole object is the collective investment in money market instruments and in deposits with credit institutions;
- undertakings whose sole object is the collective investment in deposits with credit institutions;

- individual compartments of UCIs with multiple compartments as well as to individual classes of securities issued within a UCI or within a sub-fund of a UCI with multiple compartments, provided that the securities of such compartments or classes are reserved to one or more institutional investors.

The following exemptions from subscription tax apply:

- the value of the assets represented by units held in other UCIs, provided that such units have already been subject to the subscription tax provided for by article 174 of the 2010 Law, or by article 68 of the law of 13 February 2007 on specialised investment funds, as amended, or by article 46 of the law of 23 July 2016 on reserved alternative investment funds;
- UCIs as well as individual compartments of UCIs with multiple compartments (i) whose securities are reserved for institutional investors, and (ii) whose sole object is the collective investment in money market instruments and in deposits with credit institution, and (iii) whose weighted residual portfolio maturity does not exceed 90 days and (iv) that have obtained the highest possible rating from a recognised rating agency. Where several classes of securities exist within the UCI or the compartment, the exemption only applies to classes whose securities are reserved for institutional investors;
- UCIs whose securities are reserved for (i) institutions for occupational retirement pension or similar investment vehicles, set up on one or more employers' initiative for the benefit of their employees and (ii) companies of one or several employers investing funds they hold, to provide retirement benefits to their employees;
- UCIs as well as individual compartments of UCIs with multiple sub-funds whose main object is to invest in micro-finance institutions;
- UCIs as well as individual compartments of UCIs with multiple compartments (i) whose securities are listed or traded on at least one stock exchange or another regulated market, operating regularly, recognised and open to the public, and (ii) whose exclusive object is to replicate the performance of one or more indices. If several classes of securities exist within the UCI or the compartment, the exemption only applies to classes fulfilling the condition sub-point (i).

Other Luxembourg taxes

No stamp duty or other tax is generally payable in Luxembourg on the issue of Shares for cash by the Fund except a fixed registration duty of EUR 75.- which is paid upon incorporation of the Fund and any amendments to the Articles of Association.

The Fund may be subject to non-recoverable withholding tax on dividends and interest and to tax on capital gains in the country of origin of its investments. As the Fund itself is exempt from income tax, withholding tax levied at source, if any, is not refundable in Luxembourg. Whether the Fund may benefit from a double tax treaty concluded by Luxembourg must be analysed on a case-by-case basis.

11.3 Shareholders

It is expected that Shareholders in the Fund will be resident for tax purposes in many different countries. Consequently, except as set-out below, no attempt is made in this Prospectus to summarise the taxation consequences for each Shareholder subscribing, converting, holding or redeeming or otherwise acquiring or disposing of Shares of the Fund. These consequences will vary in accordance with the law and practice currently in force in a Shareholder's country of citizenship, residence, domicile or incorporation and with his personal circumstances.

Shareholders should consult their own professional advisors on the possible tax or other consequences of buying, holding, transferring or selling the Fund's Shares under the laws of their countries of citizenship.

11.3.1 Luxembourg tax residency

A Shareholder will not become resident, nor be deemed to be resident, in Luxembourg by reason only of the holding and/or disposing of Shares or the execution, performance, delivery and/or enforcement of his/her/its rights and obligations thereunder.

11.3.2 Luxembourg Income tax - Luxembourg residents

Luxembourg resident Shareholders are not liable for any Luxembourg income tax on reimbursement of the share capital contributed to the Fund.

a) Luxembourg resident individuals

Any dividends and other payments derived from the Shares by Luxembourg resident individuals, who act in the course of either their private wealth or their professional or business activities are subject to income tax at the progressive ordinary rates.

Capital gains realised upon the sale, disposal or redemption of Shares by Luxembourg resident individual Shareholders acting in the course of the management of their private wealth are not subject to Luxembourg income tax, unless said capital gains qualify either as speculative gains or as gains on a substantial participation. Capital gains are deemed to be speculative and are thus subject to income tax at ordinary rates if the Shares are disposed of less than six (6) months after the acquisition thereof, or if their disposal precedes their acquisition. A participation is considered to be substantial in limited cases, in particular if (i) the Shareholder has held, either alone or together with his/her spouse or partner and/or his/her minor children, either directly or indirectly, at any time within the five (5) years preceding the realisation of the gain, more than ten percent (10%) of the share capital of the Fund or (ii) the Shareholder acquired free of charge, within the five (5) years preceding the transfer, a participation that constituted a substantial participation in the hands of the alienator (or alienators, in case of successive transfers free of charge within the same five year period). Capital gains realised on a substantial participation more than six (6) months after the acquisition thereof are subject to income tax according to the half-global rate method (*i.e.* the average rate applicable to the total income is calculated according to progressive income tax rates and half of the average rate is applied to the capital gains realised on the substantial participation). A disposal may include a sale, an exchange, a contribution or any other kind of alienation of the participation.

Capital gains realised on the disposal of the Shares by a resident individual Shareholder, who acts in the course of the management of his/her professional/business activity, are subject to income tax at ordinary rates. Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the price for which the Shares have been disposed of and the lower of their cost or book value.

b) Luxembourg resident corporate Shareholders

Luxembourg resident corporate Shareholders (*sociétés de capitaux*) must include any profits derived as well as any gain realised on the sale, disposal or redemption of Shares, in their taxable profits for Luxembourg income tax assessment purposes. Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the sale, repurchase or redemption price and the lower of the cost or book value of the Shares sold or redeemed.

c) Luxembourg resident corporate Shareholders benefiting from a special tax regime

Luxembourg resident corporate Shareholders which benefit from a special tax regime, such as (i) UCIs governed by the 2010 Law, (ii) specialised investment funds governed by the law of 13 February 2007, as amended, (iii) family wealth management companies governed by the law of 11 May 2007, as amended, and (iv) reserved alternative investment funds governed by the law of 23 July 2016, as amended, and treated as specialised investment funds for Luxembourg tax purposes are tax exempt entities in Luxembourg and are thus not subject to any Luxembourg income tax on profits derived from the Shares.

11.3.3 Luxembourg Income tax - Luxembourg non-residents

Shareholders, who are non-residents of Luxembourg and which have neither a permanent establishment nor a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Shares are attributable, are generally not subject to any income tax on income received and capital gains realised upon the sale, disposal or redemption of the Shares.

Corporate Shareholders that are non-residents of Luxembourg but that have a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Shares are attributable must include any income received as well as any gain realised on the sale, disposal or redemption of Shares in their taxable income for Luxembourg tax assessment purposes. The same inclusion applies to individuals, acting in the course of the management of a professional or business undertaking, who have a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Shares are attributable. Taxable gains are determined as being the difference between the sale, repurchase or redemption price and the lower of the cost or book value of the Shares sold or redeemed.

Shareholders resident in or citizens of certain countries which have anti-offshore fund legislation may have a current liability to tax on the undistributed income and gains of the Fund. The Fund and each of the Fund's agents shall have no liability in respect of the individual tax affairs of Shareholders.

Shareholders should consult their professional advisors regarding the possible tax or other consequences of buying, holding, transferring or selling Shares under the laws of their countries of citizenship, residence or domicile.

11.3.4 Net Wealth Tax

Luxembourg resident Shareholders, and non-resident Shareholders having a permanent establishment or a permanent representative in Luxembourg to which or whom the Shares are attributable, are subject to Luxembourg net wealth tax on such Shares, unless the Shareholder is (i) a resident or non-resident individual taxpayer, (ii) a UCI governed by the 2010 Law, (iii) a securitisation company governed by the law of 22 March 2004 on securitisation, as amended, (iv) a company governed by the law of 15 June 2004 on venture capital vehicles, as amended, (v) a specialised investment fund governed by the law of 13 February 2007, as amended, (vi) a family wealth management company governed by the law of 13 July 2007, as amended, (vii) a professional pension institution governed by the law of 23 July 2016, as amended.

However, (i) a securitisation company governed by the law of 22 March 2004 on securitisation, as amended, (ii) a company governed by the law of 15 June 2004 on venture capital vehicles, as amended, (iii) a professional pension institution governed by the law of 13 July 2005, as amended and (iv) an opaque reserved alternative investment fund governed by the law of 23 July 2016 and treated as a venture capital vehicle for Luxembourg tax purposes remain subject to a minimum net wealth tax in Luxembourg.

11.3.5 Other Taxes

Under Luxembourg tax law, where an individual Shareholder is a resident of Luxembourg for tax purposes at the time of his/her death, the Shares are included in his or her taxable basis for inheritance purposes. No estate or inheritance tax is levied on the transfer of Shares upon death of a Shareholder in cases where the deceased was not a resident of Luxembourg for inheritance tax purposes at the time of his/her death.

Luxembourg gift tax may be levied on a gift or donation of Shares if embodied in a Luxembourg notarial deed or otherwise registered in Luxembourg.

11.4 VAT

The Fund is considered in Luxembourg as a taxable person for value added tax ("**VAT**") purposes without any input VAT deduction right. A VAT exemption applies in Luxembourg for services qualifying as fund management services. Other services supplied to the Fund could potentially trigger VAT and require the VAT registration of the Fund in Luxembourg. As a result of such VAT registration, the Fund will be in a position to fulfil its duty to self-assess the VAT regarded as due in Luxembourg on taxable services (or goods to some extent) purchased outside Luxembourg. No VAT liability arises in principle in Luxembourg in respect of any payments by the Fund to its Shareholders, to the extent such payments are linked to their subscription to the Shares and do, therefore, not constitute the consideration received for taxable services supplied.

11.5 FATCA

Capitalised terms used in this section should have the meaning as set forth in the FATCA Law, unless otherwise provided herein.

The Fund may be subject to the so-called FATCA legislation which generally requires reporting to the US Internal Revenue Service of non-US financial institutions that do not comply with FATCA and direct or indirect ownership by US persons of non-US entities. As part of the process of implementing FATCA, the US government has negotiated intergovernmental agreements with certain foreign jurisdictions which are intended to streamline reporting and compliance requirements for entities established in such foreign jurisdictions and subject to FATCA.

Luxembourg has entered into the FATCA Law which requires Financial Institutions located in Luxembourg to report, when required, information on Financial Accounts held by Specified US Persons, if any, to the Luxembourg tax authorities (*administration des contributions directes*).

Under the terms of the FATCA Law, the Fund is likely to be treated as a Luxembourg Reporting Financial Institution.

This status imposes on the Fund the obligation to regularly obtain and verify information on all of its Shareholders. On the request of the Fund, each Shareholder shall agree to provide certain information, including, in the case of a passive Non-Financial Foreign Entity ("**NFFE**"), information on the Controlling Persons of such NFFE, along with the required supporting documentation. Similarly, each Shareholder shall agree to actively provide to the Fund within thirty (30) days any information that would affect its status, as for instance a new mailing address or a new residency address.

The FATCA Law may require the Fund to disclose the names, addresses and taxpayer identification number (if available) of its Shareholders as well as information such as account balances, income and gross proceeds (non-exhaustive list) to the Luxembourg tax authorities for the purposes set out in the FATCA Law. Such information will be relayed by the Luxembourg tax authorities to the US Internal Revenue Service.

Shareholders qualifying as passive NFFEs undertake to inform their Controlling Persons, if applicable, of the processing of their information by the Fund.

Additionally, the Fund is responsible for the processing of personal data and each Shareholder has a right to access the data communicated to the Luxembourg tax authorities and to correct such data (if necessary). Any data obtained by the Fund is to be processed in accordance with the applicable data protection legislation.

Although the Fund will attempt to satisfy any obligation imposed on it to avoid imposition of FATCA withholding tax, no assurance can be given that the Fund will be able to satisfy these obligations. If the Fund becomes subject to a withholding tax or penalties as result of the FATCA regime, the value of the Shares held by the Shareholders may suffer material losses. The failure for the Fund to obtain such information from each Shareholder and to transmit it to the Luxembourg tax authorities may trigger the 30% withholding tax to be imposed on payments of US source income and on proceeds from the sale of property or other assets that could give rise to US source interest and dividends as well as penalties.

Any Shareholder that fails to comply with the Fund's documentation requests may be charged with any taxes and/or penalties imposed on the Fund as a result of such Shareholder's failure to provide the information and the Fund may, in its sole discretion, redeem the Shares of such Shareholder.

Shareholders who invest through intermediaries are reminded to check if and how their intermediaries will comply with this US withholding tax and reporting regime.

Shareholders should consult a US tax advisor or otherwise seek professional advice regarding the above requirements.

11.6 Common Reporting Standard

Capitalised terms used in this section should have the meaning as set forth in the CRS Law unless otherwise provided herein.

The Fund may be subject to the CRS as set out in the CRS Law.

Under the terms of the CRS Law, the Fund is likely to be treated as a Luxembourg Reporting Financial Institution. As such, the Fund will be required to annually report to the Luxembourg tax authorities personal and financial information related, *inter alia*, to the identification of, holdings by and payments made to (i) certain Shareholders that are qualifying as Reportable Persons, and (ii) Controlling Persons of passive certain non-financial entities ("**NFEs**") which are themselves Reportable Persons. This information, as exhaustively set out in Annex I of the CRS Law (the "**Information**"), will include personal data related to the Reportable Persons.

The Fund's ability to satisfy its reporting obligations under the CRS Law will depend on each Shareholder providing the Fund with the Information, along with the required supporting documentary evidence. In this context, the Shareholders are hereby informed that, as data controller, the Fund will process the Information for the purposes as set out in the CRS Law.

Shareholders qualifying as passive NFEs undertake to inform their Controlling Persons, if applicable, of the processing of their Information by the Fund.

Additionally, the Fund is responsible for the processing of personal data and each Shareholder has a right to access the data communicated to the Luxembourg tax authorities and to correct such data (if necessary). Any data obtained by the Fund are to be processed in accordance with the applicable data protection legislation.

The Shareholders are further informed that the Information related to Reportable Persons will be disclosed to the Luxembourg tax authorities annually for the purposes set out in the CRS Law.

The Luxembourg tax authorities will, under their own responsibility, eventually exchange the reported information to the competent authority of the Reportable Jurisdiction(s). In particular, Reportable Persons are informed that certain operations performed by them will be reported to them through the issuance of statements, and that part of this information will serve as a basis for the annual disclosure to the Luxembourg tax authorities.

Similarly, the Shareholders undertake to inform the Fund within thirty (30) days of receipt of these statements should any included personal data not be accurate. The Shareholders further undertake to immediately inform the Fund of and provide the Fund with all supporting documentary evidence of any changes related to the Information after occurrence of such changes.

Although the Fund will attempt to satisfy any obligation imposed on it to avoid any fines or penalties imposed by the CRS Law, no assurance can be given that the Fund will be able to satisfy these obligations. If the Fund becomes subject to a fine or penalty as a result of the CRS Law, the value of the Shares held by the Shareholders may suffer material losses.

Any Shareholder that fails to comply with the Fund's Information or documentation requests may be held liable for penalties imposed on the Fund and attributable to such Shareholder's failure to provide the Information or subject to disclosure of the Information by the Fund to the Luxembourg tax authorities and the Fund may, in its sole discretion, redeem the Shares of such Shareholder.

APPENDIX A: SUPPLEMENT 1 – ALFAKRAFT LUXEMBOURG S.A. SICAV - NORDIC BRIDGE FUND

1. **DEFINITIONS**

High-on-High

2. HAS THE MEANING ASCRIBED TO IT IN SECTION 19 (LISTING ON THE LUXEMBOURG STOCK EXCHANGE

The following Share Classes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange:

• Retail A SEK

Performance Fee) of this Supplement.

Hurdle Rate

3. HAS THE MEANING ASCRIBED TO IT IN SECTION 19 (LISTING ON THE LUXEMBOURG STOCK EXCHANGE

The following Share Classes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange:

• Retail A SEK

Performance Fee) of this Supplement.

Loan a property-related loan into which the Sub-Fund may invest.

Loan Agent the representative of the lenders in case of syndicated direct loans.

Loan Originators the loan originator providing loan origination services to the Sub-Fund.

Performance Fee

4. THE PERFORMANCE-BASED COMPENSATION OF THE AIFM, AS FURTHER SPECIFIED IN SECTION 19 (LISTING ON THE LUXEMBOURG STOCK EXCHANGE

The following Share Classes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange:

• Retail A SEK

Performance Fee) of this Supplement.

Performance the time horizon over which the performance is measured and compared with that of the reference indicator, at the end of which the mechanism for the compensation for past underperformance (or negative performance) can be reset.

5. LAUNCH DATE AND TERM

The Sub-Fund will be launched on the date decided by the Board of Directors by way of board resolutions and has an unlimited duration.

6. **REFERENCE CURRENCY**

The Reference Currency of the Sub-Fund is the Swedish Krona (SEK).

7. **INVESTMENT OBJECTIVE**

The investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to create consistent returns by granting mainly senior secured loans on a short to mid-term basis to borrowers in the real estate and adjacent or related industries.

The Sub-Fund's objective is to achieve a high risk-adjusted return, with a net return of approximately 4-7 percent above the yield of the Swedish Treasury Bill maturity 3 months (*Svensk statsskuldväxel 3-månaders löptid*) per year. The returns shall be independent of investments on the stock exchange. The investments shall be made, taking into account the prevailing market situation and return requirements on the market.

The Sub-Fund qualifies as a standard financial product under article 6 of SFDR. The investments underlying the Sub-Fund do not take into account the EU criteria for environmentally sustainable economic activities.

8. INVESTMENT POLICY AND SPECIFIC RESTRICTIONS

The Sub-Fund is a direct lending fund, focusing on small and medium enterprises in the Nordic countries mainly in Sweden.

The Sub-Fund's policy consists of offering short to medium term direct lending to companies and other forms of associations secured by real estate. The goal of this investment policy is to achieve an attractive risk-adjusted return without a direct correlation to stock, bonds and commodity markets.

The Sub-Fund is actively managed and does not follow any index.

In particular, the Sub-Fund invests in property-related loans (the "**Loans**"), secured by underlying real estate mortgages sourced internally or externally by the Sub-Fund's established loan originators (the "**Loan Originators**").

All loans are subject to institutional loan origination process. In the case of externally sourced loans, the AIFM outsources the loan origination process to the Loan Originator which will be engaged with the data collection of the documents for a potential loan in which the Sub-Fund may invest following an approval from the AIFM's investment committee (the "Investment Committee"). In the case of internally sourced loans, the AIFM is in charge of the data collection and analysis of the loan origination terms and investment opportunities for the Sub-Fund, without the involvement of an external Loan Originator in the process.

In case the AIFM makes use of a Loan Originator, it must be experienced, have a proven successful track record of loans issued, and have a rigorous loan origination process (KYC, DD, project budget analysis, etc.). Typically Nordic, mostly Swedish, entities will act as Loan Originators.

The Loans are often combined with other commitments and/or other collateral for the Loans. The collateral such as physical mortgage deeds and/or electronic mortgage deeds, is normally held by an external security agent who represents the lenders.

The Sub-Fund shall apply a risk diversification strategy in its portfolio composition by spreading Loans over, among other factors, various property types, maturities, yield levels and geographical locations.

As the market conditions will vary depending on the different periods, the yield and nature of the borrowers will vary as well.

5.1. Eligible assets for investment

5.1.1. The Sub-Fund may invest in Loans, for which the following applies:

- (i) The Loans are issued to legal entities in the Nordic countries.
- (ii) The Loans are secured by underlying real asset collateral / pledged asset; and
- (iii) The maximum term of a Loan is 2 years.

5.1.2 The Sub-Fund may also invest excess liquidity in:

- i) Fund units,
- ii) Interest-bearing instruments;
- iii) Currencies, through bank deposits; and
- iv) Transferable securities;
- v) Exchange traded index products; and
- vi) Asset backed securities.

5.2. Specific investment restrictions

The general investment restrictions set out in section 4.2 (Investment restrictionsManagement and Administration) apply to the Sub-Fund.

In addition, the size of a single Loan may not exceed 10 percent of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value at the time granting the Loan and the Sub-Fund's exposure to one borrower may not exceed 10 percent of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value at the time granting the Loan.

The Sub-Fund's risk diversification requirements shall apply after an initial ramp-up period of six (6) months.

5.3. Credit Policy

In order to obtain the best possible return on the invested capital, the AIFM may carry out a credit evaluation process before Loans are granted. The credit evaluation process is primarily based on, but not limited to, the investor material, property valuations, information on collateral, credit information, due diligence reports and investor tools provided internally or externally via a Loan Originator.

The Sub-Fund's investments will mainly consist of direct loans (one lender) and syndicated direct Loans (several lenders). Other types of investments and investment instruments are also possible.

In the case of syndicated direct loans, the Sub-Fund and other lenders in the syndicate will normally be jointly represented by a loan agent (the "**Loan Agent**").

The Loan Agent, together with other lenders, will be in charge of the decisions in regards to the terms and conditions of the loans, mortgage realization and termination of Loans.

In order to obtain a constant flow of investment opportunities, the AIFM may enter into a socalled "deal-flow" agreement with the Loan Originators. Under this agreement, the Loan Originators will continuously present investment opportunities to the Sub-Fund, which is expected to provide a sufficiently large investment universe of Loans.

The AIFM analyses and forms an opinion about each individual Loan in connection with the lending process, during which the variables and other relevant information are weighed and considered.

The Sub-Fund's investments will consist of a diversified portfolio of loans granted to Nordic legal entities. The Loans are secured with an underlying real asset and possibly with additional pledge and guarantees. The Sub-Fund's typical investment consists of a well-diversified portfolio of 30-70 loans. The portfolio is diversified with respect to geographical area, sector, different maturity etc. The loans in the portfolio have a significant risk focus and attention to the underlying pledged asset. The Sub-Fund's typical investment will, initially, in terms of volume amount to SEK 2 - 20 million with a term of 0.5 - 2 years and annual interest of 7 - 14 percent. As the Fund grows and develops, investment amounts, terms and returns may change.

The Sub-Fund must be able to invest in delayed or overdue Loans provided that the AIFM assesses that the potential return is commensurate with the risk.

5.3.1 Lending Process

The lending process can be summarized as follows:

- (a) receiving and collection of investor materials, property valuations, collateral information, credit reports, due diligence reports for a specific loan, whether by a third party in the case of externally sourced loans or by the AIFM in the case of internally sourced loans.
- (b) analysis and review of the material specified in point (a) above by the AIFM, based on the variables defined below and any follow-up questions or comments to the borrower.
- (c) credit decision to be taken by the Investment Committee, based on the above, on whether or not the Sub-Fund should provide a loan to the borrower.
- (d) monitoring and continuous follow-up of the individual Loans.

The following variables 1 - 5 are mainly taken into account in the credit rating process. The classifications are weighted in descending order, where point 1 (*"Underlying collateral / pledged asset"*) has the greatest impact on the credit assessment and point 5 (*"Term of the investment"*) has the least impact on the credit assessment.

Given that the borrowers typically lack strong balance sheets, the credit assessment process is predominantly based on the Loan's collateral.

1. Underlying collateral / pledged asset

- real estate mortgage (all the Sub-Fund's investments must be secured with an underlying real estate mortgage);
- share pledge in companies;
- corporate guarantee;
- personal guarantee;
- corporate mortgage; and
- other collateral.

2. Counterparty

- due diligence;
- know your customer (KYC);
- Credit score or equivalent;
- internal management; and
- historical bankruptcies at the board level.

3. Capital structure

- financing from bank or credit institution;
- loan-to-value and other credit risk measures;
- ratio borrower's own capital investment; and
- profit margin and other project key financial ratios.

4. Project stage

- building permit (only in the case of new or redevelopment);
- purchased contract (only in the case of new or redevelopment);
- purchased financing (only in the case of new or redevelopment);
- booking agreement (only in the case of new or redevelopment);
- advance agreement (only in the case of new or redevelopment);
- rental agreement (only in the case of new or redevelopment);
- property sectioned off (only in the case of new or redevelopment);
- property occupied;
- status in project (only in the case of new or redevelopment); and
- net finance (only existing built-up properties).

5. Term of the investment

9. **INVESTOR PROFILE**

The Sub-Fund is intended for professional and non-professional investors with an investment horizon of three to five years. The Sub-Fund is intended as a short to medium term investment. Investors should consider their own personal circumstances and seek additional advice from their financial adviser or other professional adviser on their risk tolerance and investment horizon before investing in the Sub-Fund.

10. SPECIFIC RISKS

Investors should carefully read section 5 (General Risk Factors) of the Prospectus before investing in the Sub-Fund. Investors should also consider the following additional risks which are specific to the Sub-Fund.

a) General economic and market conditions:

The success of the Sub-Fund activities will be affected by general economic and market conditions, such as interest rate, inflation rates, economic uncertainty, and changes in national and international political circumstances. These factors will affect the level and volatility of asset prices and liquidity of the investments held by the Sub-Fund. Unexpected volatility is likely to impair the Sub-Fund profitability or result in it suffering losses.

b) Currency risk:

When the Sub-Fund invests in Loans issued in euros (EUR) or invests excess liquidity in financial instruments issued in currencies other than the Sub-Fund's Reference Currency, a currency risk may arise.

c) Liquidity risk:

An investment in the Sub-Fund carries a general liquidity risk. the Sub-Fund invest in equity debt issued by companies which are not regulated and/or which have not an access to financial markets. Consequently, the equity and debt may represent a low level of liquidity and marketability involving that selling of the equity and debt in the market may only be possible through a discounted premium.

d) Temporary investments in liquid assets:

By exception proceeds paid to the Sub-Fund may be invested in very liquid assets on a temporary or short-term basis. These temporary investments may produce lower returns for Shareholders than returns earned by the Investments for the same period.

e) Concentration and diversification:

The Fund's portfolio aims to hold approximately 30-70 Loans. The portfolio is well diversified across, geographical regions, issuers, various loan maturities, interest rates, and industry sectors (for example, but not limited to, commercial real estate, housing, logistic and warehouse centres etc). The portfolio also has a single Loan concentration limit of 10% at the time of granting the Loan.

f) General risks in investing in Real Estate:

Real estate investments, directly or indirectly, are exposed to various risks such as the cyclical nature of real estate values, risks related to general and local economic conditions, overbuilding, and increased competition, increases in property taxes and operational expenses, demographic trends, variations in rental income, changing in zonings, causality or condemnation losses, environmental risks, regulatory limitations to rents, changing in neighbourhood values, increases in interest rates and other real estate capital market influences.

g) Risks linked to debt investments:

In order to gain exposure to targeted assets the Sub-Fund may invest in various types of debt instruments. Consequently, the Sub-Fund may be exposed to credit risk including default, interest risk and credit spread risk. Furthermore, the Sub-Fund may be exposed to the integrity of the issuer's management, its commitment to repay the loan, its qualification, its operating record, its emphasis in strategic direction, financial philosophy, and operational management

including control systems. In particular, the Sub-Fund may be exposed to the capacity of the issuer's ability to generate cash flow to repay its debt obligations.

h) Collateral Risk

In order to reduce the risks of lending, collateral is a key concern for borrowers, since it is the guarantee, the lender has in case the debtor defaults in his credit. The fund has collateral exposure, since the probability of default and the recovery rate of the loans will be influenced by the strength of the collateral provided and the proper pricing of such collateral. In order to reduce such risk, the Sub-Fund will primarily try to obtain first lien on the asset, and if not second lien.

i) Insurance risks:

Even though a real estate owner often intends to maintain comprehensive insurance on its real estate properties, including physical loss or damage, business interruption and public liability in amounts sufficient to permit replacement in the event of total loss, subject to applicable deductibles, there are certain types of losses, however, generally of a catastrophic nature, such as earthquakes, floods, hurricanes and terrorism that may be uninsurable or not economically insurable. Inflation, changes in building codes and ordinances, environmental considerations, provisions in loan documents, encumbering properties that have been pledged as collateral for loans, and other factors might make it economically impractical to use insurance proceeds to replace a property if it is damaged or destroyed. Under such circumstances the insurance proceeds received, if any, might not be adequate to restore the initial investment with respect to the affected property.

j) Sustainability risks:

Some markets and sectors will have greater exposure to Sustainability Risks than others. For instance, real estate is exposed to potential physical risks resulting from climate change. For example, the tail risk of significant damage due to increasing erratic and potentially catastrophic weather phenomena such as droughts, wildfires, flooding and heavy precipitations, heat/cold waves, landslides, or storms. As the frequency of extreme weather events increases, the exposure to these events of the underlying assets which collateralize the Sub-Fund's Loans increases as well, which may result in stranded assets.

11. LEVERAGE AND BORROWING

The Sub-Fund's maximum level of leverage calculated and monitored by the AIFM in accordance with the gross method as defined in article 7 of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 is generally expected to amount to up to 120 % of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value.

The Sub-Fund's maximum level of leverage calculated and monitored by the AIFM in accordance with the commitment method as defined in article 8 of the Commission Delegated

Regulation (EU) No 231/2013 is generally expected to amount to up to 120 % of the Sub-Fund's Net Asset Value.

The Sub-Fund may borrow up to 20% of the Net Asset Value of the Sub-Fund.

12. VALUATION

Each last Business Day of a month is a Valuation Day. The Net Asset Value per Share will be calculated as of each Valuation Day. With respect to this Sub-Fund, a Business Day is any day which is defined as a Business Day in the Prospectus and on which banks are open the whole day for non-automated business in Luxembourg.

The latest calculated net asset value (NAV) is published monthly on the AIFM's website.

13. SUBSCRIPTIONS

Each Valuation Day is a Subscription Day. The Cut-Off Time for subscription applications is 11:00 pm CET one day prior to the Subscription Day. Subscription applications must be settled by the end of the Subscription Settlement Period, which is fifteen (15) Business Days following the Subscription Day.

14. **REDEMPTIONS**

Each Valuation Day is a Redemption Day. The Cut-Off Time for redemption applications is 11:00 pm twenty (20) Business Days prior to the Redemption Day. Redemption applications will normally be settled by the end of the Redemption Settlement Period, which is twenty (20) Business Days following the Redemption Day.

Redemption gates will be applicable whereby redemption payments on the fifteenth (15th) Banking Day post the commencement of each month (the dealing gate) are capped at three (3) percent of the total assets under management in order to safeguard the Fund's stability and the interest of all investors.

15. CONVERSIONS

Each Valuation Day is a Conversion Day. The Cut-Off Time for conversion applications is 11:00 pm CET one day prior to the Conversion Day. Conversion applications will normally be settled by the end of the Conversion Settlement Period, which is fifteen (15) Business Days following the Conversion Day.

16. SHARE CLASSES

The table at the end of this Supplement lists all Share Classes established within the Sub-Fund. Certain Share Classes may currently not be active or may be unavailable to investors in certain jurisdictions. The list of active Share Classes currently available for subscription in each jurisdiction may be obtained from the AIFM and the Administrator upon request and on <u>https://nordicbridgefund.se</u>.

The Share Classes: "Inst D SEK", "Inst F USD", "Inst I EUR" and "Inst L GBP" can only be subscribed until 31st of December 2024.

17. **TARGET INVESTORS**

The target for investors of the different Share Classes is set out in Table 1 at the end of this Supplement.

18. LISTING ON THE LUXEMBOURG STOCK EXCHANGE

The following Share Classes are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange:

• Retail A SEK

19. **PERFORMANCE FEE**

The AIFM is entitled to a performance-based compensation (the "**Performance Fee**"). The calculation of the Performance Fee and the necessary provisioning take place as of each Valuation Day. It is crystallised on a monthly basis (each a "**Crystallisation Period**").

The accrued Performance Fee shall be payable at each Crystallisation Date (as defined below) when the following two conditions are fulfilled:

- (i) The performance of the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class, as of any given Valuation Day, is greater than the yield of the Swedish Treasury Bill maturity 3 months (*Svensk statsskuldväxel 3-månaders löptid*") (the "**Hurdle Rate**"); and
- (ii) The Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class used in the calculation of a Performance Fee must be greater than the highest Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class (prior to deduction of the performance fee) at the end of each Crystallisation Period where a Performance Fee has been paid (the "High-on-High").

The calculation of the Performance Fee, together with the necessary provisioning, takes place with every calculation of the Net Asset Value but is only paid monthly in arrears within fifteen (15) Business Days of the end of each month. Artificial increases resulting from new subscriptions will not be taken into account for the purpose of determining whether the performance of the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class, as of any given Valuation Day, is greater than the highest between the Hurdle Rate and the High-on-High on a given Valuation Day.

The Performance Reference Period is equal to the whole life of the Sub-Fund. Any underperformance or loss previously incurred during the Performance Reference Period will be recovered before an accrued Performance Fee becomes payable.

If, as of respectively the last Valuation Day of each month (the "**Regular Crystallisation Date**") or an Early Crystallisation Date (as defined below), the performance of the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class is greater than the Hurdle Rate and the Net Asset Value per Share of the relevant Share Class is greater than the High-on-High, a Performance Fee as indicated in table at the end of this Supplement for the relevant shall be deducted on the difference, net of costs, between the increase of the Net Asset Value of the relevant Share Class and the highest between

- (i) the Hurdle Rate; and
- (ii) the High-on-High.

The Performance Fee is calculated on the basis of the Shares of the relevant Share Class that are currently in circulation.

The actual fees charged will be disclosed in the respective annual report of the Fund.

If (i) Shares were redeemed or converted into other Shares of any Share Class of the Sub-Fund or any Share Class of another Sub-Fund of the Fund during the reference month, and a Performance Fee is accrued for those Shares, or (ii) the assets of the Sub-Fund or of a Share Class are transferred to or merged with those of another Share Class, Sub-Fund or another investment fund, and a Performance Fee is accrued for those Shares concerned by such transfer or merger, or (iii) the Sub-Fund or a Share Class is terminated or liquidated, (each an "**Early Crystallisation Date**" and together with the Regular Crystallisation Date, each a "**Crystallisation Date**") such Performance Fee will be crystallised respectively at the date of redemption or conversion or at the effective date of the merger and it will be considered as payable to the AIFM.

However, no Performance Fee shall crystallise where this Sub-Fund or a Share Class of this Sub-Fund is merged with a newly established receiving Sub-Fund or another newly established investment fund with no performance history and with an investment policy not substantially different from that of this Sub-Fund. In that case, the Performance Reference Period of this Sub-Fund shall continue applying in the receiving Sub-Fund or investment fund.

Calculation examples:

Ifakraft Luxembourg S.A. SICAV - NORDIC BRIDGE FUND Iustration on performance fee calculation at Sub-Fund level

Crystallisation Period Performance fee rate

Crystallisation Period	NAV/Share Initial*		Fund performance on a month-to month basis		Applicable HoH***	Hurdle Amount	Reference Value/Share****	Monthly Over/Underperformance in amount*****	Conditions met for distribution of performance fee	Performance fee Rate*****	Performance fee Final******
01/01/2023	50,00	53,00	6,00%	0,70%	50,00	50,35	50,35	2,65	Yes	10%	0,27
01/02/2023	52,74	49,00	-7,08%	-0,56%	53,00	52,44	53,00	- 4,00	No	10%	-
01/03/2023	49,00	53,00	8,16%	2,56%	53,00	50,25	53,00		No	10%	-
01/04/2023	53,00	54,00	1,89%	1,56%	53,00	53,83	53,83	0,17	Yes	10%	0,02
01/05/2023	53,98	55,50	2,81%	1,80%	54,00	54,95	54,95	0,55	Yes	10%	0,05
01/06/2023	55,45	55,00	-0,80%	2,60%	55,50	56,89	56,89	- 1,89	No	10%	-
01/07/2023	55,00	62,00	12,73%	-0,56%	55,50	54,69	55,50	6,50	Yes	10%	0,65
01/08/2023	61,35	65,00	5,95%	-0,78%	62,00	60,87	62,00	3,00	Yes	10%	0,30

Monthly 10,0%

Monthly 20,0%

NAV/Share Initial adjusted by performance fees.
 The Hurdle Rate is the yield of the Swedish Treasury Bill maturity 3 months (Swensk statsskuldväxel 3-månaders löptid ").
 During the first Crystallisation Period, the Applicable HoH is the subscription price at the time of issue of that Share. (After the 1st Crystallisation Period, the Applicable HoH is the highest historical NAV/Share of the relevant Share Class (prior to deuticion of performance fee) at the end of each Crystallisation Period where Performance fee has been paid.
 Reference Value/Share is the highest of the applicable HoH and NAV/Share initial adjusted by the Hurdle Rate (Hurdle Ranount) for the Crystallisation Period.
 Monthy performance is calculated as the difference between the NAV/Share End of the Crystallisation Period and the Reference Value.
 Performance feer at is 10% (applicable for Share Classes Inst C SEX, Inst D USO, Inst F EUR, Inst C CHr, Inst H GBP, and Inst J NOK).
 Performance fee is 10% of the difference (if positive) the NAV/Share End (net of costs) and the Reference Value.

Alfakraft Luxembourg S.A. SICAV - NORDIC BRIDGE FUND Illustration on performance fee calculation at Sub-Fund level

Crystallisation Period Performance fee rate

Crystallisation Period	NAV/Share Initial*	NAV/Share End	Fund performance on a month-to month basis	Hurdle Rate**	Applicable HoH***	Hurdle Amount	Reference Value/Share****	Monthly Over/Underperform ance in amount*****	Conditions met for distribution of performance fee	Performance fee Rate*****	Performance fee Final******
01/01/2023	50,00	53,00	6,00%	0,70%	50,00	50,35	50,35	2,65	Yes	20%	0,53
01/02/2023	52,47	49,00	-6,61%	-0,56%	53,00	52,18	53,00	- 4,00	No	20%	
01/03/2023	49,00	53,00	8,16%	2,56%	53,00	50,25	53,00	-	No	20%	-
01/04/2023	53,00	54,00	1,89%	1,56%	53,00	53,83	53,83	0,17	Yes	20%	0,03
01/05/2023	53,97	55,50	2,84%	1,80%	54,00	54,94	54,94	0,56	Yes	20%	0,11
01/06/2023	55,39	55,00	-0,70%	2,60%	55,50	56,83	56,83	- 1,83	No	20%	
01/07/2023	55,00	62,00	12,73%	-0,56%	55,50	54,69	55,50	6,50	Yes	20%	1,30
01/08/2023	60,70	65,00	7,08%	-0,78%	62,00	60,23	62,00	3,00	Yes	20%	0,60

NAV/Share Initial adjusted by performance fees.
 The Hurdle Rate is the yield of the Swedish Treasury Bill maturity 3 months (Svensk statsskuldväxel 3-månaders löptid ").
 During the first Crystallisation Period, the Applicable HoH is the subscription price at the time of issue of that Share. After the 1st Crystallisation Period, the Applicable HoH is the highest historical NAV/Share of the relevant Share Class (price) to deduction of performance fee) at the end of each Crystallisation Period where a Performance Fee has been paid.
 Reference Value/Share is the highest of the applicable HoH and NAV/Share initial adjusted by the Hurdle Rate (Hurdle Rate (Hurdle Rate (Hurdle Rate (Hurdle Rate (Hurdle Rate (Hurdle Rate)))).
 Monthly performance is calculated as the difference between the NAV/Share End of the Crystallisation Period and the Reference Value.
 Performance fee at is 20% of the difference (if positive) the NAV/Share End (net of costs) and the Reference Value.

Share Class name	Retail A SEK	Retail B SEK	Inst C SEK	Inst D SEK	Inst E USD	Inst F USD	Retail G EUR	Inst H EUR	Inst I EUR	Inst J CHF	Inst K GBP	Inst L GBP	Retail M NOK	Inst N NOK
Share Class Reference Currency	SEK	SEK	SEK	SEK	USD	USD	EUR	EUR	EUR	CHF	GBP	GBP	NOK	NOK
Distribution (D) or Capitalisation (C)	С	С	С	D	С	С	С	С	D	С	С	С	С	С
Target Investors	Retail Investor s	Retail investor s via advisor	Institution al investors	Institution al investors	Institutional investors	Institution al investors	Retail Investors	Institution al investors	Institution al investors	Institution al investors	Institutional investors	Institution al Investors	Retail Investors	Institution al investors
Initial Offer														
Initial Offer Price														
Currency Hedged Share Class	No	No	No	No	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes	Yes
Minimum Subscription	1,000 SEK	10,000 SEK	1,000,000 SEK	1,000,000 SEK	100,000 USD	100,000 USD	1,000 EUR	100,000 EUR	100,000 EUR	100,000 CHF	100,000 GBP	100,000 GBP	1,000 NOK	1,000,000 NOK
Minimum Holding	500 SEK	5,000 SEK	500,000 SEK	500,000 SEK	50,000 USD	50,000 USD	500 EUR	50,000 EUR	50,000 EUR	50,000CH F	50,000 GBP	50,000 GBP	500 NOK	500,000 NOK
Maximum Subscription Fee	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	Up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	Up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%
Maximum Redemption Fee	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	Up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%	Up to 2%	up to 2%	up to 2%

Table 1: Share Classes of NORDIC BRIDGE FUND

Management Fee	1.6%	1.6%	1.0%	0.25% until Septemb er 2027 and 1% thereafter	1.0%	0.25% until Septemb er 2027 and 1% thereafter	1.6%	1.0%	0.25% until Septemb er 2027 and 1% thereafter	1.0%	1.0%	0.25% until Septemb er 2027 and 1% thereafter	1.6%	1.0%
Performance Fee	20%	20%	10%	10%	10%	10%	20%	10%	10%	10%	10%	10%	20%	10%
Taxe d'abonnement	0.05%	0.05%	0.01%	0.01%	0.01%	0.01	0.05%	0.01%	0.01%	0.01%	0.01%	0.01%	0.05%	0.01%